
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2011 - 10 A.M.
               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A Public Hearing  - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No.
LL-11-03, an application submitted by Marie Ann Petroff for a new Series 13
domestic farm winery license for Pleasant Valley Winery located in
Young.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

 

3 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Dissussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-01
expressing continued support of the Cobre Valley Community Transit
program from October 1, 2011, through September 30, 2012.
(Steve Stratton)

 

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-03, which
authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (AG Contract
No. P0012011 000387) between Gila County and the State of Arizona,
Department of Transportation, at an estimated total project cost of $529,676
for pedestrian sidewalks along Six Shooter Canyon Road in Globe beginning
at Remington and running North to Cherokee. (Steve Stratton)

 

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-04, which
authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (AG Contract
No. P0012011 000392) between Gila County and the State of Arizona,
Department of Transportation, at an estimated total project cost of $521,166
for pedestrian sidewalks along Main Street in Globe from U.S. Highway 60 to
the intersection of Golden Hill Road. (Steve Stratton)

 

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 11-03 to proclaim
April 2011 as National County Government Month in Gila County and to
encourage all Gila County officials, employees, schools and residents to
participate in related activities throughout the month.  (Shirley Dawson)

 

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Consulting Services
Contract No. 1005.103/1-2011 between Gila County and Elections
Operations Services in an amount not to exceed $225,000 for the two-year
election cycle beginning January 2011 and ending December 2012, with one
additional two-year renewal.  (Linda Eastlick)

 

 



F Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract
No. 1005.120/2-2011 between Gila County and US Imaging, Inc. whereby
microfilm storage services will be provided in the amount of $5,000 from
April 5, 2011, through April 4, 2014.  (Sadie Tomerlin-Dalton)

 

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-02
authorizing renewal of Gila County's membership in the Arizona Local
Government Employee Benefit Trust for the period commencing July 1,
2011, and terminating on June 30, 2014; and appointing Don E. McDaniel,
Jr., Trustee, and John F. Nelson, Alternate Trustee, to serve on the Board of
Directors of the Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust from July
01, 2011, until the appointment of a duly-qualified successor.
(Don McDaniel)

 

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Agreement No.
6557.102/12-2010 between Gila County and Arizona Public Service Energy
Services Company, Inc. (APSES), whereby APSES will perform a technical
energy audit for Gila County from April 5, 2011, to April 4, 2012.  
(Steve Stratton)

 

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Road Project Agreement (FS
Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-014) between the United States Department
of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest and Gila County to
begin a Roads Improvement Supplemental Project for the chipsealing of FR
661, culvert installation on FR 423, and erosion repair on FR 71 at a
total project cost of $91,786.81.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-05 which calls
upon the Arizona Department of Transportation to install signalized
pedestrian crossings, or, at a minimum, install the "HAWK System" of
flashing red lights operable by pedestrians, in order to create adequate gaps
in traffic for safe crossing in order to avoid death or serious physical injury to
Globe students or citizens at this known dangerous location. 
(Steve Stratton)

 

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-06 which
declares support to maintain the projects described in the Arizona
Department of Transportation's Five-Year Transportation Facilities
Construction Program as reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60, the
Silver King and Superior Streets sections, to begin no later than FY 2013 as
originally programmed. (Steve Stratton)

 

 

L (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene
as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors)  
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 11-04 to proclaim
National Library Week, April 10-16, 2011, in Gila County.  (Jacque Griffin)

 

 

M Information/Discussion/Action to approve the renewal application on behalf  



M Information/Discussion/Action to approve the renewal application on behalf
of the Gila County Library District for the "First Things First
Community-Based Literacy Grant" (FTF-RC004-11-0272-01) in the amount
of $85,000 for fiscal year July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012. (Jacque
Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

4 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Authorization for the Gila County Attorney's Office to electronically submit a
FY 2012 Grant Application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 
Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Program, to renew grant funding and
approve any required match funding requirement.

 

 

B Approval of a Lease Agreement between the Gila County Attorney's Office
and Alhambra Mini Storage in Globe for the rental of one storage unit for
storage of files at a cost of $119 per month beginning February 25, 2011, and
ongoing on a month-to-month basis. 

 

 

C Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the 2010-2011 Weatherization Low-Income
Assistance Contractual Agreement, Commerce G044-10-02, between
the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office and Gila
County (Office of Community Services) to allocate an additional $5,040 for a
total not to exceed amount of $33,474, which will be used to help residents
who meet program qualifications for the period July 9, 2010, through June
30, 2011.

 

 

D Approval of Amendment No. 3 to the Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU)/Contract for Help America Vote Act (HAVA) between Gila County and
the Arizona Secretary of State.  

 

 

E Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Lease Agreement between Arizona Public
Service Company and Gila County to extend the term of the lease for an
additional three years; from April 27, 2011, to April 26, 2014, in the amount
of one dollar ($1.00) per month.

 

 

F Acknowledge the appointment of Quentin Johnson as the new governing
board member to the Canyon Fire District Governing Board, with
term expiring November 30, 2012.

 

 

G Approval of two Intergovernmental Agreements for Election Services,
one between the Gila County Department of Elections and the Cobre Valley
Sanitary District and the other one between the Gila County Department of
Elections and the Pinal Sanitary District for the May 17, 2011, election to
merge the two Sanitary Districts.

 

 

H Approval of Professional Services Contract No. 1005.274/2-2011- Medical  



H Approval of Professional Services Contract No. 1005.274/2-2011- Medical
Director Services whereby McLaren Ruesch, M.D. will provide medical
director services for the Gila County Sheriff's Office Adult and Juvenile
Detention Centers in Globe and the Adult Detention Center in Payson in the
not to exceed amount of $48,000 for the period April 5, 2011, through April
4, 2012.

 

 

I Approval of Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002 between Gila
County, on behalf of Gila County Juvenile Detention Center, and the Bureau
of Indian Affairs to extend the period of performance from December 31,
2010, to March 31, 2011. 

 

 

J Approval of reappointment of Judge Gary V. Scales, and Judge Peter J.
DeNinno, as Judges Pro Tempore  for the Superior Court in Gila County for
the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

 

 

K Approval of First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No.
FTF-RC0004-10-0129-01-Y2 between Gila County and First Things First in
the amount of $56,650 to extend the Gila County Early Childhood Screening
Program for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

 

 

L Approval of First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration
No. GRA-STATE-10-0070-01-Y2 between Gila County and First Things First
in the amount of $25,101 to extend the Childhood Health Consultation
Program for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

 

 

M Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement-Economic Development Grant
between Gila County and the City of Globe whereby the County will disburse
up to $65,000 to the City of Globe for use in construction of the the Old
Dominion Historic Mine Park.

 

 

N Approval to adopt Proclamation No. 11-05 proclaiming April as Fair Housing
Month in Gila County.

 

 

O Approval of the February 2011 monthly departmental activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.

 

 

P Approval of the February 2011 monthly departmental activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable

 

 

Q Approval of the August 10, 2010, August 16, 2010, August 31, 2010, and
September 7, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

 

 

R Approval of Human Resources Reports for the weeks of March 22, 2011,
March 29, 2011, and April 5, 2011.

 

 

S Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of March 22,
2011, March 29, 2011, and April 5, 2011.

 

 

5 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow  



5 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board
members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(G),
action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to
study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



ARF-439     Public Hearing   Item #:  2- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name: Marian Sheppard 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Order No. LL-11-03 - Pleasant Valley Winery Liquor License Application

Background Information
Marie Ann Petroff has submitted an application to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(Department) for a new Series 13 domestic farm winery license for Pleasant Valley Winery located in Young.  Part of
the statutory process is once the Department accepts and processes the license, it is sent to the local governing
body in which city, town or county the establishment is located. Upon the local governing body's review of the
application, a recommendation is then issued by the local governing, which in Gila County it is the Board of
Supervisors (Board), to the Department to either approve, deny or issue a "no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at the establishment for a period of 20
days, specifically to inform any person residing or owning or leasing property within a one-mile radius of the
establishment regarding this application. To date, the Clerk of the Board's Department has not received any
objections to this application.

Evaluation
This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors' Department for
submission to the Board. An internal review has been conducted by both the Gila County Building
Safety Department and the Health Department. Both departments have submitted paperwork stating there are no
issues related to this application with regard to their departmental policies/procedures. The Affidavit of Posting has
also been signed by Sheriff verifying that the application was posted and removed per statutory requirements.

Conclusion
All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this application; no one has submitted a written
objection to this application; therefore, a public hearing should be held by the Board to entertain any comments
from the public with regard to this application before the Board takes an action to issue a recommendation to the
Department.

Recommendation
The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue an approval recommendation
to the Department.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-11-03, an application submitted by Marie
Ann Petroff for a new Series 13 domestic farm winery license for Pleasant Valley Winery located in Young.  (Marian
Sheppard)

Attachments
Link: Pleasant Valley Winery Liquor License Application
Link: Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery License Information
Link: Pleasant Valley Winery Internal Memos
Link: Gila County Order No. LL-11-03



















































ARF-433     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-04-01 - Support for Cobre Valley Community Transit Program.

Background Information
Gila County has collaborated with the City of Globe and the Town of Miami to support the Cobre Valley
Community Transit (CVCT) program in the operating and capital needs of our local regional transit
program since 2004.  The funding for the County's share of this program has come from the Local
Transportation Assistance Funds II (LTAF II) grant provided through the Arizona Department of
Transportation. 

Evaluation
Funding is needed to continue operation of the CVCT program. 

Conclusion
Without collaborated funds our local area will not be able to continue to provide reasonable and regular
public transit services.

Recommendation
The Director of Public Works recommends that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution
No. 11-04-01 in support of the CVCT program.

Suggested Motion
Information/Dissussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-01 expressing continued support of the
Cobre Valley Community Transit program from October 1, 2011, through September 30, 2012.
(Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Resolution
Link: Cover Page



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-04-01 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA EXPRESSING CONTINUED SUPPORT FOR THE 
COBRE VALLEY COMMUNITY TRANSIT PROGRAM FROM OCTOBER 1, 
2011, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2012  
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Board of Supervisors of Gila County has determined that maintaining adequate and 
affordable public transportation is essential in the Greater Globe-Miami area; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the preservation, improvement and expansion of public transportation services in the 
Greater Globe-Miami area is in the best interest of the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, public transportation is a regional resource, improving the quality of life for all residents of 
the Greater Globe-Miami area and 
 
WHEREAS, existing local funding sources and mechanisms do not provide adequate resources to 
maintain or expand current transportation services; and  
 
WHEREAS, unless adequate funding is provided in partnership with the Arizona Department of 
Transportation for the Cobre Valley Community Transit program, our local area will be unable to 
continue to provide reasonable and regular public transit services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Gila County Board of Supervisors of Gila 
County hereby: 

 
1. Agrees to support the Cobre Valley Community Transit program in partnership with the City of 

Globe and the Town of Miami in the operation of the Cobre Valley Community Transit program.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 
 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



When recorded deliver to:   
 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 CAPTION HEADING: 
 
Resolution No. 11-04-01 for support of the Cobre Valley 
Community Transit program from October 1, 2011 
through September 30, 2012. 
    
 
    DO NOT REMOVE 
 
 
   This is part of the official document   



ARF-456     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 11/12 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

04/05/2011 to completion of project 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Department of Transporatation IGA & Resolution No. 11-04-03 Six Shooter Canyon Road
Sidewalks

Background Information
On August 20, 2007, the Board of Supervisors authorized the submission of the grant application to the
Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) for the Transportation Enhancement Program Round 15
for the sidewalks and curb along Six Shooter Canyon Road in Globe, beginning at Remington Road and
running North to Cherokee Road. The Board adopted Resolution 07-08-04 certifying that Gila County
would match funds of 5.7% in the amount of $30,192 from the General Fund with Federal Funds in the
amount of 94.3% or $499,484 for a total grant in the amount of $529,676.

Evaluation
A requirement of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is that the Board of Supervisors adopt a
resolution which authorizes the execution of the IGA.  It is important for the Board of Supervisors to
adopt Resolution No. 11-04-03 and to approve this IGA, which will allow Gila County Public Works to
continue the sidewalks and curb along Six Shooter Canyon Road.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors adopting the resolution and approving this IGA, Gila County will be able to
continue the sidewalks along Six Shooter Canyon Road.

Recommendation
The Director of Public Works recommends that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution
No. 11-04-03 and approve the IGA between the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, and
Gila County for the sidewalk along Six Shooter Canyon Road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-03, which authorizes the execution of an
Intergovernmental Agreement (AG Contract No. P0012011 000387) between Gila County and the State
of Arizona, Department of Transportation, at an estimated total project cost of $529,676 for
pedestrian sidewalks along Six Shooter Canyon Road in Globe beginning at Remington and running
North to Cherokee. (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Six Shooter Agreement
Link: Resolution 11-04-03

















 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-04-03 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (AG CONTRACT NO. 
P0012011 000387) BETWEEN GILA COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
ARIZONA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALKS ALONG SIX 
SHOOTER CANYON ROAD IN GLOBE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking the construction 
of pedestrian sidewalks along Six Shooter Canyon Road in Globe; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Agreement requires a resolution of Gila County to authorize 
execution of the agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (AG Contract No. P0012011 
000387) between Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for the 
construction of pedestrian sidewalks along Six Shooter Canyon Road in Globe, beginning at 
Remington Road and running north to Cherokee Road.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



ARF-458     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  

Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 11/12 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

04/05/2011 to completion of project 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Department of Transportation IGA & Resolution No. 11-04-04 - Main Street, Globe Sidewalks

Background Information
On August 04, 2009, the Board of Supervisors authorized the submission of the grant application to
ADOT for the Transportation Enhancement Program Round 17 for the sidewalks and curb along Main
Street in Globe from U.S. Highway 60 to the intersection of Golden Hill Road. This project is
being co-sponsored by the City of Globe through its Resolution No. 1546.  The Board adopted
Resolution 09-08-01 certifying that Gila County and the City of Globe would share equally in the match
of funds in the total amount of $29,706, and with federal funds in the amount of 94.3% or $491,460 for
a total grant in the amount of $521,166. 

Evaluation
A requirement of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is that the Board of Supervisors adopt a
resolution which authorizes the executiion of the IGA.  It is important for the Board of Supervisors to
adopt Resolution No. 11-04-04 and to approve this IGA, which will allow Gila County Public Works to
continue the sidewalks and curb along Main Street in Globe from U.S. Highway 60 to the intersection
of Golden Hill Road. 

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors adopting this resolution and approving this IGA, Gila County will be able
to continue the sidewalks along Main Street in Globe from U.S. Highway 60 to the intersection of
Golden Hill Road. 

Recommendation
The Director of Public Works recommends that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution
No. 11-04-04 and approve the IGA between the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, and
Gila County for the sidewalk along Main Street from U.S. Highway 60 to the intersection of Golden Hill
Road. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-04, which authorizes the execution of an
Intergovernmental Agreement (AG Contract No. P0012011 000392) between Gila County and the State
of Arizona, Department of Transportation, at an estimated total project cost of $521,166 for pedestrian
sidewalks along Main Street in Globe from U.S. Highway 60 to the intersection of Golden Hill Road. (Steve Stratton)
(Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: ADOT Agreement Main St
Link: Resolution 



Link: Resolution No. 09-08-01

















 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-04-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (AG CONTRACT NO. 
P0012011 000392) BETWEEN GILA COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
ARIZONA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALKS ALONG MAIN 
STREET IN GLOBE. 
  
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking the construction 
of pedestrian sidewalks along Main Street in Globe; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Agreement requires a resolution of Gila County to authorize 
execution of the agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement (AG Contract NO. P0012011 
000392) between Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for 
construction of pedestrian sidewalks along Main Street in Globe, beginning at Highway US 60 
and terminating at Golden Hill Road.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 









ARF-427     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  

Submitted By: Sherry Grice, Board of Supervisors-District 2
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 2
Presenter's Name: Shirley Dawson, BOS 

Information
Request/Subject
Proclamation No. 11-03 proclaiming April 2011 as National County Government Month in Gila County.

Background Information
Since 1991, the National Association of Counties (NACo) has encouraged counties to actively promote the services
and programs they offer.  

National County Government Month is an excellent opportunity for county officials to raise public awareness and
understanding about the roles and responsibilities of counties and to highlight essential county services and
effective programs.

With this year’s theme of “Serving Our Veterans, Armed Forces and Their Families,” counties can show their
residents the essential role counties play in honoring veterans and military personnel for their service, in providing
essential services, healthy living and employment programs in sensible and cost-effective ways.

National County Government Month was expanded to a full month to provide counties more opportunity to plan
and participate.  

Evaluation
Each year the Board of Supervisors adopts a Proclamation proclaiming the month of April as County Government
Month  and encourages all Gila County officials, employees, schools and residents to participate in related activities
throughout the month.

Conclusion
It is appropriate to place this issue before the Board of Supervisors at this time to adopt Proclamation No. 11-03
proclaiming April 2011 as National County Government Month in Gila County.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt Proclamation No. 11-03 to proclaim April 2011 as National
County Government Month in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 11-03 to proclaim April 2011 as National County
Government Month in Gila County and to encourage all Gila County officials, employees, schools and residents to
participate in related activities throughout the month.  (Shirley Dawson)

Attachments
Link: Proclamation No. 11-03
Link: National County Government Week Gila Co. Flyer



 
 
 

PROCLAMATION NO. 11-03 
 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2011, AS NATIONAL COUNTY 
GOVERNMENT MONTH IN GILA COUNTY. 
 

WHEREAS, the nation’s 3,068 counties provide a variety of essential public services to communities serving 
more than 300 million Americans; and  

 
WHEREAS, Gila County and all counties take seriously their responsibility to protect and enhance the health, 
welfare and safety of its residents in sensible and cost-effective ways; and 

 
WHEREAS, Gila County honors and thanks our residents who have served this country through military 
service, and 

 
WHEREAS, County government delivers many important services to America’s veterans, military service 
members and their families, including physical and mental health, housing, employment, and justice; and 

 
WHEREAS, The National Association of Counties has encouraged counties across the country to actively 
promote their own programs and services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Gila County and the National Association of Counties are working together to Restore the 
Partnership among all levels of government to better serve American communities. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT we, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 
proclaim the month of April 2011, as National County Government Month and encourage all Gila County 
officials, employees, schools and residents to participate in County Government celebration activities. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 5th day of April 2011. 
 
ATTEST:     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_____________________   _________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk 
      _________________________________________ 
      Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Shirley L. Dawson, Member 



Celebrate National County
Government Month

Serving Our Veterans, Armed Forces  
and Their Families

Sponsored by the National Association of 
Counties to raise public awareness about the 

roles and responsibilities of counties. 

www.naco.org/NCGM

National County Government Month
April • 2011



ARF-390     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,

Elections Director
Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

1/1/2011 to 12/31/2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Linda Eastlick 

Information
Request/Subject
Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 1005.103/1-2011 with Elections Operations Services
(EOS)

Background Information
For many years, Gila County has used Elections Operations Services (EOS) to provide certain elections
services for Gila County. The services provided include: consulting and technical assistance for each
election; ballot layout, translation, preparation and printing according to Arizona Revised Statutes;
elections database programming; creation, printing and mailing of ballots and sample ballots.

Board of Supervisors' approval to utilize EOS services in the past has always been accomplished by the
Chairman’s signature on a letter authorizing the services. New County contract expectations now
require these services be agreed to via a formal contract.

Evaluation
EOS principals have over forty combined years of elections expertise. They are intimately familiar with
Arizona election law and provide election services for thirteen of the fifteen counties in Arizona. 
Attached is a letter which describes why we have selected EOS and why there are no other appropriate
vendors for these services.

Conclusion
Services provided by EOS are required in order to conduct elections in Gila County and EOS is
considered a sole source vendor.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends approval of the EOS Professional Consulting Services
agreement.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Consulting Services Contract No.
1005.103/1-2011 between Gila County and Elections Operations Services in an amount not to exceed
$225,000 for the two-year election cycle beginning January 2011 and ending December 2012, with one
additional two-year renewal.  (Linda Eastlick)

Attachments
Link: EOS Contract No. 1005-103/1-2011
Link: EOS Executive Summary Form
Link: EOS Ltr of Recommendation



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Tommie C. Martin, District I 
P.O. Box 2297  Payson, AZ.  85547 
(928) 474-2029 
 
Michael A. Pastor, District II 
1400 E. Ash St.  Globe, AZ.  85501 
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753 
 
Shirley L. Dawson, District III 
1400 E. Ash St.  Globe, AZ.  85501 
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8511 

 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
www.gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 
 

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.8761 

 
Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director 

Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743 
 

 
                                                FAX (928) 425-0319 

                        TTY:  7-1-1          
 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES  

CONTRACT NO. 1005.103/1-2011 
 

ELECTIONS OPERATIONS SERVICES 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 5th day of April, 2011, by and between the Gila 

County Board of Supervisors, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the 

County, and Elections Operations Services of the City of Glendale, County of Maricopa,State of Arizona, 

hereinafter designated the Consultant. 

 

WITNESSETH:  That the Consultant, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid him by the 

County, in the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements 

herein contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I – SCOPE OF SERVICES:   Work to be accomplished by Consultant will include consulting 

and technical expertise to provide election database programming, sample ballots, brochures, and ballot 

layout and printing in accordance with Arizona law.  More specifically, election services for each election 

shall include: 

 Database programming 

 Ballot layout and programming 

 Galley Proofs 

 Ballot Spanish Translation. 

 Rotation of Candidates 

 Official paper ballot styles, consecutively numbered, perforated, drilled, and padded as required 

 Official Ballot order preparation 

 Preliminary ballot order proofing 

 Printing Order Preparation 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/


         

Contract 1005.103/1-2011 Page 2 
 

 Delivery of test ballots to Secretary of State 

 Instructions to printer regarding printing, cutting, folding, and packaging of sample ballots, early ballots 

information report and/ or publicity pamphlet mailers 

 Delivery of Early Voter Ballots to County  

 Labeling of Sample Ballots 

 Delivery of Sample Ballots to mailing company 

 Conversion of Voter Registration files into appropriate mailing company formats 

 
See Attachment A for payment schedule. 
 

ARTICLE II – TERMINATION:  Contract shall terminate thirty (30) days after written notice is 

received by either party to the other.  Upon receipt of the notice, work in progress will be completed and 

any summaries and/or status reports shall be prepared and submitted, all within thirty (30) days.  The 

County’s financial obligation shall cover only the work performed up to the notice to terminate plus thirty 

(30) days, and not work completed thereafter. 

 

ARTICLE III - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE:  Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold 

harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as 

“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses 

(including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) 

(hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage 

to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 

willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 

subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the 

Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to any federal, state 

or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties 

that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts 

or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is 

agreed that Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs 

where this indemnification is applicable.  In consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor 

agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for 

losses arising from the work performed by the Contractor for the County. 

 
ARTICLE IV - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Consultant shall procure and maintain until all of their 

obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, 

insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection 

with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, or employees.   

The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the 

indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits 

contained herein are sufficient to protect the Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the 

performance of the work under this contract by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, or employees 

and Consultant is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary.  

 



         

Contract 1005.103/1-2011 Page 3 
 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Consultant shall provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The 
County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of 
the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Consultant". 

2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 
 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
3. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on 
a claims-made basis, Consultant warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall 
precede the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be 
maintained or an extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years 
beginning at the time work under this Contract is completed. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 

following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of 

Gila shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Consultant even if 

those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with 

respect to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Consultant shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 

indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this 

Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced 

in coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been 

given to the County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Birdie DeNero, Risk Management, 1400 E. 

Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 



         

Contract 1005.103/1-2011 Page 4 
 

D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  

The County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to 

protect the Consultant from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Consultant shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance 

(ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for 

each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 

behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to 

commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  

Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of 

renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Birdie DeNero, Risk Management, 

1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501.  The County project/contract number and project description shall 

be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to require complete, certified 

copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Consultants’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Consultant shall furnish to the County separate certificates and endorsements for 

each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements 

identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be 

made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal 

Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action.  

 

ARTICLE V – LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE:  Consultant hereby warrants that it will at 

all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to 

Consultant’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the 

“State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Consultant shall further ensure that each subcontractor who 

performs any work for Consultant under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal 

Immigration Laws.  County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Consultant 

and any subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration 

Laws.   

  
Any breach of Consultant’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 

Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 

Contract subjecting Consultant to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. 

If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Consultant 

shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have 



         

Contract 1005.103/1-2011 Page 5 
 

been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to Consultant 

approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project completion.   

 
 Consultant shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under 

this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 

  
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all 

federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 

23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to 

insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by 

Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties 

up to and including suspension or termination of this contract.”   Any additional costs attributable directly 

or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of Consultant. In the event that 

remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of Consultant’s 

approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable 

delay for which Consultant shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 

 

ARTICLE VI – LAWS AND ORDINANCES:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the 

State of Arizona.  Consultant shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and 

permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Consultant.  The Consultant shall 

comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 

12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act. 

 

ARTICLE VII – ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY:  Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the Consultant certifies 

that it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with 

the Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List. 

 

ARTICLE VIII – CANCELLATION:  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-

511.  If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered and 

accepted material received by the County before the effective date of termination. The Consultant shall be 

considered in default of this contract and such default will be considered as cause to terminate the contract 

for any of the following reasons if the Consultant: 

 
a. Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or data to assure 

completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 

b. Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to follow the Scope of Work; or 

c. Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 

d. Fails to resume work which has been discontinued within a reasonable time after notice to do so; 

or 

e. Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency; or 

f. Makes assignment for the benefit or creditors. 

g. If it is found gratuities were offered or given by the Consultant or any agent or representative of 

the Consultant, to any officer or employee of the County 



         

Contract 1005.103/1-2011 Page 6 
 

 

ARTICLE IX – TERM:  Contract period shall run for the 2011 two (2) year election cycle beginning 

January, 2011.  This period may be renewed by mutual agreement of the parties for one (1) additional two 

(2) year cycle. 

 

ARTICLE X – PAYMENT:  The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-

exceed without written authorization budget of   $ 225,000.00  .  Additional work, as authorized, will be 

performed on a Time and Materials basis per a mutually agreed upon fee between the County and the 

Consultant.   

 
Gila County employs a "Net 30" payment term meaning the payment will be issued thirty (30) days from the 

date the County receives the invoice from the Consultant.  Purchase orders sent to the Consultant reflect 

these terms and conditions and they apply to all invoices received by the County.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include 

original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the 

parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written. 

 
In return for the performance of the Contract by the Consultant, the County agrees to pay over the course 

of the two-year term, an amount of not more than    $ 225,000.00    including all applicable taxes through a 

payment schedule as described in Attachment A and as may be modified and executed by change orders. 



         

Contract 1005.103/1-2011 Page 7 
 

 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT NO. 1005.103/1-2011 

ELECTIONS OPERATIONS SERVICES 

 

GILA COUNTY:      CONSULTANT: 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                 ELECTIONS OPERATIONS SERVICES  

             

   

_________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor     William E. Doyle 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors    
  
       ________________________________________ 
       Print Name 
ATTEST:      
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard 
Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
For Daisy Flores, County Attorney 



         

Contract 1005.103/1-2011 Page 8 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 
 
Presidential Election 
$250 per precinct for two party election - Democrat and Republican 
$ 25 per precinct for each additional party 
Printing of Sample Ballots      Direct cost from printer 
Printing of Official Ballots      Direct cost from printer 
Mailing of Sample Ballots      Direct cost of postage 
Other shipping and postage costs     Direct cost of shipping or postage 
 
Primary Election 
$450 per precinct for two party election - Democrat and Republican 
$25 per precinct for each additional party 
Printing of Sample Ballots      Direct cost from printer 
Printing of Official Ballots      Direct cost from printer 
Mailing of Sample Ballots      Direct cost of postage 
Other shipping and postage costs     Direct cost of shipping or postage 
 
General Election 
$500 per precinct  
Printing of Sample Ballots      Direct cost from printer 
Printing of Official Ballots      Direct cost from printer 
Mailing of Sample Ballots      Direct cost of postage 
Other shipping and postage costs     Direct cost of shipping or postage 
 
Individual Jurisdiction Elections 
Service fees will vary depending on: the number of elections, the type of elections, the size of the election, 
the number of electors, the number and type of jurisdictional subdivisions, whether pamphlets must be 
created and translated, the size of the pamphlets to be created, the total number of pamphlets to be 
produced, the total number of ballots to be produced, whether the election is an all mail election or not: 
 
For jurisdiction elections with up to 2,500 registered voters, an 11” ballot, and 16 page 8.5 X 11 inch 
pamphlet, including the consulting, programming, ballot layout, pamphlet layout, conversion of VRAZ files 
for mailing company, translations, preliminary proofing pricing is not to exceed $5,900. 
 
For jurisdiction elections with between 2,500 and 7,500 registered voters, an 11” ballot, and 16 page 8.5 X 
11 inch pamphlet, including the consulting, programming, ballot layout, pamphlet layout, conversion of 
VRAZ files for mailing company, translations, preliminary proofing pricing is not to exceed $8,400. 
 
For jurisdiction elections with between 7,500 and 15,000 registered voters, an 11” ballot, and 16 page 8.5 X 
11 inch pamphlet, including the consulting, programming, ballot layout, pamphlet layout, conversion of 
VRAZ files for mailing company, translations, preliminary proofing pricing is not to exceed $13,800. 
 
Printing, mailing and shipping and postage costs for all jurisdiction elections will be billed as follows: 
Printing of Publicity Pamphlets      Direct cost from printer 
Printing of Official Ballots      Direct cost from printer 
Mailing of Publicity Pamphlets      Direct cost of postage 
Other shipping and postage costs     Direct cost of shipping or postage 



Executive Summary Form -- Professional Service Agreement 

 

 

Contract Name:  Elections Operations Services  Contract Number:  _1005.103/2-2011_ 

 

 
Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences)   

 

Services provided by Elections Operations Services are required in order to conduct elections in Gila 

County.  Services provided include consulting and technical assistance for each election; ballot layout, 

translation, preparation, and printing; elections database programming; creation, printing, and mailing of 

sample ballots. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contract  End Date:   12/31/2012    Renewal Option: XX Yes 

 

Maximum Dollar Limit:  $225,000.00       No 

 

Contact Information: 

 

Firm Name:     Elections Operations Services  Contact Person: William E. Doyle 

 

Address:   18986 N. 74
th

 Drive    Phone:  623-561-8346         

 

City:  Glendale   State: Arizona  Zip:  85308  Fax:  ________________________ 

 

Email:       eosbill1@cox.net  

   

 

Fund:       Professional Services - Elections     Type of Funds: 

             Restricted 

  Grant 

Fund Code:       1005.103.4210.91        XX General Fund 

  Other  

 
Special Notes:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







ARF-431     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Sadie

Tomerlin-Dalton
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Recorder's Office

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4-5-11- 4-4-14 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Sadie Tomerlin-Dalton 

Information
Request/Subject
Professional Services Contract No. 1005.120/2-2011 with US Imaging, Inc. for Microfilm
Storage Services for the Gila County Recorder's Office.

Background Information
Since 2007 the Recorder's Office has been using US Imaging to do all microfiche.  US Imaging
now offers secured microfilm storage and retrieval services.  The microfilm will be securely
stored and tracked in a computerized system.  This will ensure a secure and cost effective
document management system for the Gila County Recorder's Office.

Evaluation
US Imaging will provide storage and retrieval of 16mm microfilm jackets and/or 16mm
rollfilm at their secured records storage facility.  The microfilm will be tracked in a
computerized tracking system at all times.  Once files reach the end of their retention
schedule, US Imaging will contact the Recorder's Office to arrange an extension, pick up, or
destruction.

US Imaging has a detailed confidentiality policy which is strictly enforced.  All employees
shall be under non-disclosure agreements and have undergone a stringent background check.

Retrieval services are provided during regular hours as well as after hours for emergencies. 
Files/records can be shipped via UPS, e-mailed, or faxed. 

Conclusion
US Imaging's experienced staff will load the microfilm into new storage boxes; place content
and barcode tracking labels on all boxes and transport directly to the storage center.  Each
box will be indexed with the County name, document type, retention period, and rollfilm
numbers within each box.

 

Recommendation
The Gila County Recorder's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
Contract No. 1005.120/2-2011 with US Imaging, Inc. to provide secured storage document
management services for a period of three years.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract No.
1005.120/2-2011 between Gila County and US Imaging, Inc. whereby microfilm storage
services will be provided in the amount of $5,000 from April 5, 2011, through April 4, 2014. 
(Sadie Tomerlin-Dalton)

Attachments
Link: Contract 1005.120/2-2011
Link: Executive Summary













EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FORM   

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
 

 
Contract Name: 

 
Microfilm Storage Services 

 
Contract No.: 

 
1005.120/2-2011 

 
 
 

Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) 

US Imaging will provide secured storage and file retrieval of microfilm/rollfilm at their secured records storage 
facility.  The microfilm will be tracked on a computerized tracking system at all times.  US Image’s staff will load 
the microfilm into new storage boxes, place content and barcode tracking labels and transport directly to the 
storage center.  Retrieval services are provided during regular hours as well as after hours for emergencies.  
Files/records can be shipped via UPS, e-mailed, or faxed. 

 
 
Contract End Date: 

 
April 4, 2014 

 
Renewal Option: 

      
          Yes 

          No 
 
Maximum Dollar Limit: 

 
$5,000.00 

 
 
 

Contract Information 

 
Firm Name: 

 
US Imaging, Inc. 

 
Contact Person: 

 
Brent Blankenship 

 
Address: 

 
400 S. Franklin Street 

 
Phone No: 

 
 

 
City: 

 
Saginaw 

 
State: 

 
Michigan 

 
Fax: 

 
 

 
Email: 

 
 

 
 

 
Fund: 

 
General Fund 

 
Type of Funds: 

 
           Restricted 

              Grant 
Fund Code: 1005.120_4270.10             General Fund 

              Other 
 
 
 
 

Special Notes: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



ARF-445     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager

Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name: Don E.

McDaniel, Jr. 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution 11-04-02 - Renewal of Gila County's membership in the AZLGEBT and Appointing
Trustees.

Background Information
The Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust (AZLGEBT) is an employee benefits
consortium that is open to eligible rural Arizona counties. 

Formed effective July 1994, the Trust currently has six (6) member counties including
Apache, Graham, Greenlee, Gila, La Paz and Santa Cruz. Each participating entity appoints
two (2) Trustees to represent their entity with regards to Trust administration. Trustees meet
on a quarterly basis to collectively administer medical, prescription drug, dental, vision,
short-term disability and life insurance benefits for their employee populations.
Over the years, providing affordable health insurance has become a strenuous journey with
many hurdles. The combination of strict budget constraints and rising health care costs has
forced public entities to find innovative ways to maintain control of benefit costs while
simultaneously providing employees competitive benefits. AZLGEBT provides member entities
with a way to maintain a greater degree of control over their employee benefits programs
through the benefit of their collectively larger numbers. Benefits of AZLGEBT membership
include: 
• Enhanced financial security resulting from improved spread of risk over the larger group;
• Enhanced bargaining power when purchasing benefits-related products and services;
• Lower overhead for plan operations; and
• The ability to customize program offerings to meet specific needs and desires among the
members 

1)Gila County is currently a Participating Entity in the Arizona Local Government Employee
Benefit Trust and the County's current term of membership as a Participating Entity shall
expire on June 30, 2011. 
2)  Renewal of a Participating Entity's membership in the Trust requires approval by the
Trust's Board of Trustees prior to the proposed effective date of such renewal, which was
granted at the meeting of the Trust Board on February 11, 2011.
3)  Once the Trust Board approval is received, the Participating Entity is required to approve
a Membership Renewal Resolution authorizing the Participating Entity's membership for the
designated Renewal Period.
4)  The County's Board of Supervisors must appoint a Trustee and Alternate Trustee to serve
as the County's representative on the Trust Board as of the effective date of the Renewal
Period and until the appointment of a duly qualified successor.

Evaluation
The County's Board of Supervisors must appoint a Trustee and Alternate Trustees to serve as



The County's Board of Supervisors must appoint a Trustee and Alternate Trustees to serve as
the County's representative on the Trust Board as of the effective date of the Renewal Period
and until the appointment of a duly qualified successor.

Conclusion
Renewal of the County's membership in the Trust will serve the interests of the County and
its employees.

Recommendation
County Manager, Don McDaniel, recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize
renewal of Gila County's membership in the Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit
Trust and appointing Trustees to serve during the renewal period.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-02 authorizing renewal of Gila
County's membership in the Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust for the period
commencing July 1, 2011, and terminating on June 30, 2014; and appointing Don E.
McDaniel, Jr., Trustee, and John F. Nelson, Alternate Trustee, to serve on the Board of
Directors of the Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust from July 01, 2011, until
the appointment of a duly-qualified successor.
(Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-04-02









ARF-432     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department
Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4-5-11 to 4-4-12 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Professional Agreement No. 6557.102/12-2010 for a Technical Energy Audit to be performed by Arizona
Public Service Energy Services Company, Inc. (APSES).

Background Information
Arizona Public Service Energy Services Company, Inc. (APSES) will perform a complete investment
grade energy audit of the County's facilities and provide an Energy Audit Report.  Upon report
completion the final phase will be done which consists of the design and installation of the energy
conservation measures. 

Evaluation
Phases 1 through 3 of the audit consist of the collection of data, inspection of facilities, establishment of
base year energy consumption, the performance of a financial analysis of energy conservation measures
and preparation of a detailed Energy Audit Report.  

The 4th and final phase will be the design and installation of energy conservation measures described
and recommended in the Energy Audit Report.  If the County chooses to move forward with this phase
the Parties shall execute a construction agreement.  

If the County issues the Notice to Proceed in sixty calendar days from the receipt of the audit any costs
incurred for the audit will be included in the implementation costs of the energy conservation
measures.  If the County decides not to proceed with the final phase of the project the County shall pay
APSES $17,690 for the energy audit. 

Conclusion
The audit will provide a strategically formulated plan and specific recommendations where investments
in Energy Conservation Measures would provide a rapid payback in energy savings for Gila County.

Recommendation
Facilities and Land Management recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Contract No.
6557.102/12-2010 with Arizona Public Service Energy Services Company, Inc., to perform a Technical
Energy Audit for a period of one year.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Agreement No. 6557.102/12-2010 between Gila
County and Arizona Public Service Energy Services Company, Inc. (APSES), whereby APSES will
perform a technical energy audit for Gila County from April 5, 2011, to April 4, 2012.  
(Steve Stratton)

Attachments



Link: Executive Summary 
Link: Contract 6557.102/12-2010



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FORM   

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
 

 
Contract Name: 

 
Technical Energy Audit 

 
Contract No.: 

 
6557.102/12-2010 

 
 
 

Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) 
APSES (Arizona Public Service Energy Services Co.) will perform a complete investment grade energy audit of the 
county facilities and provide an Energy Audit Report.  Upon report completion the construction agreement 
phase will be executed at the county’s approval.  The audit will provide a strategically formulated plan and 
specific recommendations where investments in energy conservation measures would provide a rapid payback 
in energy savings for Gila County. 

 

 
 
Contract End Date: 

 
April 4, 2012 

 
Renewal Option: 

      
         Yes 

          No 
 
Maximum Dollar Limit: 

 
- 

 
 
 

Contract Information 

 
Firm Name: 

 
Arizona Public Service Energy Service Co. 

 
Contact Person: 

 
Leonard  Byrd 

 
Address: 

 
PO Box 53901 MS 1910 

 
Phone No: 

 
602-744-5000 

 
City: 

 
Phoenix 

 
State: 

 
AZ 

 
Fax: 

 
 

 
Email: 

 
leonard.byrd@apses.com 

 
 

 
Fund: 

 
ARRA Energy Efficiency Block - Facilities 

 
Type of Funds: 

 
           Restricted 

              Grant 
Fund Code: 6557.102             General Fund 

              Other 
 
 
 
 

Special Notes: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 











ARF-465     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- I     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 11/12 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

date of last signature - 9/30/2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Forest Service Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-014

Background Information
On September 30, 2009, Gila County and the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service
entered into Cooperative Forest Road Agreement No. 10-RO-11031200-006, which allows for the parties
to cooperate in improvements and maintenance of certain forest roads.  The Cooperative Agreement
allows for specific Project Agreements between the parties with the intent of completing work as
expeditiously as available funds or work opportunities allow.

Evaluation
It is important for the Board of Supervisors to approve Road Project Agreement
No. 11-RO-11031200-014, for a Roads Improvement Supplemental Project which will allow the Gila
County Public Works Division to provide chipsealing of FR 661, culvert installation on FR 423, and
erosion repair on FR 71.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this Forest Service Road Project Agreement No.
11-RO-11031200-014,  Gila County will be able to conduct this Roads Improvement Supplemental
Project to provide chipsealing of FR 661, culvert installation on FR 423, and erosion repair on FR 71.

This Agreement does not require any County matching funds. 

Recommendation
The Director of Public Works recommends that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve Road
Project Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-014 between the United States Department of Agriculture,
Forest Service, Tonto National Forest and Gila County to begin a Roads Improvement Supplemental
Project for the chipsealing of FR 661, culvert installation on FR 423, and erosion repair on FR 71.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Road Project Agreement (FS Agreement No.
11-RO-11031200-014) between the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto
National Forest and Gila County to begin a Roads Improvement Supplemental Project for the
chipsealing of FR 661, culvert installation on FR 423, and erosion repair on FR 71 at a total project
cost of $91,786.81.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Agreement



























ARF-472     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- J     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  

Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division
Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-04-05 School Crossing at U.S. 60

Background Information
For over twenty (20) years, there has been a known hazard for Globe students in the crossing of the
intersection of U.S. 60 at High Street near Globe High School.

Evaluation
The safety of the children of Globe has been compromised with a known hazard for over twenty (20)
years.  Signal lights or pedestrian signal lights are warranted for the crosswalk based on the Federal
Manual of Uniform Trasffic Control Devices (MUTCD).  The Arizona Department of Transportation
(ADOT) advises the Globe Unified School District that the school children should "choose adequate gaps
in traffic for their crossings". 

Conclusion
Based upon the documented increase in vehicular traffic on U.S. 60 at this location, there are no
"adequate gaps in traffic" for school children crossings.

Recommendation
Recommend to ADOT to install signalized pedestrian crossings, or, at a minimum, install the "HAWK
System" of flashing red lights operable by pedistrians, in order to create adequate gaps in traffic for safe
crossing in order to avoid death or serious physical injury to Globe students or citizens at this known
dangerous location.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-05 which calls upon the Arizona
Department of Transportation to install signalized pedestrian crossings, or, at a minimum, install the
"HAWK System" of flashing red lights operable by pedestrians, in order to create adequate gaps in
traffic for safe crossing in order to avoid death or serious physical injury to Globe students or citizens
at this known dangerous location. 
(Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-04-05



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-04-05 
       

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
CALLING UPON THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO 
INSTALL A SIGNALIZED PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALK ADJACENT TO THE 
GLOBE HIGH SCHOOL, OR AT A MINIMUM, INSTALL THE “HAWK 
SYSTEM” OF FLASHING RED LIGHTS OPERABLE BY PEDESTRIANS.   

 
WHEREAS, the safety of the children of Globe has been compromised by the inaction of the Arizona 
Department of Transportation (ADOT) to a known hazard for over twenty (20) years; and  
 
WHEREAS, signal lights or pedestrian signal lights are warranted for the crosswalk based on the Federal 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD); and 
 
WHEREAS, in a letter to the Globe Unified School District ADOT advises simply that the school 
children should "choose adequate gaps in traffic for their crossings"; and  
 
WHEREAS, based upon the documented increase in vehicular traffic on U.S. 60 at this location, there 
are no “adequate gaps in traffic” for school children crossings. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, do hereby 
call upon ADOT to install signalized pedestrian crossings, or, at a minimum, install the “HAWK System” 
of flashing red lights operable by pedestrians, in order to create adequate gaps in traffic for their safe 
crossing, forthwith and prior to the death or serious physical injury to Globe students or citizens at this 
known dangerous location. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution and supporting documentation be forwarded to the 
State Engineer. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



ARF-473     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- K     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-04-06 U.S. 60 Silver King Widening

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT)'s Five-Year Transportation Facilities Construction
Plan included reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior Streets sections.

Evaluation
The cities, towns, and unincorporated areas of Gila and Pinal Counties are concerned about the safety
of their citizens as well as those who may travel throughout the region.  The existing conditions of the
segments of U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior Streets have been proved to be an exceedingly dangerous
portion of the highway and hazardous for travelers.  ADOT has set aside and programmed funding for
these segments of U.S. 60 in FY 2013.

Conclusion
Several projects that do not have the critical safety implications as these segments of U.S. 60 have been
delayed instead.

Recommendation
Declare support to maintain the projects described in ADOT's Five-Year Transportation Facilities
Construction Program as reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior Streets
to begin no later than FY 2013 as originally programmed.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-04-06 which declares support to maintain
the projects described in the Arizona Department of Transportation's Five-Year Transportation Facilities
Construction Program as reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60, the Silver King and Superior
Streets sections, to begin no later than FY 2013 as originally programmed. (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-04-06



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 11-04-06  

       
A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DECLARING SUPPORT TO MAINTAIN THE PROJECTS DESCRIBED IN 
ADOT’S (ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION) FIVE YEAR 
TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM AS 
RECONSTRUCTION AND LANE ADDITIONS TO U.S. 60, THE SILVER KING 
AND SUPERIOR STREETS SECTIONS, TO BEGIN NO LATER THAN FISCAL 
YEAR 2013 (FY 2013) AS ORIGINALLY PROGRAMMED.    

 
WHEREAS, the cities, towns, and unincorporated areas of Gila and Pinal Counties are concerned about 
the safety of its citizens as well as those who may travel throughout the region; and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing conditions of the segments of U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior Streets have 
been proven to be an exceedingly dangerous portion of the highway and hazardous for travelers; and 
 
WHEREAS, ADOT has set aside and programmed funding for these segments of U.S. 60 in FY 2013; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, several projects that do not have the critical safety implications as these segments of U.S. 
60 have been delayed instead. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, do hereby 
declare support to maintain the projects described in ADOT’s Five Year Transportation Facilities 
Construction Program as reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60, the Silver King and Superior 
Streets sections, to begin no later than FY 2013 as originally programmed. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
   



ARF-461     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- L     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Submitted By: Mary Stemm, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information
Request/Subject
Proclamation No. 11-04, National Library Week, April 10-16, 2011

Background Information
National Library Week will be observed April 10-16, 2011 with the theme, "Create Your Own Story @ Your Library®."

First sponsored in 1958, National Library Week is a national observance sponsored by the American Library
Association (ALA) and libraries across the country each April. It is a time to celebrate the contributions of our
nation's libraries and librarians and to promote library use and support. All types of libraries - school, public,
academic and special - participate.

In the mid-1950s, research showed that Americans were spending less on books and more on radios, televisions
and musical instruments. Concerned that Americans were reading less, the ALA and the American Book Publishers
formed a nonprofit citizens organization called the National Book Committee in 1954. The committee's goals were
ambitious. They ranged from "encouraging people to read in their increasing leisure time" to "improving incomes and
health" and "developing strong and happy family life." 

In 1957, the committee developed a plan for National Library Week based on the idea that once people were
motivated to read, they would support and use libraries. With the cooperation of ALA and with help from the
Advertising Council, the first National Library Week was observed in 1958 with the theme "Wake Up and Read!"

National Library Week was observed again in 1959, and the ALA Council voted to continue the annual celebration.
When the National Book Committee disbanded in 1974, ALA assumed full sponsorship.

Evaluation
National Library Week has been celebrated annually since 1958. Public libraries throughout Gila County recognize
National Library Week.
 
This year begining with National Library Week we would like to roll out a new national awareness campaign for
libraries: GEEK the Libraries of Gila County.

The Geek the Library public awareness campaign can help you tell your library’s story, while engaging the public to
join the local public library funding discussion. Over time, this campaign can help significantly increase community
awareness about the value of the library and how the library is funded—leading to the support your library needs
when it counts!

Most people don’t know how public libraries are funded. And many claim that they would support the library at the
ballot box, but fewer are firmly committed to it. Moreover, research indicates that a community?centered public
awareness campaign—one that uses similar strategies to many super brands—could be an effective approach to help
reverse the current downward funding trend.

Geek the Library features local educational material that introduces ‘geek’ as a verb, and encourages the public to
talk about what they ‘geek’—whether it’s engineering, superheroes or art. The public awareness campaign illustrates
the fact that everyone is passionate about something—everyone ‘geeks’ something—and that the library supports
them all.

Conclusion
As the economic downturn slowly recovers, millions of Americans are turning to local libraries for educational
opportunities, job searching resources and entertainment. The increased demand for library services is taking a toll
on libraries already experiencing flat or decreasing budgets. And state and local cuts are impacting public library
hours, programs and staffing, forcing some libraries to close
indefinitely.

While most people have visited their public library and understand its important role in their community, many do
not know that libraries are at risk or that local funding for libraries is heavily influenced by community members.

This public awareness campaign hopes to start a conversation about library funding to inspire more people to



This public awareness campaign hopes to start a conversation about library funding to inspire more people to
take personal responsibility for keeping their local public libraries vital in their communities. The campaign will not
support or oppose any candidate for public office, nor attempt to influence legislation.

Recommendation
The Gila County Library District staff recommends that all residents of Gila County visit their public library during
National Library Week to discover all libraries have to offer and to discover what they GEEK most.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors)  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 11-04 to proclaim National Library
Week, April 10-16, 2011, in Gila County.  (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
Link: National Library Week 2011



PROCLAMATION NO. 11-04

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY,
ARIZONA, PROCLAIMING NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK, APRIL 10-16,2011.

WHEREAS, libraries provide free access to all - from books and online resources for families to library
business centers that help support entrepreneurship and retraining; and

WHEREAS, our nation's school, academic, public and special libraries make a difference in the lives of
millions of Americans today, more than ever; and

WHEREAS, librarians are trained professionals, helping people of all ages and backgrounds find and interpret
the information they need to live, learn and work in a challenging economy; and

WHEREAS, libraries are helping level the playing field for job seekers, with 88% of public libraries providing
access to job databases and other online resources; and I

I
WHEREAS, libraries are places of opportunity providing programs that teach all forms of literacy, promoting
continuing education and encouraging lifelong learning; and

WHEREAS, in times of economic hardship, Americans turn to - and depend on - their libraries and librarians;
and

WHEREAS, libraries, librarians, library workers and supporters across America are celebrating National
Library Week with this year's national theme being "Create Your Own Story @ Your Library."

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the members of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, do
hereby proclaim National Library Week, April 10-16-,2011. We encourage all residents to visit the library this
week to take advantage of the wonderful library resources available @ your library. Create your own story @
your library.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April 2011.

ATTEST: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Marian Sheppard
Chief Deputy Clerk

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman

Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman

Shirley L. Dawson, Member



ARF-464     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- M     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Submitted By: Mary Stemm, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011-June 30, 2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information
Request/Subject
First Things First Grant Renewal for Community-Based Literacy / July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Background Information
The Gila County Library District's "First Things First Community-Based Literacy Grant" is eligible for a program
renewal by extending the current grant award from July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012. This is a reimbursement
grant in the amount of $85,000. The program renewal for  2011-2012 cannot be different in scope from the original
grant award in 2010-2011.  Application must be submitted by April 6, 2011, in order to be eligible for funding. The
original deadline from First Things First for this renewal was March 25, 2011; however, the Gila County Library
District asked for, and received an extension of the deadline to April 6, 2011, to accommodate our meeting time line.

Evaluation
The current Early Literacy Grant from "First Things First" has been highly successful in providing curriculum
materials and educational training to the libraries in the service area for their use in programming and training for
parents.  Additionally, library staff have heard only positive comments regarding providing training to parents on the
importance of early literacy skills and the importance of reading to their children.  At this time, 900 children ages
birth to five are enrolled in this program and receive books each month to foster the importance of reading, the six
pre-reading skills, and provide parents with material to read each month.  The public libraries are continuing to
tailor and adapt programming geared at these ages, to encourage families to expand the reading opportunity by
visiting the library and borrowing other books to read.

Conclusion
Of all the programs that the Gila County Library District administers, fosters, or promotes, this grant gives staff the
opportunity to reach the most residents, and creates a climate and culture to develop the pre-reading skills
necessary for literacy in children.  The grant renewal has a new goal of enrolling 1,800 children in this program.

Recommendation
The Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors approve this renewal for the First Things
First Community-Based Literacy Grant for the amount of $85,000.00 for Fiscal Year July 1, 2011, through June 30,
2012.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the renewal application on behalf of the Gila County Library District for
the "First Things First Community-Based Literacy Grant" (FTF-RC004-11-0272-01) in the amount of $85,000 for
fiscal year July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012. (Jacque Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library
District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments
Link: email verification of deadline extension
Link: Grant Renewal FTF Community-based Literacy 2011- 2012



Griffin.Jac9.u_e _
Subject: FW: First Things First Renewal Consideration -Gila Regional Partnership Council-Community

Based Training

From: Griffin, Jacque
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2011 3:38 PM
To: 'Jeanne Weeks'
Cc: Hazel Chandler; Marla Chamberlain
Subject: RE: First Things First Renewal Consideration -Gila Regional Partnership Council-Community Based Training

Jeanne,
Yes we can make that deadline, and thank you for your consideration.

Jacque

From: Jeanne Weeks [mailto:jweeks@azftf.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2011 3:14 PM
To: Griffin, Jacque
Cc: Hazel Chandler; Marla Chamberlain
Subject: RE: First Things First Renewal Consideration -Glla Regional Partnership Council-Community Based Training

Hello Jacque,
I understand yours requirements/deadlines with the BaS. Would you be able to turn your materials in by 3:00pm on
April 6th? Please let me know.
Thanks,

Jeanne Weeks
Sr. Grants and Contracts Procurement Specialist

jweeks@azftf.gov
Direct: 602-771-5084

1



FIRST THINGS FIRST NOTICE OF RENEWAL CONSIDERATION

TO: First Things First Grantees

FROM: Jeanne Weeks
Grants and Contracts Procurement Specialist

RE: Renewal Information

DATE: March 2, 2011

Your current grant program is approaching renewal consideration from First Things First Gila Regional
Partnership Council,

Receipt of this packet does not guarantee renewal of your agreement; it indicates that you are eligible
for renewal consideration. First Things First may award programs based on a number of factors
including past performance and response to this renewal package.

Should you be renewed, you will continue to be responsible for adherence to the terms and conditions
as set forth in the original Request for Grant Application (RFGA) or grant agreement. This includes
adherence to the appropriate standards of practice, program and financial requirements, and timely
submission of data, narrative, and financial reports.

Attached please find the Renewal Package for First Things First Grant Programs. The Renewal Package
Cover Page includes information on the following Attachments:
• Attachment A - Narrative response to First Things First questions related to implementation and

data collection
• Attachment B - Implementation Plan
• Attachment C - Budget and Budget Narrative
• Attachment D - Key Personnel
• Attachment E- Disclosure of Other Funding
• Attachment F- Standard First Things First Information Form and Authorized Renewal Submission

Signature

Once renewal applications are submitted and reviewed, recommendations for funding will be made to
the Gila Regional Partnership Council and Board of First Things First. First Things First staff may contact
you for clarifications prior to making recommendations to the Regional Partnership Council and/or
Board of First Things First. Contracts will be in effect from July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012. All other
rules and regulations, and special terms and conditions from awarding RFGA or grant agreement will
remain in effect for the contract period.

Renewal applications must be received by March 25, 2011 by 3:00 pm and submitted to me via email,
by mail to 4000 N. Central Avenue, Suite 800, Phoenix, AZ 85012 or by fax (602)265-0009. Please
contact me if you have any questions at jweeks@azftf.gov or by telephone at (602) 771-5084.

Thank you and I look forward to reviewing your renewal package.



First Things First
Grant Renewal Package Instructions

July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Renewal Instructions
Your First Things First grant is eligible for a program renewal by extending the current grant award from
July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012. Programs proposed for 2011-2012 cannot be different in scope than
the current grant award.

Grantee Name: Gila County Library District
First Things First Award FTF-RC004-11-0272-01
Number:
Strategy Name: Community-based Literacy
Standards of Practiced • SOP Literacy
Assigned:
Renewal Funding Eligible $85,000.00
Amount:

The renewal package does include narrative information as well as required forms as outlined in the
following attachment sections:

Program Implementation Narrative: (Attachment A) Please provide a narrative response to the
questions found in this Attachment.

Program Implementation Plan: (Attachment Form B) Please provide an updated implementation plan
for your program for 2011- 2012. The implementation plan should be related to the originally approved
program activities, tasks, data collection, data submission, and process. Please use any necessary
narrative to further describe your program implementation (Question 2).

2011-2012 Budget Forms (Attachment C- must include line item budget and narrative):

• Line Item Budget Form
• Budget Narrative Explanation

Key Personnel/Staff Overview: (Attachment Form D) Please list all staff that will be paid from this grant
program during the 2011-2012 grant cycle. This should match your line item budget and budget
narrative. Submit resumes and/or staff change notification forms for new staff or those that have not
yet been submitted to First Things First previously. The staff change notification form is located under
the Grantee Resources folder on the PGMS home page.

Disclosure 0/Other Funding Sources (Attachment E) - List any other funding utilized for this program
administered by your agency.

First Things First Standard Information and Authorized Signature (Attachment Form F): Please
complete all three sections detailing:

• The legal applicant
• The main, program, financial and evaluation contact information - these contacts should be

what you want identified for this grant award in First Things First's Partner Grant
Management System (PGMS)

• The program Target Service Unit(s) assigned for the strategy assigned by First Things First

2



and your implementation Target Service Number(s) to be served/completed in 2011-2012
and any additional Target Service Units(s) and Number(s) needed for your program
implementation for 2011- 2012.

• The program description - brief summary to be used for public descriptions of First Things
First funded programs

• Authorized Renewal Submission Signature

Standards of Practice Updates: Any updates to the Standards of Practice related to the scope of work
for your award can be found when you log into Partners Grant Management System (PGMS) under
Grantee Resources. Updated Standards of Practice are part of the requirements for the award and
implementation of your grant program. Please take a moment to make sure you have reviewed the
latest Standards of Practice. The Standards of Practice represent First Things First's intent for the
implementation of this strategy. Grantees that cannot meet the identified standards must state so
clearly in writing and justify the reasoning, and identify how the grantee is moving toward meeting the
standard. First Things First will respond as to whether a waiver of any part of the Standards of Practice
shall be approved.

Model Programs that Require Certification and Accreditation: It is the grantee's responsibility to
maintain accreditation/certification with national program models. Grantees are to include staff
training, program model accreditation/certification and quality assurance and evaluation costs in
budgets, as needed. Programs will need to refer to their National office and/or administrative home for
cost information, if applicable.

Compliance with State and Federal Law: As a reminder, all other state rules, regulations, and special
terms and conditions will remain in effect for the contract period. This renewal application information
becomes part of the agreement and expectations for program implementation and performance. A
complete listing of the state uniform terms and conditions can be found via the State Procurement
Office website at: http://spo.az.gov/Admin Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp. Additionally, First Things
First will post any important grantee requirement and updated Communications Protocol information
under the Grantee Resources section of PGMS.

Grantees must maintain compliance with the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all
other federal immigration laws and regulations related to the immigration status of its employees.
These warranties shall remain in effect through the term of the agreement. Grantees will also maintain
Employment Eligibility Verification forms (1-9) as required by the U.S. Department of Labor's Immigration
and Control Act for all employees performing work under the agreement. 1-9 forms are available for
download at USCIS.GOV.

First Things First may request verification for any Contractor or subcontractor performing work under
the agreement. Should FTF suspect or find that a grantee is not in compliance with state or federal laws,
First Things First may pursue any and all remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to:
suspension of work, termination of the agreement for default and suspension and/or debarment of the
grantee. All costs necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility ofthe grantee.

Data Security: All grantees must have a data security policy in force, which identifies how the
organization ensures that data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from
inappropriate access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction.

All grantees subject to HIPAA, FERPA,GITA, or other data regulation, are required to submit and
maintain those approvals for all data. If HIPAA, FERPAor other data regulation requires that
participating individuals give consent to data collection on their person and if in the course of regular

3



data submissions to FTFsuch data will be provided to FTF, submission of personal data to FTF must be
reflected in all data regulation documents.

Program Performance: First Things First provides program information to the public, Regional
Partnership Councils, and the Board of First Things First. The information regularly provided to the
Regional Partnership Councils and Board of First Things First will include proposed renewal information,
submission of data related to performance measures and target service units, prior program
implementation performance information, program narrative information, and financial information.
Regional Councils utilize this information as part of the elements necessary to continue strategic
planning that is demonstrated in priorities for annual Funding Plans, renewal decisions, development of
new or modified strategies, review of the impact that program implementation has had in the region
and state as well as achievement of system building.

Renewal Package Due Date: Renewal Package must be received by March 25,2011 at 3:00 p.m. and
submitted via mail, fax or email to:

Jeanne Weeks
Grants and Contracts Procurement Specialist
jweeks@azftf.gov
(602) 771-5084
(602) 265-0009 (Fax)

Please contact your assigned Finance Division staff member if you have any questions about your
Renewal Package.

4



Attachment A
Program Implementation Questions

Please provide a narrative response to the questions below. To ensure that you are not
changing the scope of work of your original grant, you must use the same programs and/or
strategies as described in your original proposal, unless you have obtained prior approval.

1. (Complete A, B, and/or C as appropriate)

a) If your program received approved modifications, please describe those
modifications and how they will continue to be implemented in 2011-2012.

We have not received approved modifications to our existing program; however
we are going to be proposing a few changes in our current year's budget in order to
expand our capacity to reach children and families. Our proposed changes are in
keeping with the overall goals and focus of the grant. We would like to contract for
additional services to collect baseline data from all of the Kindergarten Classes that
relates to the number of students at the beginning of this current school year who
did not have the early literacy - pre-reading skills. Our plan is to collect this
information on a yearly basis, in an effort to see if the objective of reducing the
number of kindergartners who are lacking the pre-reading skills necessary to learn to
read is actually decreasing.

We will be asking to purchase an additional three full sets of Brain Boxes, as well
as two partial sets of just the "Infant and Babies" portion of the collection
(approximately $7,000.00). This will allow us to loan out Brain Boxes for curriculum
use at the two WIC Offices, the two "[amities in crisis" centers and the Pregnancy
Clinics within the county. We are also proposing the purchase of "Early Learning
Stations" (children's literacy computers) for six of the libraries in the service area, in
order to expand the literacy learning opportunities within the libraries and provide
an additional resource to parents and early learners (approximately $6,000.00). The
seventh library (Globe) has already received a small grant to obtain one of these
early learning stations. They are being successfully used in other communities to
broaden the early learning opportunities that the local libraries offer their
communities.

b) If you have proposed modifications moving forward, please describe how they will
enhance program implementation and/or why they are necessary for the program
to be successful in 2011-2012.

Moving forward into the new fiscal year, we are planning on just a few important
modifications to the program. First, since we have already heavily focused on
training opportunities for library staff and other agency staff to understand and
present information on the importance of early reading skills, we are not including
training for library staff in 2011-2012. Enough staff at each library is trained in this
area, and since much of the training was in the format of "Train the Trainer" we
believe we can internally provide the training for the staff/volunteers who require it.
Additionally, we feel that, with our proposed modifications to the existing year's

5



plan, we will have enough programming aids in the form of Brain Boxes and Early
Learning Centers, and we are not planning on additional materials purchases for the
coming program year.

We plan to modify the program by providing funds from this grant to each
community library so that they can, in turn, contract with individuals in each
community to provide outreach, advocacy, program promotion and parent training
to expand the program to reach our goal of enrolling 60% of the children from ages
birth to five years within the service area. The amount of funding available to each
library will vary depending on the size of the community served. These local
outreach advocates will provide 75-100% of the contracted services in the first
quarter of the fiscal year to boost enrollment numbers in order to provide the
maximum number of books to the children enrolled. Subsequently they could provide
a minimum number of community outreach opportunities in the second quarter of
the fiscal year. Our plans include having them contact each local church and follow
up with an individual literacy event at each location, if allowed. They will also be
asked to find local opportunities where parents and caregivers gather to present the
training information, as well as contact each local elementary school and ask to
participate in the beginning of school open houses, parent nights and other events.

c) If there are no modifications or no planned modifications, please indicate no
modifications necessary and provide a brief description of the existing program
implementation as proposed in Question 2.

2. Please provide a brief narrative description of your proposed program that will be
implemented in 2011-2012. This description should match information provided in your
Implementation Plan (Attachment B) and explain anything from the Implementation
Plan needing additional description.

Expand the existing early literacy program that provides training to parents
about the importance of early literacy development for young children birth through age
five. Incorporate Brain Boxes into children's programming in all public libraries. Add
Brain Boxes to be used at WIC Clinics, Family CrisisShelters, and Pregnancy Clinics in
order to reach more parents with the message of the importance of early literacy.
Existing Library District and local library staff will provide any additional training for staff
/ volunteers on both the early literacy program and the incorporation of Brain Boxes in
to programming at the various locations they will be on loan at.

During the first quarter of the fiscal year, each library will contract with a part
time, local advocacy and outreach person to expand opportunities to reach additional
children in each community (as briefly explained in the earlier question).

As an incentive and reward, each month, each child enrolled in the early literacy
program will continue to receive a book in the mail addressed to the child until they
reach the age of five.

3. An additional $40,000 has been provided related to increased services, please describe
how you will reach an anticipated 1,800 children and their families with early literacy
information and book distribution. Your implementation plan (Attachment B) should
include staffing and/or consultants that will provide outreach in the various

6



communities in the region to reach children and their families that have not previously
been reached through the current program.

We plan to allow each local library to contract with an advocacy-outreach
consultant in each community to search out and find parents/caregivers of children
age's birth to five years of age, not currently enrolled in the book program, in order
to spread the message of the importance of early literacy and reach our goal of
enrolling 1,800 children. The amount of funding available to each library will vary
depending on the size of the community served. These local outreach advocates will
be required to attend a mandatory planning, brainstorming and training session to
ensure that everyone is adequately trained and to expand ideas for reaching parents
and children. They will provide 75-100% of the contracted services in the first quarter
of the fiscal year to boost enrollment numbers in order to provide the maximum
number of books to the children enrolled. Subsequently they could provide a
minimum number of community outreach opportunities in the second quarter of the
fiscal year. Our plans include having them contact local churches, schools, and area
service organizations to expand our contact with parents and enrollment of children
in the book program. They will also be asked to find additional local opportunities to
present the training information. This line item will account for $30,000. The
balance of the increase, along with the shift from training and curriculum materials,
will expand our capacity to provide more books to children.

4. Please describe current and ongoing plans for data collection and submission, including
how your program is using data to promote optimal service and ongoing improvement.

We plan to hire a contract individual to continue the data collection from the
area Kindergarten teachers after the start of next school year. We will be collecting this
data annually in an effort to see if our program is truly increasing the number of
kindergarteners that have the prereading skills necessary when they enter kindergarten.

We plan to mail out a letter that includes a stamped post card survey during the
final quarter of the grant year, to each family enrolled in the book program. The survey
will consist of a few (three or four) questions that address changed behavior with regard
to reading to their children, their opinion with regard to increased skills of their children,
and their overall satisfaction with this program.

Finally, we will be surveying the library staff and the area partners to collect data
regarding the number of programs provided for preschool age children and parents that
utilize the training and/or materials obtained through this ongoing grant, the number of
children utilizing the Early Learning Computer Stations in the libraries, whether or not
the libraries are experiencing an increase in library use from the target populations
(families with young children), and their overall satifaction with this program.
Additionally, we will be collecting anectodal stories regarding families and children
enrolled in this program and their comments.

7



Attachment B
2011- 2012 Implementation Plan

Activities Task Person Responsible Date Task Will Be Support Documentation
Completed/Timeline

Mandatory meeting between GClD One Contract person July 2011
Promotion of Early Literacy library Director and Consultants to per community TBA and
Programming in Gila County Registration plan the promotion of Early literacy Jacque Griffin
of Children into Imagination Library Programming

Register Children for Imagination One Contract person July 2011 thru
Library per community TBA October 2011
locate Venues for Reaching Children One Contract person July 2011 thru
Whose parents don't come to library per community TBA October 2011

Input Imagination Library Registrations Mary Stemm Monthly
into Dollywood Foundation Site Data Input for new registrations

Mary Stemm Monthly
Data updates for change of address

Mary Stemm Monthly
NCOAA Alerts for "Bad" addresses

Invoicing Process invoices for book orders from Mary Stemm Monthly
Dollywood Foundation Imagination
library
Process all other invoices for Early Mary Stemm As the need arises
literacy programming
Input Paid Invoices to First Things Mary Stemm Monthly
First

Data / Narrative Reports Upload Narrative Report to First Mary Stemm Quarterly
Things First
Upload Data Report to FTF Mary Stemm Monthly

Evaluation Poll Kindergartens in all public Evaluator (yet to be September 2011
schools for number of children not determined)
prepared for enrollment.

Survey Mail Survey to parents during 4th qtr. Mary Stemm April 2011
Train parents/caregivers by attending Jacque Griffin, Mary As often as possible

Early Literacy Training parent meetings of various Stemm, Consultants when the occasions
community entities during the year a rise
Train parents/caregivers by video Jacque Griffin/WIC Weekly
presentation at WIC Clinics and take Clinic Employees
new registrations for Imagination
Library
Continue one on one training Public librarians, Daily as the need
w/parents Consultants arises

8



Attachment C

STANDARD LINE ITEM BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS

While you must use this format, you may reproduce it with Word Processing or Spreadsheet
software. Limit your budget line items to the following categories: Personnel, Fringe Benefits,
Professional Services, Travel, Pass-Through (i.e., Sub grants), Other Operating Expenses and
Administrative/Indirect Costs and to the budget subcategories listed.

As shown, a line item budget justification for each component must be included and describe
the procedure for determining the cost of budget categories in the budget narrative. Detail in
the line item budget narrative strengthens the items requested in the line item budget by
describing how the cost was determined, the benefit of the item to the program and the how
the item is essential for the program's success.

Please keep in mind that requested funds must follow the original scope of work and must
follow the basic guidelines for grantees related to allow ability of costs that demonstrate
reasonableness for the project and are necessary for the successful implementation of the
program. Items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative
should describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related to
the project's implementation. Please assure that all requested funds follow these guidelines:

• Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of
First Things First funds.

• Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations.
• Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs

charged and expended by the agency - consistent treatment of costs.
o For example - a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect

cost if any other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has
been allocated to the First Things First award as a direct cost.

o For example - a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another
source of funding and a different rate to First Things First.

• Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
• Be adequately documented.

9



Attachment C - Line Item Budget

Budget Period: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Budget Category line Item Description Requested Funds Total Cost

PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total $
Salaries

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $
Fringe Benefits or Other ERE

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES Professional and Outside Services Sub $SO,400.00
Total

Contracted Services Dollywood Foundation 50,400.00
Imagination Library Books

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $40S.00

In-State Travel Various travel in-state for liaisons $253.51
Out of State Travel Various travel in-state for $151.49

evaluator
AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total $31,500.00

Sub-grants or Subcontracts to Program Promoters 30,000.00
organizations/agencies/entities Evaluator 1.500.00
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $2695

• Telephones/Communications Services
• Internet Access
• General Office Supplies Paper, envelopes, postcards for 470.00 470.00

• Food survey

• Rent/Occupancy

• Evaluation (non-contracted and non-personnel
expenses)

• Utilities

• Furniture Shipping 15.00 15.00

• Postage Postage for surveys 1,020.00 1,025.00

• Software (including IT supplies)

• Dues/Subscriptions
5000 Registration Brochures

• Advertising
685.00 685.00

English for Imagination Library• Printing/Copying Printing surveys 500.00 500.00
• Equipment Maintenance

• Professional Development/Staff Training
• Conference Workshops/ Training Feesfor Staff

• Insurance

• Program Materials

• Program Supplies
• Scholarships
• Program Incentives
NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total $

Equipment $4,999 or less in value

Subtotal Direct Program Costs: $

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect $
Indirect/Admin Costs $ $

Total $ $85,000.00

10



Attachment C (Continued)

BUDGET NARRATIVE EXPLANATION

The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget
line items. The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures
on the budget form (Attachment C Line Item Budget). Please verify that the narrative and
budget form correspond and the calculations and totals are accurate. Please include one
narrative for your Line Item Budget of 12months. Limit your budget categories and
subcategories to those listed.

NOTE: Briefly highlight any changes to your budget from the previous Fiscal Year, particularly
those line items where your budget has increased. If the total funds available under this
contract have increased from the previous year, only one description of the sum of budget
increases is needed.

Professional and Outside Services: If professional consultants/services costs are proposed in
the budget, define how the costs for these services were determined and the justification for
the services related to the project. Explain how all contracts will be procured.

Gila County Library District will continue to contract with the Dollywood Foundation Imagination
Library to supply a book a month by mail to any child registered in the program. Rate of $28.00
per child with a goal of 1800 (60%) equals $50,400.00.

Travel: Separate travel that is in state and out-of-state. Include a detailed breakdown of hotel,
transportation, meal costs, etc. Indicate the location(s) of travel, the justification for travel,
how many employees will attend and how the estimates have been determined. Explain the
relationship of each cost item to the project (e.g., if training or training expenses are requested,
explain the topic of the training and its relationship to the project). Applicants must use the
State of Arizona Travel Policy limitations on rates for mileage, lodging, and meals
(http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/ for both in state and out-of-state travel.

Travel monies will be set aside for the liaisons to travel from their communities to Globe in order
to meet with the Gila County Library Director to complete plans for the awareness campaign
and to insure that there is a unified message presented to the prospective parents/caregivers.

Strawberry to Globe
Payson to Globe
Young to Globe

99.8
81.3

Round trip 199.6 @ 44.5 per mile = $88.82
Round trip 162.6 @ 44.5 per mile = $72.36
66.9 Round trip 133.8 @ 44.5 per mile = $59.54

11



Hayden to Globe
Total

37.3 Round trip 74.6 @ 44.5 per mile = $ 33.19
$253.91

Travel for the evaluator to travel to each school and meet with Kindergarten teachers will be
approximately 340.43 miles @ 44.5 per mile = 151.49
Total for this line item is $405.00

Aid to Organizations or Individuals: In the event that this includes collaboration and the
contract will be utilizing other sub grantees or subcontractors to perform various components
ofthe program, include a list of sub grantees, programmatic work each sub grantee will
perform, and how costs for each sub grantee are determined.

Funds will be distributed to the libraries of the communities of Young, Hayden/Winkelman,
Tonto Basin/Roosevelt, Globe/Miami, and Payson in order to have each library contract with a
liaison from their community that knows their community best. The liaisons will be paid by each
library at a rate of $20.00 per hour to conduct outreach to the community. $30,000.00 will be
divided as follows:
Budgeted amount for Community liaisons
Young $ 1,800
Hayden/Winkelman $ 2,500
Tonto Basin/Roosevelt $ 2,500
Pine/Strawberry $ 2,500
Globe/Miami $ 9,000
Payson $llJOO
Total $30,000

An evaluator will be contracted with at the rate of $20.00 hour in order to conduct a survey of
all the Kindergarten teachers at the schools to find out how many children entered school in
August 2011 unprepared for reading readiness. $1,500 is set aside for this.
Total for this line item is $31,500.00.

Other Operating Expenses: Explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined
and justify the need for the items. All purchases should be made through competitive bid or
using established purchasing procedures. All items should be categorized in the following
categories:

General Office Supplies: Paper, envelopes, postcards for 1500 4thquarter survey of parents is
$470.00
Postage/Shipping: Shipping for registration forms is estimated at $15.00.
Postage for 1500 surveys for parents estimated at $1020.00
5000 Registration forms for Dollywood Foundation Imagination Library will cost $685.00.
Printing 1500 surveys is estimated at $500.00
Total $2695.00

12



Attachment D

KEY PERSONNEL OVERVIEW

STAFF MEMBER BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL
Name:
Title: N/A: per directions on page 2 of this renewal package, no staff or personnel
FTE on this project: will be paid from this grant program during the 2011-2012 cycle.

Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:
Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:
Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:
Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:
Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:

*In addition to this overview, please attach a resume (for current personnel if not previously
submitted to First Things First) or a job description (for positions to be hired and not
previously submitted to First Things First) for the key individuals involved in the project.

13



Attachment F

FIRST THINGS FIRST STANDARD INFORMATION FORM AND AUTHORIZED
RENEWAL SUBMISSION SIGNATURE

A. Agency Information:

Program Name (if applicable) First Things First Community Based Early Language and Literacy

Agency Gila County Library District Contact Person Jacque Griffin

Address _----"'1c...:.4""00"-'=-E.:...;A""sh~St'__ _ Position __ ---=Li.=.b:..>ra"-ry>-=D.:.=:is.>.:.tr.:..:ic:..>.t-"'D.:..:.ir.=.e""ct'-"o.:...r_

Address _ Email __ ---LCig"-!ri.!..!ff.:..:.in'-"@o;..;c"-'o'-".g"'i""lac.:..>.a:..:z.:..::.u""s_

City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501 Phone 928-402-8770 x__ Fax 928-425-3462

County_G~ila~ _ Employer Identification Number: 86-6000444

Agency Classification: __ State Agency _X __ County Government __ Local Government __ Schools Tribal

Faith Based Other

If any of your agency's vendor information has changed, an updated Substitute W-9 Form is necessary to change payment information.
http://www.gao.az.gov/onlineforms/forms/AZ subw-9 010410.pdf

In which Congressional (Federal) District is your agency?
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps)

Enter District # 1

In which Legislative (State) District is your agency?
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps)

Enter District # 5

Approximately how much FEDERAL funding (from a Federal Source) will your organization expend in your current fiscal year?

$ 0.00

What is your organization's fiscal year-end date? ---'J""u.!..!n>=.e.><3"'-0_

Accounting Method: Cash _ X__ Accrual

Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?0 N

Please provide contact information of the audit firm conducting your audit:

Agency Miller Alan & Company, PC

Address 5333 N 7tlI St. Suite 100, Phoenix, AZ 85014

Phone Number 602-264-3888

15



Email jgriffin@co.gila.az.us

Phone _....::9~2:..:::8'--4.!..!0~2=---8~7'-"7'-"0~ x Fax 928-425-3462

Program Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the
Program contact for this grant award.

Contact Person _--'-M:..:..a:::..:r..J..y...:..A..:...;s:::..:t=e.:...:.m.:..:..m'-'-- _

Position Library Assistant Senior

Address 1400 E Ash St

City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501

Email mstemm@gcldaz.org

Phone_~9~2~8'--4~0~2=---~87~6~8~ .x Fax_~9=2=8~-4=2~5~-3~4~6=2~ _

Financial Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the
Financial contact for this grant award.

Contact Person __ ..!.:M~a~ry~S~te:::.!m.!.!.!.!.m~ _

Position __ !::.!Li::!..b!..!:ra:.!.ry.L..!..'A~ss""'is"_!t~a!.!.nt"_'S"_!e:.!.n!.!.:io:::..:r _

Address_~1~4~0~0~E~A~s~h~S~t _

City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501

Email mstemm@gcldaz.org

Phone_~9~2=8-~4=0=2-~8~7=6~8 x Fax__ ~9=2~8-~4=2~5-~3~4~62~ _

Evaluation Contact Information - This should be information for the evaluation contact
person within the grant awarded.

Contact Person _--'-M!.!.a:::..:r..J..y-=S:..o.te:::.:m~m"'-- _

Position Library Assistant Senior

Address 1400 E Ash St.

City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501

17

Chief Deputy, County Attorney

18



ARF-451     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Daisy Flores,

County Attorney
Submitted By: Donna Puhara, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7/1/11 to 6/30/12 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Renewal Byrne Drug, Gang and Violent Control Grant
Permission to Apply

Background Information
This grant has been in effect for 23 years.  This grant funds a full-time prosecutor for drug
and violent crime prosecution. Match requirements have historically fluctuated based on
availability of funding.  The grant announcement for FY 12 indicated matching funds up to 25
percent may be required, however the determination of necessity of matching funds has not
yet been determined and applicants selected for an award will not be notified as to the level of
match until May 20, 2011. The maximum 25% match estimate to be paid from General Fund
is $17,000 based on anticipated salary and benefits of the attorney currently assigned to this
project. Solicitation for grant applications opened March 14, 2011 and the grant application
must be completed online no later than April 8, 2011 at 3:00p.m. The grant completed grant
application will be added as soon as it is complete and prior to consideration by the Board of
Supervisors.

Evaluation
The Gila County Bryrne Prosecution grant is essential to provide funding for the salary and
benefits of a prosecutor who works in tandem with the Gila County Narcotics Task Force.

Conclusion
The Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Program allows state, county, local and tribal
governments to support activities that combat drug, grangs and violent crime. This grant
provides a significant portion of the funding for a full-time prosecutor to work in tandem with
the Gila County Narcotics Task Force in efforts to curb crime in Gila County through
investigation, arrest and prosecution. 

Recommendation
That the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the Gila County Attorney's request to
submit a grant application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and
Violent Crime Control Program to renew grant funding used for the salary and benefits of a
full-time prosecutor.  Further, that the Board of Supervisors approve the use of general funds
to provide any required match funds not to exceed 25% of the entire grant.

Suggested Motion
Authorization for the Gila County Attorney's Office to electronically submit a FY 2012 Grant



Authorization for the Gila County Attorney's Office to electronically submit a FY 2012 Grant
Application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission  Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime
Control Program, to renew grant funding and approve any required match funding
requirement.

Attachments
Link: Byrne Prosecution Application
Link: FY09 Single Audit Report Byrne Prosecution Application Attachment 
Link: Byrne Prosecution Grant Announcement



































































































































































































 
ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE 

COMMISSION 
 

 
FY 2012  

COMPETITIVE GRANT ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
 
 

DRUG, GANG, AND VIOLENT  
CRIME CONTROL PROGRAM 

 
 

Eligibility 
 
 
 
 

Deadline 
All applications are due by 3:00 p.m. on Friday April 8, 2011. 

 

 
For Assistance 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

1110 W. Washington, Suite 230 

Phoenix, AZ 85007     

Office: (602) 364-1146 

Fax: (602) 364-1175 

State, county, local, and tribal criminal justice agencies that 
meet the qualifications are eligible to apply. 

If you have any questions about this grant solicitation or are having difficulties with the grant 
management system, contact Keri Raichert, Grant Coordinator, at (602) 364-1168, Tony Vidale, 
Program Manager, at (602) 364-1155 or e-mail ACJC at dcadmin@azcjc.gov.    
 
 



2 

 

ABOUT THE DRUG, GANG, AND VIOLENT CRIME CONTROL PROGRAM (DC) 
 
The Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Program (DC) allows state, county, local and tribal 
governments to support activities that combat drugs, gangs, and violent crime. The DC program 
provides funding to support the components of a statewide, system-wide enhanced drug, gang, and 

violent crime control program as stated in the 2008-2011 Arizona Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime 
Control Strategy. 
 
The Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (Byrne/JAG) funds awarded to Arizona by the 
United States Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance (DOJ/BJA) continue to support 
program activities along with state Drug and Gang Enforcement Account (DEA) funds established 
under A.R.S. §41-2402.  The Byrne/JAG program provides states, tribes, and local governments with 
critical funding necessary to support a range of program areas including law enforcement, 
prosecution and court, prevention and education, corrections and community corrections, drug 
treatment and enforcement, planning, evaluation, and technology improvement, and crime victim 
and witness initiatives. 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) is publishing this notice to announce the availability 
of funds for the Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Program (DC) to be distributed during FY 
2012. Arizona prioritizes the use of these funds for the support of multi-agency, multijurisdictional 
drug, gang, and violent crime task forces, tandem prosecution projects, and projects that support 
these efforts, such as drug adjudication, drug forensic analysis activities, drug/community 
corrections, proven drug treatment in correctional facilities, and drug education/prevention projects. 
In addition, funds may also support eligible projects that reduce crime by enhancing the 
investigation and prosecution of criminals and improving the effectiveness and efficiency of the 
criminal justice system.  Priority #1 and select Priority #3 projects will receive preference in 
providing award recommendations under this grant announcement.   
 
Drug, gang, and violent crime enforcement efforts must frequently cross jurisdictional boundaries in 
order to arrest, prosecute, and sentence criminals. ACJC supports improvement in the effectiveness 
of collaborative law enforcement by leveraging state and federal funds to reduce drug trafficking, 
drug-related violent crime, and criminal street gang activities throughout Arizona. Further, ACJC 
strongly encourages agencies to coordinate efforts with other projects or initiatives such as the 
direct local agency Byrne/JAG funds, methamphetamine interdiction, Homeland Security programs, 
and High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) activities. 
 
Agencies that previously have not received funding under the DC program are encouraged to apply. 
Agencies within jurisdictions that receive a direct Byrne/JAG award from DOJ/BJA remain eligible to 
apply for DC program funds. 
 

PROGRAM STRATEGY 
 
This program is designed to implement projects identified in the 2008-2011 Arizona Drug, Gang, 
and Violent Crime Control Strategy, approved by the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission and 

submitted to the BJA.  In 2009, the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission approved an expansion of 
the JAG purpose areas, to include Priority #5 projects. 
 

http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Pubs/Home/2008-2011_DGVC_Control_Strategy-Amended.pdf
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Pubs/Home/2008-2011_DGVC_Control_Strategy-Amended.pdf
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Pubs/Home/2008-2011_DGVC_Control_Strategy-Amended.pdf
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Pubs/Home/2008-2011_DGVC_Control_Strategy-Amended.pdf


3 

 

*NOTE*: DUE TO LIMITED RESOURCES AS A RESULT OF SEVERE BUDGET CUTS, THE 
FOLLOWING CORE PROJECTS WILL RECEIVE PREFERENCE FOR AWARD 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Priority #1:  Multi-agency, multi-jurisdictional drug, gang and violent 
crime task forces (Apprehension) 
 

  Prosecution projects working in tandem with drug, gang and 
violent crime task forces (Prosecution) 
 

  Statewide civil forfeiture efforts (Prosecution, Statewide 
Forfeiture) 

  

Priority #3:  Forensic Drug Analysis Projects (Forensics) 
 

  Adjudication Projects (Adjudication) 
 

The Arizona Criminal Justice Commission has approved the use of DC funding to projects pursuant 
to the Arizona Revised Statutes §41-2402 and the Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of 
2005, 42 U.S.C. 3750 et seq., Section 500. The following priority areas are: 
 

Priority #1  Multi-agency, multi-jurisdictional drug, gang and violent crime task 
forces1, their tandem prosecution projects and statewide civil forfeiture 
efforts 
Project Activities:  
 Projects that encourage collaborative investigation, interdicts and apprehends 

drug, gang, and associated violent crimes by law enforcement personnel.  
 Prosecution activities that, in addition to serving as direct support to the task 

force, effectively prosecute drug, gang, and associated violent crime. 
 Civil asset forfeiture activities that enhance the investigation and identification of 

money laundering operations related to drug, associated gang and violent 
criminal activities.  

 

The DOJ/BJA has identified critical components that ensure successful multi-agency, multi-
jurisdictional task forces:  

 Written interagency agreements establishing guidelines;  
 Prosecutor involvement;  
 Computerized information/intelligence sharing;  
 Communication among task force members;  
 Coordination of effort;  
 Experienced leadership;  
 Effective asset seizure and forfeiture activities;  
 Commitment to long-term funding;  
 Clearly formulated goals, objectives, and performance measures;  
 Collection of data, monitoring, and evaluation; and  
 Technical assistance and training programs that draw on the experiences of more  

  seasoned task force supervisors’ expertise.  
 

                                                 
1 A multi-agency, multi-jurisdictional task force is defined as a formal arrangement involving three or more law 
enforcement agencies along with at least one prosecutorial agency to work, investigate, interdict and prosecute 
collaboratively on drug, gang, and related violent crime activities.  Cross jurisdictional boundaries are encouraged, such as 
intrastate, interstate, and international.  



4 

 

Of these components, open and clear communication with task force participants and outside 
agencies, such as prosecutorial and tribal government agencies, is encouraged to ensure any and all 
key information and knowledge is disseminated to ensure the success of the program in the 
eradication of drugs, gangs, and related violent crimes within Arizona. 
 
Priority #2  Criminal justice records improvement and information sharing projects 

 

*NOTE*: THIS GRANT ANNOUNCEMENT IS NOT SOLICITING PRIORITY 
AREA #2 PROJECT PROPOSALS.  THIS PRIORITY AREA IS 
INCLUDED IN THE GERALD HARDT MEMORIAL CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE RECORDS IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM 
ANNOUNCEMENT. 

 
Priority #3  Adjudication, forensic drug analysis, drug offender correction/community 

corrections projects, and drug treatment in correctional facilities 
Project Activities: 
 Court delay reduction programs through the enhancement of court processes 

including the appointment of judges pro tempore and additional clerical support. 
 Pretrial/Probation drug testing programs and related improvements. 
 Enhancement to forensic laboratories that serve as support to the task forces 

and prosecution for increased processing of drug analyses and the reduction of 
backlog cases. 

 Enhance public correctional resources and improve the correction system for 
drug, gang and related violent offenders. Provide proven drug treatment 
programs within the jails and correctional institutions. 

 
Priority #4  Drug prevention and education projects 

Project Activities: 
 Proven substance abuse education and prevention programs where law 

enforcement personnel are involved. 
 Community-based substance abuse prevention education programs that focus on 

the substance abuse problems presented or disseminated by criminal justice 
agencies. 

 
Priority #5  Other project areas eligible for funding under the federal Byrne Justice 

Assistance Grant 
 

*NOTE*: THIS GRANT ANNOUNCEMENT IS NOT SOLICITING PRIORITY 
AREA #5 PROJECT PROPOSALS.   A SEPARATE GRANT 
ANNOUNCEMENT WILL BE RELEASED IF FUNDING BECOMES 
AVAILABLE FOR THIS PRIORITY AREA.   

 

Project Activities: 
 State and local initiatives, technical assistance, training, personnel, equipment, 

supplies, contractual support, and information systems for criminal justice, as 
well as criminal justice-related research and evaluation activities that will 
enhance: 

o Law enforcement 
o Prosecution and court programs 
o Prevention and education programs 
o Corrections and community corrections programs 
o Drug treatment and enforcement programs 
o Planning, evaluation, technology improvement programs 



5 

 

o Crime victim and witness programs (other than compensation) 

 
 
FUNDING 
 
The Commission will make funds available for multiple grants to be allocated directly to state, 
county, local, and tribal criminal justice agencies for projects that will achieve the goals of the DC 
program.  As noted above, Priority #1 and select Priority #3 projects will receive preference in 
providing award recommendations.  At this time, the funding level for the FY12 DC Grant program 
has not been determined.   
 
Matching funds up to 25 percent may be required.  The Commission will determine the 
necessity of matching funds based on program need at the Commission meeting 
scheduled on March 24, 2011.  Applicants selected for an award will be notified as to the 
level of match funding on May 20, 2011.   
 
All projects funded under this program will be for twelve (12) consecutive months starting July 
1, 2011 and ending June 30, 2012.  The Commission may choose to renew a grant for up to an 
additional year at the same funding level if the funds are available. 
 
ALLOWABLE COSTS 
 
Funds may not be available in future years; therefore, when requests are made to fund personnel or 
other ongoing activities or costs, applicants are strongly encouraged to identify future potential 
funding sources in the Project Summary section of the application. In addition, applicants should 
have a sustainability plan to ensure the program is ongoing beyond the funding availability. 
 
Eligible expenses include personnel, employee related expenses (ERE), overtime, travel, operating 
costs, and costs related to contractual or consulting services. Equipment associated with project 
activities may be awarded on a limited basis if funding is available. 
 
Priority in budget allocation will be given to budget categories of personnel salaries, employer 
related expenses (ERE) or fringe benefits and overtime to further support the activities in the 
reduction of drug, gang, and violent crimes throughout Arizona. 
 
RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF FUNDS 
 
DC program funds cannot be used directly or indirectly for security enhancements or equipment to 
non-governmental criminal justice/public safety entities.  
 
Indirect costs, not limited to expenses such as accounting, payroll, data processing, purchasing, 
personnel, and building use, may not be requested through this grant program. 
 
In addition, the following items are restricted: 

• Vehicles, vessels, or aircraft2
 

• Luxury items 

                                                 
2 Vehicle, vessels, or aircraft may be exempt as long as they are for the direct use of the drug task force. 
 These items may require Commission and/or DOJ/BJA approval prior to encumbrance. 



6 

 

• Real estate 
• Construction projects 
 

Funding may not be used to request positions for participating federal agencies. 
 
Non-Supplanting: 
Federal funds must be used to supplement existing state and local funds for program activities and 
must not replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. See the OJP 
Financial Guide (Part II, Chapter 3). Additional information may be found in the ACJC Grant 
Management Resource Manual.   

 
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Uniform Administrative Requirements and Cost Principles: 
If the applicant’s jurisdiction is awarded funds it must comply with the following Uniform 
Administrative Requirements and Cost Principles as indicated in the table below. 

Administrative Requirements 

OMB Circular A-102 "Grants and Cooperative Agreements With State and Local Governments." 

2 CFR Part 215 "Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements With Institutions of Higher 
Education, Hospitals and Other Non-Profit Organizations" (codified at 28 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 70) (formerly known as OMB Circular A-110) 

Cost Principles 

2 CFR Part 220 "Cost Principles for Educational Institutions"(codified at 28 CFR Part 66, by reference) 
(formerly known as OMB Circular A-21) 

2 CFR Part 225 "Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments" (codified at 28 CFR Part 66, 
by reference) (formerly known as OMB Circular A-87) 

2 CFR Part 230 "Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations" (formerly known as OMB Circular A-122) 

Audit Requirements 

OMB Circular A-133 "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations" (codified at 28 CFR 
Parts 66 and 70). 

http://www.ojp.gov/financialguide/part1/part1chap2.htm  

 
A-133 Audit or Single Audit: 
To meet federal audit requirements, one copy of the most recently completed financial audit must 
be attached (uploaded) at the time of the application. If your agency does not have a current audit 
completed for the period ending June 30, 2010, the written correspondence requesting an extension 
to the federal cognizant oversight agency must be attached (uploaded) with the application. The 
correspondence must indicate the timeframe for completion and/or requested extension date. 
 
Program Income: 
Program income generated though anti-racketeering forfeiture activities as a result of Drug, Gang, 
and Violent Crime Control (DC) program’s Byrne/JAG federal funds must be spent on DC related 
activities and expended prior to the receipt of any federal funds. 
 

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/index.htm
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/index.htm
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/home/Grant_Management_Manual_9_2008.pdf
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/home/Grant_Management_Manual_9_2008.pdf
http://www.ojp.gov/financialguide/part1/part1chap2.htm


7 

 

Other Funding Sources: 
Applicants will be required to disclose all other funding sources that will be used to enhance your 
project. The sources and amount of funds should be identified in the DGVCC FY12 Budget 
Worksheet and a statement of how the funds will enhance your project should be included in the 
Project Summary section.  The DGVCC FY12 Budget Worksheet will be available on the ACJC 
web site. 
 
Sustainability Plan: 
Within the Project Summary section, applicants should identify future potential funding sources to 
ensure the program is ongoing beyond the funding availability. 
 
U.S. General Service Administration (GSA) Excluded Parties Listing Service: 
If the applicant’s jurisdiction is awarded funds, it must agree not to do business with any individual, 
agency, company or corporation listed in the U.S. General Service Administration (GSA) Excluded 
Parties Listing Service. 
 
Participation/Collaboration Letters (Priority Area 1 – Task Force Applicants only):  
Participation/collaboration letters or documents signed by the Authorized Official of the participating 
agencies indicating their intent to participate fully (staff assignment, office space, etc.) in the 
project are required to be uploaded with the application. Please note: letters of participation from 
the Arizona Department of Public Safety are sent directly to the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission, therefore, uploading this letter is an exception. 
 
Task Force Training (Priority Area 1 – Task Force Applicants only): 
If the applicant is awarded funds under the Priority 1: Task Force project area, it must agree that 
within 120 days of award acceptance, each member of a the task force funded with these funds who 
is a task force commander, agency executive, task force officer, or other task force member of 
equivalent rank, will complete a required online (internet-based) task force training.  The training is 
provided free of charge online through BJA’s Center for Task Force Integrity and Leadership 
(www.ctfli.org).  All current and new task force members are required to complete this training once 
during the life of the award, or once every four years if multiple awards include this requirement. 
 
Confidential Funds Certification: 
If utilizing Confidential Funds, a Certification of knowledge and adherence to the Office of Justice 

Programs (OJP) Financial Guide Chapter 8: Confidential Funds must be signed by the Project 

Official, and submitted as an attachment at time of application. The Confidential Funds  
Certification form is available via ACJC’s web site: 
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/ConfidentialFundsCertification.pdf. 
 
Byrne/JAG Formula Local Application: 
If applicable, a copy of the local Byrne/JAG application submitted by your unit of local government 
to the DOJ/BJA under the 40 percent direct local funding solicitation must be submitted to the 
ACJC Program Manager by e-mail to: dcadmin@azcjc.gov or at the address below within seven (7) 
calendar days from the local jurisdiction’s online application date to the DOJ/BJA. 
 

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 
Attn: Tony Vidale, Program Manager 

1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 230 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

http://www.ctfli.org/
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/ConfidentialFundsCertification.pdf
mailto:dcadmin@azcjc.gov


8 

 

 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Monthly financial reports: Grantees are required to submit monthly financial reports for 
expenditure reimbursement. 
 
Quarterly activity reports: Grantees are required to report on progress towards the goals and 
objectives identified in their grant application. 
 

Detailed information on data variables for core project areas that successful applicants 
will be required to report, can be accessed by clicking on the links below: 
 
Programmatic Reporting Requirements: Priority 1 Projects 
 

 Multi-agency, multi-jurisdictional drug, gang and violent crime task forces:  
 http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12 ByrneJAG Report Form - Task 

Force.xlsx 
 

 Prosecution projects working in tandem with drug, gang and violent crime  
 task forces: http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12 ByrneJAG Report Form - 

Tandem Prosecution.xlsx   
 

 Statewide civil forfeiture projects: http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12 
ByrneJAG Report Form - AG Forfeiture.xlsx 

 
Programmatic Reporting Requirements: Priority 3 Projects 
 

 Forensic drug analysis projects: http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12 
ByrneJAG Report Form - Forensic Task Force Support.xlsx 

 

 Adjudication projects: http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12 ByrneJAG Report 
Form - Adjudication.xlsx  

  
As well as any other reporting requirements, grantees are expected to cooperate fully in any 
national evaluation efforts required by the federal government. 

 
SCORING PROCESS 
 
Each grant application will be scored by a team of qualified individuals based on the scorecard on 

page 11. The 2008-2011 Arizona Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Strategy, as amended, 

will provide further guidance to application reviewers. 
 
ACJC staff will prepare a proposed allocation plan based upon the results of the scored grant 
applications, and present the proposed allocation plan to the Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime 
Committee of the Commission for review. The Committee will present a recommendation regarding 
the allocation plan to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission for review and final action. The 
proposed allocation plan will be made available to applicants five (5) days prior to the funding 
meeting. Funds will be disbursed to agencies in accordance with the Commission’s final approved 
allocation plan for the grant period of July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012. 
 
Staff may provide additional information to assist the Commission in making funding decisions. This 
information may include but is not limited to past performance, including achievement of past goals 

http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Task%20Force.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Task%20Force.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Tandem%20Prosecution.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Tandem%20Prosecution.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20AG%20Forfeiture.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20AG%20Forfeiture.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Forensic%20Task%20Force%20Support.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Forensic%20Task%20Force%20Support.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Adjudication.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/FY12%20ByrneJAG%20Report%20Form%20-%20Adjudication.xlsx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Pubs/Home/2008-2011_DGVC_Control_Strategy-Amended.pdf


9 

 

and objectives or outcomes, and financial and/or programmatic monitoring deficiencies. Applications 
will be scored using the scorecard included in this announcement. 
 
New applicants are those who do not have a documented award history with ACJC and may provide 
at least one year of prior grant performance history to obtain points in the Administrative History 
category, for a maximum total of 1,000 points. Prior grant performance history documentation 
should be uploaded for review along with the application. 
 
Acceptable prior grant performance history can be one or all of the following: 

 a letter of past performance signed by an agency head 
 programmatic monitoring summary and/or corrective action report 
 financial monitoring summary and/or corrective action report 
 other documentation supporting the achievement/success of a project 

Please note: a scored application does not guarantee an award. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 

 

 

APPLICATION CHECKLIST 
 
 

 
___ Application submitted via GMS: 
 
 

   http://72.32.210.188/GMS2/Login.aspx  
 
 

___ A-133 Audit (submit as attachment) 
 
 
 

___ Sustainability Plan (included in Project Summary section) 
 
 
 
___ DGVCC FY12 Budget Worksheet (submit as attachment) 
 
 
 
___ Confidential Funds Certification (if applicable, submit as attachment) 
 
 
 
___ Participation/Collaboration Letters (Priority Area 1 – Task Force applicants 

only, submit as attachment) 
 
 
 
___ Byrne/JAG Formula Local Application (if applicable, submit as an  
 attachment or e-mail to dcadmin@azcjc.gov) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://72.32.210.188/GMS2/Login.aspx


11 

 

 
 

Scorecard - Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Application 
 

1. Is the project eligible under the Arizona Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Strategy?  Yes/No 
2. Was the application received on time?  Yes/No 
If the answer to either question is “No,” the application is disqualified and should not be scored. 

Scorecard 

Category Description Valuation 
Maximum 

Possible Score 

Submission All application information is complete and accurate. 

 Application is complete and accurate 

 A-133 Audit or Budget Extension Letter 

 Funding Disclosure Worksheet 

 Sustainability Plan 

 Certification (Signed) 

 Participation/Collaboration Letters (task force only) 

Factual 55 

Problem 
Statement 

The problem statement identifies the need for services in 
the community and is supported by statistical data. 

 Problems are clearly stated 

 Problems are evidenced with statistics 

 Problems align with the strategy 

 Problem causes are identified 

Judgment 200 

Project Summary Project summary describes project to be supported. 

 Summary addresses the problems stated 

 Summary describes agency’s activities 

 Summary includes networking with agencies 

 Summary is realistic and achievable 

 Includes sustainability plan 

Judgment 200 

Collaboration 
Efforts 

The project collaborates with other criminal justice agencies 
and community organizations. 

 Public and community agencies are listed  

 Detailed collaboration described 

Judgment 100 

Goals And 
Objectives 

Goals and objectives identify intended project 
accomplishments. 

 Goals are overarching and reasonable 

 Goals relate to the problems identified 

 Objectives are reasonable and achievable 

 Objectives are a logical connect to goals  

 Measures are appropriate and collectable 

Judgment 125 

Evaluation Plan Performance Measures are identified and are appropriate. 

 Data collection methodologies clearly defined 

 Measures are appropriate and collectable 

 Resolution Plan/Process 

Factual 130 

Budget  Budget costs are reasonable and allowable 

 Narrative description is complete 

 Matching funds are included, if applicable 

Factual 
and 

Judgment 
100 

Internal Controls  Applicant demonstrates adequate internal controls Judgment 50 

Administrative 
History 

Projects previously funded have met the requirements of the 
grant including timely, accurate submission of reports and 
no reportable deficiencies during monitoring reviews. 

 Activity reporting 

 Financial reporting 

 Programmatic reportable deficiencies 

 Financial reportable deficiencies 
*New applicants may submit proof of prior performance 

Factual 40 

 Total: 1,000 



REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ALLOCATION PLAN 
 
Pursuant to R10-4-405 Drug and Gang Enforcement Account Grants Request for Modification of 
Recommended Allocation Plan, if an applicant disagrees with the recommended funding allocation, 
the applicant may verbally appeal to the Committee. The Committee shall consider the request for 
modification before forwarding the recommended allocation plan to the Commission for action. 
 
If the applicant disagrees with the decision of the Committee, the applicant may verbally request 
that the Commission modify the recommended allocation plan. The Commission shall consider the 
request for modification when making a final decision to award or deny a grant. The Commission’s 
decision is final. 

 
APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
The grant application for FY2012 must be completed and submitted using the ACJC Grant 
Management System (GMS).  Detailed application instructions including information on how to 
access the GMS, will be available at www.azcjc.gov in the GRANTS/Grant Resources/Drug, Gang and 
Violent Crime Control Program section of the web site.   
 
Paper or emailed applications will not be accepted.  All applications and attachments 

must be submitted through the ACJC Grant Management System. 
 

The application must be successfully submitted to the GMS no later than 3:00 p.m. 
on Friday, April 8, 2011.  Late applications will not be accepted by the GMS or be 

considered by ACJC. 
 

Funding recommendations will be presented for the Commission’s approval at the meeting 
scheduled on Thursday, May 19, 2011.  If approved, a list of funded programs will be posted on 
the ACJC web site no later than Friday, May 27, 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.azcjc.gov/


ARF-453     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Donna Puhara,

Fiscal
Administrator

Submitted By: Debra Holmes, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

03/01/11 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Lease with Alhambra Mini Storage for storage unit

Background Information
The County Attorney's Office currently leases 3 storage units at Alhambra Mini Storage in
Globe to house files pursuant to A.R.S. 41-1351 - records retention and destruction
schedule.  The County Attorney's Office seeks to lease an additional storage unit from
Alhambra Mini Storage in order to have more storage for files.

Evaluation
The County Attorney's Office is in need of additional storage space for its files, so a Lease
Agreement needs to be executed between the Gila County Attorney's Office and Alhambra
Mini Storage.  

Conclusion
This Lease Agreement is on a month-to-month basis with a one-time administration fee of
$18, a refundable security deposit of $12, and a monthly rate of $119.  

This lease agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511.

Recommendation
The County Attorney's Office recommends that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve
a Lease Agreement between the Gila County Attorney's Office and Alhambra Mini Storage.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Lease Agreement between the Gila County Attorney's Office and Alhambra Mini
Storage in Globe for the rental of one storage unit for storage of files at a cost of $119 per
month beginning February 25, 2011, and ongoing on a month-to-month basis. 

Attachments
Link: Alhambra Mini Storage Lease with Addendum







ARF-434     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services

Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7/9/2010 - 6/30/2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No.1 to Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement (Commerce G044-10-02)

Background Information
This program has been in place for many years and helps households that meet the eligibility requirements which
are as follows; applicants whose income is 150% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines determined in accordance with
criteria established by the Office of the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, households
including members who have received cash assistance payments under Aid to Families with Dependent Children
(AFDC) or Supplemental Security Income (SSI), are automatically eligible for Weatherization assistance. 
Priority shall be given to identifying and providing weatherization assistance to the following households; elderly
persons, persons with disabilities, families with children and high residential energy users and households with a
high energy burden.

Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement No. Commerce G044-10-02  between the State of
Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 6, 2010. 

Evaluation
It is important for the Gila County Board of Supervisors to approve Amendment No.1 to the Weatherization
Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy
Office and Gila County Office of Community Services.  This Amendment allocates additional funds from the
Department of Commerce Energy Office in the amount of $5,040 for a total not to exceed amount of $33,474 to
provide weatherization assistance to eligible families residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No.1 to the Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual
Agreement, the Gila County Office of Community Services will be able to continue providing services to eligible
citizens of Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Program Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
contract amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the 2010-2011 Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement,
Commerce G044-10-02, between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office and Gila County
(Office of Community Services) to allocate an additional $5,040 for a total not to exceed amount of $33,474, which
will be used to help residents who meet program qualifications for the period July 9, 2010, through June 30, 2011.

Attachments
Link: REVISED-Amendment No. 1 Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement Commerce
G044-10-02 AZ. Dept. of Energy
Link: OLD-Amendment No.1 Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement Commerce G044-10-02
AZ. Dept. of Energy
Link: ORIGINAL CONTRACT-Weatherization Low-income Assistance Contractual Agreement Commerce G044-10-02
AZ. Dept. of Energy



























































































































ARF-422     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Sadie Dalton,

Recorder
Submitted By: Sadie Dalton, Recorder's Office

Department: Recorder's Office
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to Memorandum of Understanding/Contract for Help America Vote Act

Background Information
The Help America Vote Act (HAVA) is the basis for both a federal and state effort to improve
the voting processes in America and Arizona. Various grants have become available in order
to accomplish the goals of HAVA. In May 2005, the original Memorandum of
Understanding/Contract for HAVA was signed between the State of Arizona and Gila County.
That original contract provided financial assistance to counties to address a number of
projects relating to accessible voting systems, language accessibility to polling places, voter
education, voter registration, poll and election worker training, telecommunications, and
enhancements to the military and overseas voter process. 

The Board should be aware that the HAVA project currently pays for the voter registration
system, Power Profile, which the Recorder's Office currently uses. In 2016 the cost reverts to
the County and at that point the Recorder's Office will have to budget for a voter registration
system.

Evaluation
The original contract was to expire at the end of fiscal year 2007. Amendment No.1 to the
contract extended that date through Federal Fiscal Year 2010. Amendment No. 2 provides for
a further extension of the contract through Federal Fiscal Year 2016. This extension will
provide an opportunity for all counties, including Gila, to utilize available grant funds through
FY2016. Amendment No. 3 contains three revisions: 1) Per Section 251(b) of HAVA, HAVA
funds shall only be used to meet the requirements of HAVA Title III and to carry out other
activities to improve the administration of elections for Federal office. 2) All voting systems
purchased with FY2010 funds must meet the voting system standards for disability access as
outlined in Section 301(a)(3) of HAVA. (The State of Arizona has not distributed any FY2010
funds to the counties, so this item is not relevant at this time for Arizona but it can be
relevant in the future. 3) This amendment list some federal circulars (Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87, 41 CFR 105-71 and OMB A-133.

Conclusion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 will insure that Gila County is in compliance with the
amendment and changes as required by the Arizona Secretary of State.

Recommendation
The Gila County Recorder recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment
No. 3.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)/Contract for
Help America Vote Act (HAVA) between Gila County and the Arizona Secretary of State.  



Attachments
Link: Original MOU
Link: HAVA MOU No.3















ARF-446     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Major Jim

Eskew
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4-27-2011 to 4-26-2014 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to the Lease Agreement between Arizona Public Service Company (APS)
and Gila County for the Sheriff's Office parking/impound lot at Electric Dr. and State Route
188, Globe, Arizona.

Background Information
Effective April 27, 2006, Gila County began leasing a portion of property owned by Arizona
Public Service located at Electric Drive and State Route 188 for the purpose of a
parking/impound lot for the Sheriff's Office.  The term of the contract was for a five-year
period and will end April 27, 2011.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to the Lease Agreement between Arizona Public Service and Gila County
will allow for the agreement term to be extended for another three years from April 27, 2011,
to April 26, 2014.  The lease shall remain in full force and effect according to its terms.

The County shall continue to pay Arizona Public Service the amount of one dollar ($1) per
month for lease of the property.

Conclusion
The lease extension will allow the Sheriff's Office to continue to use the property for another 3
years as its impound/parking lot through April 26, 2014.

Recommendation
The Sheriff's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to
the Lease Agreement between Arizona Public Service Company and Gila County for three
more years.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Lease Agreement between Arizona Public Service Company
and Gila County to extend the term of the lease for an additional three years; from April 27,
2011, to April 26, 2014, in the amount of one dollar ($1.00) per month.

Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 1 Lease Agreement
Link: Lease Agreement





























ARF-410     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,

Elections Director
Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Canyon Fire District Governing Board Vacancy Appointment

Background Information
ARS 48-803(B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration of a
term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
New legislation requires Fire Districts currently being governed by a Chief and Secretary/Treasurer to
now be administered by a three or five member elected board. It was determined, by population, that
the Canyon Fire District be governed by a three member elected board.  During the 2010 General
Election, only two candidates filed petitions for the governing board and were elected.  Based on
conversations with Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, it was determined that the newly
elected board could appoint the third board member. At the Canyon Fire District Governing Board
meeting of December 10, 2010, Quentin Johnson was appointed to the third position on the board and
given the two year term which expires November 30, 2012.

Conclusion
Quentin Johnson has agreed to serve as a governing board member for the Canyon Fire District.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the new
governing board member appointment as submitted.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledge the appointment of Quentin Johnson as the new governing board member to the Canyon
Fire District Governing Board, with term expiring November 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: ARS 48-804
Link: Canyon Fire District Mtg Minutes and Oath









ARF-412     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,

Elections Director
Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
2 Intergovernmental Agreements for May 17, 2011, Election Services for Cobre Valley Sanitary District
& Pinal Sanitary District.

Background Information
The Gila County Division of Elections performs election services for other governmental entities
including cities, towns, school districts, fire districts, water districts and sanitary districts.  Historically
we have created Agreements with participating entities for each election wherein they request County
assistance with the election.

The most recent changes to the County Policy with Regard to Conduct of District Elections, including
the fee schedule, were adopted by the Board of Supervisors (BOS) on October 18, 2005.

The IGAs themselves are reviewed and updated by the Chief Deputy County Attorney each time an
election is conducted for the district and an IGA is created and submitted for BOS approval.

Both agreements have been signed by their representatives.

Evaluation
Prior to each election, the Gila County Elections Director presents the BOS with IGAs for any entity that
has requested Gila County Department of Elections' assistance with their election.

Conclusion
The following entities have requested that the Gila County Department of Elections conduct
their merger elections to be held on May 17, 2011:  Cobre Valley Sanitary District and Pinal Sanitary
District.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve both IGAs.

Suggested Motion
Approval of two Intergovernmental Agreements for Election Services, one between the Gila County
Department of Elections and the Cobre Valley Sanitary District and the other one between the Gila
County Department of Elections and the Pinal Sanitary District for the May 17, 2011, election to merge
the two Sanitary Districts.

Attachments
Link: IGA - Pinal Sanitary District 
Link: IGA - Cobre Valley Sanitary District



















ARF-441     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Claudia DalMolin, Chief Administrative Officer
Submitted By: Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

March 15, 2011 to March 14, 2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Professional Services Contract No. 1005.274/2-2011-Medical Director Services-McClaren
Ruesch, M.D.

Background Information
Dr. Ruesch has been providing medical director services for the Gila County Sheriff's Office
since December 1, 2006.  This Contract will allow Dr. Ruesch to continue providing services
at the Gila County Adult and Juvenile Detention Centers in Globe and the Adult Detention
Center in Payson.

Evaluation
The Contractor agrees to provide Medical Director Services for the Gila County Sheriff's Office
Adult and Juvenile Detention Centers in Globe, Arizona and the Adult Detention Center in
Payson, AZ. The services shall be provided on an "as needed" basis as requested by the
County.

This Contract is for a period of one-year and there is an option to renew the Contract for four
(4) additional one-year periods. Should both parties agree to renew the Contract, each year a
Contract Amendment will be presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval under the
Consent Agenda.

Conclusion
This contractural agreement shall meet all current standards and keep current any or all
State of Arizona licenses/certifications and the Sheriff's Office agrees that Dr.
Ruesch possesses experience as a physician.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office recommends the Board of Supervisors' approval
of Professional Services Contract No. 1005.274/2-2011 - Medical Director Services - McLaren
Ruesch, M.D.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Professional Services Contract No. 1005.274/2-2011- Medical Director Services



Approval of Professional Services Contract No. 1005.274/2-2011- Medical Director Services
whereby McLaren Ruesch, M.D. will provide medical director services for the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Adult and Juvenile Detention Centers in Globe and the Adult Detention Center
in Payson in the not to exceed amount of $48,000 for the period April 5, 2011, through April
4, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Executive Summary Form-McClaren Ruesch, M.D.
Link: Professional Services Contract-McClaren Ruesch, M.D.



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FORM   

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
 

 
Contract Name: 

 
Dr. McLaren Ruesch, M.D. 

 
Contract No.: 

 
1005.274/2011 

 
 

Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) 

The Consultant will provide Medical Director Services for the Gila County Sheriff’s Office Adult and Juvenile 
Detention Centers in Globe and Payson, Arizona.  The services shall be provided on an “as need” basis as 
requested by the Sheriff’s Office.  Services shall be provided for a one year period with the County’s option of 
four additional one year renewals. 

 

 
 
Contract End Date: 

 
April 4, 2012 

 
Renewal Option: 

      
          Yes 

          No 
 
Maximum Dollar Limit: 

 
$ 48,000.00 

 
 
 

Contract Information 

 
Firm Name: 

 
Dr. McLaren Ruesch, M.D. 

 
Contact Person: 

 
Dr. Ruesch 

 
Address: 

 
621 S. Fifth St. 

 
Phone No: 

 
928-402-9713 

 
City: 

 
Globe 

 
State: 

 
AZ 

 
Fax: 

 
 

 
Email: 

 
 

 
 

 
Fund: 

 
General Fund 

 
Type of Funds: 

 
           Restricted 

              Grant 
Fund Code: 1005.300.274_4210.99             General Fund 

              Other 
 
 
 
 

Special Notes: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 











ARF-466     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- I     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer
Submitted By: Lisa King, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Probation

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Dec. 31, 2010 - March 31, 2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002 with the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Background Information
The Gila County Juvenile Detention Center has contracted with the Bureau of Indian
Affairs for approximately ten years.  This contract is an excellent source of income for
Gila County.  The detention center provides services for the Bureau of Indian Affairs
by contracting bed space for tribal juveniles at a rate of $131.40 per day per juvenile
from the Truxton Canon Agency, the Colorado River Indian Tribe and the Pascua
Yaqui Tribe.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002 allows the Gila County Juvenile
Detention Center to continue providing services to the Bureau of Indian Affairs by
extending the period of performance from December 31, 2010 to March 31, 2011. 
The income generated from this contract in Fiscal Year 2009-2010 totaled
approximately $500,000.00.  This would be a significant loss of income for Gila
County should this Amendment be denied.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002 allows the Gila County Juvenile
Center to continue providing services for the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Recommendation
The Gila County Probation Department recommends approval of Amendment No. 8 to
Contract No. CMK0L090002 with the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002 between Gila County,
on behalf of Gila County Juvenile Detention Center, and the Bureau of Indian Affairs
to extend the period of performance from December 31, 2010, to March 31, 2011. 



Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002
Link: Original Contract No. CMK0L090002



















































ARF-468     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- J     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Mary

Hawkins,
Court
Administrator

Submitted By: Coleen Stevens, Superior Court

Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

07/01/2011 - 06/30/2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: HON. Peter Cahill 

Information
Request/Subject
2011 Re-Appointment of Superior Court Judges Pro Tempore

Background Information
Gary Scales was appointed as full-time Judge Pro Tempore on May 1, 2010, to prepare for the
retirement of Judge Peter DeNinno in July 2010, and he has served since that time. Currently
he is assigned minor dependency, child support enforcement, criminal and domestic relations
cases, though he also handles other matters as needed.   Judge Scales’ regular full-time
salary is included in the County General Fund budget for the current fiscal year and will be
requested for FY 2012. 

Peter J. DeNinno served as Judge Pro Tempore since January 1, 1996, pursuant to a paid
part-time appointment. He retired from regular service on July 1, 2010, and now serves on a
very limited, as-needed basis.

Evaluation
Gary Scales was appointed as full-time Judge Pro Tempore on May 1, 2010. Judge Scales’
regular full-time salary is included in the County General Fund budget for the current fiscal
year.  His services are necessary for the court to process cases in a timely manner.  The
County receives reimbursement from the State for 2/3 of the time he spends on child support
enforcement cases.

Peter J. DeNinno has served as Judge Pro Tempore since January 1, 1996, and retired on
July 1, 2010 from regular service.  He now serves on a very limited, as-needed basis, and
funding is included in the  County General Fund budget for the current fiscal year.  His
services are necessary on occasion for the court to process cases in a timely manner.

Conclusion
The Court needs Board of Supervisors' approval for the reappointment of Judge Gary V.
Scales and Judge Peter DeNinno as Judges Pro Tempore for the period July 1, 2011, until
June 30, 2012, for the court to process cases in a timely manner.

Recommendation
Recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve Presiding Judge Peter J. Cahill's



Recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve Presiding Judge Peter J. Cahill's
reappointment of Judge Gary V. Scales as full-time Judge Pro Tempore, and Judge Peter J.
DeNinno as Judge Pro Tempore (on an as-needed basis),  for the Superior Court in Gila
County for the period of July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of reappointment of Judge Gary V. Scales, and Judge Peter J. DeNinno, as Judges Pro Tempore
Pro Tempore for the Superior Court in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2011, through
June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: MEMOS TO BOS RE: JUDGE SCALES & JUDGE DE NINNO
Link: BOS APPROVAL JUDGE SCALES
Link: BOS APPROVAL JUDGE DENINNO



ilpupertor Court
of f La Coutttp

ROBERT DUBER, II
Judge, Division II
Extension 8690

Gila County Courthouse
1400 East Ash

Globe, Arizona 85501
(928) 425-3231

PETER J. CAHILL
Presiding Judge
Extension 8686

MARY HAWKINS
Court Administrator

Extension 8671

MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 18, 2011

TO:	 Board of Supervisors

FROM: Peter Cahill, Presiding Judge

RE:	 Reappointment of Gary V. Scales as Judge Pro Tempore

I am requesting Chief Justice Rebecca White Berch reappoint Gary V. Scales as full-time Judge Pro
Tempore for the Superior Court in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012. Judge
Scales' current term expires June 30, 2011.

Gary Scales was appointed as full-time Judge Pro Tempore on May 1, 2010, to prepare for the retirement
of Judge Peter DeNinno in July 2010. Currently he is assigned minor dependency, child support
enforcement, criminal and domestic relations cases, though he also handles other matters as needed.

Judge Scales' regular full-time salary is included in the county general fund budget for the current fiscal
year. The County receives reimbursement from the State from the Family Law Commissioner program
for Judge Scales' time in processing child support enforcement cases. (This fiscal year through January
the County has received back approximately $43,650 for his services.)

Enclosed is a proposed approval form for the Board to consider. I would appreciate your consideration
and approval of this appointment. Please call me if you have any questions.

/es



PETER J. CAHILL
Presiding Judge
Extension 8686

MARY HAWKINS
Court Administrator

Extension 8671

Oupertor Court
of Offa Countp

ROBERT DUBER, II
Judge, Division II

Extension 8690

Gila County Courthouse
1400 East Ash

Globe, Arizona 85501
(928) 425-3231

MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 18, 2011

TO:	 Board of Supervisors
<RE--

FROM: Peter Cahill, Presiding Judge

RE:	 Reappointment of Peter J. DeNinno as Judge Pro Tempore

I am requesting Chief Justice Rebecca White Berch reappoint Peter J. DeNinno as a Judge Pro Tempore
for the Superior Court in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012. Judge DeNinno's
current term expires June 30, 2011.

Peter DeNinno served as a part-time judge pro tempore from January 1996 until his retirement in July
2010. He was primarily assigned minor dependency and child support enforcement cases, though he also
handled a limited criminal and domestic relations caseload and other matters as needed. He is now
assigned on an 'as-needed' minimal basis.

Judge DeNinno is compensated at a superior court judge's hourly rate, and. serves only occasionally.
Compensation is currently included in the general fund budget and will be requested for FY 12..

Enclosed is a proposed approval form for the Board to consider. I would appreciate your considering and
approving this appointment. Please call me if you have any questions.

/es



  
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF JUDGE PRO TEMPORE 
 
 

 The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila 

County has requested the appointment of Gary V. Scales as a 

Judge Pro Tempore in Superior Court in Gila County for the 

period of July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012, pursuant to A.R.S. 

§§ 12-141 through 12-144(B) for the purpose of enhancing 

the court's ability to process cases.  Gary V. Scales has 

previously served as a Judge Pro Tempore for Globe Justice 

of the Peace, and was appointed by Presiding Judge Peter 

Cahill, as a full-time Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore, on 

April 1, 2010. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it known that the Gila County Board 

of Supervisors approves such appointment. 

 DATED this        day of April, 2011. 

 

 GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
 By:   ___________________________  
 Michael Pastor, Chairperson 



  
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF JUDGE PRO TEMPORE 
 
 

 The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila 

County has requested the reappointment of Peter J. DeNinno 

as a Judge Pro Tempore in Superior Court in Gila County for 

the period of July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012, pursuant to 

A.R.S. §§ 12-141 through 12-144(B) for the purpose of 

enhancing the court's ability to process cases, on an ‘as-

needed’ basis.  Peter J. DeNinno has served as a Judge Pro 

Tempore since January 1, 1996. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it known that the Gila County Board 

of Supervisors approves such appointment. 

 DATED this        day of April, 2011. 

 

 GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
 By:   ___________________________  
 Michael Pastor, Chairperson 



ARF-469     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- K     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Prevention Services
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Division: Prevention Services

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July1, 2011 through June 30, 2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No. FTF-RC004-10-0129-01-Y2

Background Information
The Gila County Office of Health has provided the Early Childhood Screening Program for two years.  The goal of
the program is to screen Gila County children from birth through five years of age, identify delays and refer to
appropriate agency or physician to begin early intervention services. The program provides free hearing, vision and
developmental screens.

Evaluation
The funding will allow the Gila County Office of Health the ability to continue to provide the early screening
program.  The Gila County Office of Health provides developmental screening to children birth through five years of
age. We provide a developmental assessment and social-emotional assessment using the Ages and Stages
Questionnaire screening tool. Vision screenings are provided using a questionnaire, LEA Symbol Chart for near and
far sightedness, and the Lang Stereopsis test. Hearing screenings are provided using the AuDx OAE Hearing
Screening System. Parents are informed of the results of the screenings and referrals are completed as necessary.
Parents are provided with age appropriate activities for their child, and given ideas to encourage developmental
growth. Copies of the screens and results are forwarded to the child’s Primary Care Physician with the
authorization of the parents. 

The goal of the program is to reach the rural populations which have limited services available to them. The
screenings are provided in multiple settings including but not limited to: community health fairs, schools,
preschools, daycares, community or social service agencies and clinics throughout Gila County. We are currently
offering developmental and social-emotional screenings through the mail in order to make ease of services for all
participants. The screening services are mobile and the screenings can be taken directly to the
participants/agencies requesting the services. 

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would be unable to provide early childhood screenings to identify delays that
need to be addressed.

Screening young children is an effective, efficient way to catch problems and start treatment when it does the most
good—during the crucial early years when the child’s brain and body are developing so rapidly. Because delays can
be subtle and can occur in children who appear to be developing typically, most children who would benefit from
early intervention are not identified until after they start school.

Developmental delays, learning disorders, and behavioral and social-emotional problems are estimated to affect 1
in every 6 children. (Dunkle, M. (Fall 2004). High Quality Developmental Screening. Developmental & Behavioral
News, 13(2). Retrieved December 16, 2005, from http://www.dbpeds.org/articles/detail.cfm?id=373)

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Division of Health and Emergency Services to approve the First Things First Notice
of Renewal Consideration between First Things First and Gila County in the amount of $56,650 for the period of
July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No. FTF-RC0004-10-0129-01-Y2 between Gila



Approval of First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No. FTF-RC0004-10-0129-01-Y2 between Gila
County and First Things First in the amount of $56,650 to extend the Gila County Early Childhood Screening
Program for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: FTF Renewal 2011-2012



  1 

FIRST THINGS FIRST NOTICE OF RENEWAL CONSIDERATION 
 
 
TO:  First Things First Grantees 
 
FROM:  Jeanne Weeks 

Grants and Contracts Procurement Specialist 
 

RE:  Renewal Information 
 
DATE:  March 2, 2011 

 
Your current grant program is approaching renewal consideration from First Things First Gila Regional 
Partnership Council. 
 
Receipt of this packet does not guarantee renewal of your agreement; it indicates that you are eligible 
for renewal consideration.  First Things First may award programs based on a number of factors 
including past performance and response to this renewal package.   
 
Should you be renewed, you will continue to be responsible for adherence to the terms and conditions 
as set forth in the original Request for Grant Application (RFGA) or grant agreement.  This includes 
adherence to the appropriate standards of practice, program and financial requirements, and timely 
submission of data, narrative, and financial reports.  
 
Attached please find the Renewal Package for First Things First Grant Programs.  The Renewal Package 
Cover Page includes information on the following Attachments: 

 Attachment A – Narrative response to First Things First questions related to implementation and 
data collection 

 Attachment B – Implementation Plan 

 Attachment C – Budget and Budget Narrative 

 Attachment D – Key Personnel 

 Attachment E – Disclosure of Other Funding 

 Attachment F – Standard First Things First Information Form and Authorized Renewal Submission 
Signature 

 
Once renewal applications are submitted and reviewed, recommendations for funding will be made to 
the Gila Regional Partnership Council and Board of First Things First.  First Things First staff may contact 
you for clarifications prior to making recommendations to the Regional Partnership Council and/or 
Board of First Things First.  Contracts will be in effect from July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012.  All other 
rules and regulations, and special terms and conditions from awarding RFGA or grant agreement will 
remain in effect for the contract period.   
 
Renewal applications must be received by March 25, 2011 by 3:00 pm and submitted to me via email, 
by mail to 4000 N. Central Avenue, Suite 800, Phoenix, AZ 85012 or by fax (602)265-0009.  Please 
contact me if you have any questions at jweeks@azftf.gov or by telephone at (602) 771-5084. 
 
Thank you and I look forward to reviewing your renewal package. 



  2 

First Things First  
Grant Renewal Package Instructions 

July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012 
 
Renewal Instructions 
Your First Things First grant is eligible for a program renewal by extending the current grant award from 
July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012.  Programs proposed for 2011-2012 cannot be different in scope than 
the current grant award.   

 
Grantee Name: Gila County 
First Things First Award 
Number: 

FTF-RC004-10-0129-01-Y2 

Strategy Name: Developmental  & Health Screening 
Standards of Practiced 
Assigned: 

 SOP Developmental Screening Administration Practices 
 SOP Sensory Screening 

Renewal Funding Eligible 
Amount: 

$56,650.00 

 

The renewal package does include narrative information as well as required forms as outlined in the 
following attachment sections: 
 
Program Implementation Narrative:  (Attachment A) Please provide a narrative response to the 
questions found in this Attachment. 
 
Program Implementation Plan:  (Attachment Form B) Please provide an updated implementation plan 
for your program for 2011 - 2012.  The implementation plan should be related to the originally approved 
program activities, tasks, data collection, data submission, and process.  Please use any necessary 
narrative to further describe your program implementation (Question 2). 
 
2011-2012 Budget Forms (Attachment C – must include line item budget and narrative): 

 Line Item Budget Form 
 Budget Narrative Explanation 

 
Key Personnel/Staff Overview:  (Attachment Form D) Please list all staff that will be paid from this grant 
program during the 2011-2012 grant cycle.  This should match your line item budget and budget 
narrative.  Submit resumes and/or staff change notification forms for new staff or those that have not 
yet been submitted to First Things First previously. The staff change notification form is located under 
the Grantee Resources folder on the PGMS home page. 
 
Disclosure of Other Funding Sources (Attachment E) – List any other funding utilized for this program 
administered by your agency. 
 
First Things First Standard Information and Authorized Signature  (Attachment Form F):  Please 
complete all three sections detailing: 

 The legal applicant 

 The main, program, financial and evaluation contact information – these contacts should be 
what you want identified for this grant award in First Things First’s Partner Grant 
Management System (PGMS) 

 The program Target Service Unit(s) assigned for the strategy assigned by First Things First 



  3 

and your implementation Target Service Number(s) to be served/completed in 2011-2012 
and any additional Target Service Units(s) and Number(s) needed for your program 
implementation for 2011 – 2012. 

 The program description – brief summary to be used for public descriptions of First Things 
First funded programs 

 Authorized Renewal Submission Signature 

 
Standards of Practice Updates:  Any updates to the Standards of Practice related to the scope of work 
for your award can be found when you log into Partners Grant Management System (PGMS) under 
Grantee Resources.  Updated Standards of Practice are part of the requirements for the award and 
implementation of your grant program.  Please take a moment to make sure you have reviewed the 
latest Standards of Practice.  The Standards of Practice represent First Things First’s intent for the 
implementation of this strategy.  Grantees that cannot meet the identified standards must state so 
clearly in writing and justify the reasoning, and identify how the grantee is moving toward meeting the 
standard.  First Things First will respond as to whether a waiver of any part of the Standards of Practice 
shall be approved. 
 
Model Programs that Require Certification and Accreditation:  It is the grantee’s responsibility to 
maintain accreditation/certification with national program models.  Grantees are to include staff 
training, program model accreditation/certification and quality assurance and evaluation costs in 
budgets, as needed.  Programs will need to refer to their National office and/or administrative home for 
cost information, if applicable. 
 
Compliance with State and Federal Law:  As a reminder, all other state rules, regulations, and special 
terms and conditions will remain in effect for the contract period.  This renewal application information 
becomes part of the agreement and expectations for program implementation and performance.  A 
complete listing of the state uniform terms and conditions can be found via the State Procurement 
Office website at:  http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp.  Additionally, First Things 
First will post any important grantee requirement and updated Communications Protocol information 
under the Grantee Resources section of PGMS. 
 
Grantees must maintain compliance with the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all 
other federal immigration laws and regulations related to the immigration status of its employees.  
These warranties shall remain in effect through the term of the agreement.  Grantees will also maintain 
Employment Eligibility Verification forms (I-9) as required by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Immigration 
and Control Act for all employees performing work under the agreement.  I-9 forms are available for 
download at USCIS.GOV.   
 
First Things First may request verification for any Contractor or subcontractor performing work under 
the agreement.  Should FTF suspect or find that a grantee is not in compliance with state or federal laws, 
First Things First may pursue any and all remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to:  
suspension of work, termination of the agreement for default and suspension and/or debarment of the 

grantee.  All costs necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility of the grantee.   
 
Data Security:  All grantees must have a data security policy in force, which identifies how the 
organization ensures that data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from 
inappropriate access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction.  
 
All grantees subject to HIPAA, FERPA, GITA, or other data regulation, are required to submit and 
maintain those approvals for all data.  If HIPAA, FERPA or other data regulation requires that 
participating individuals give consent to data collection on their person and if in the course of regular 

http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp


  4 

data submissions to FTF such data will be provided to FTF, submission of personal data to FTF must be 
reflected in all data regulation documents.  
 
Program Performance:  First Things First provides program information to the public, Regional 
Partnership Councils, and the Board of First Things First.  The information regularly provided to the 
Regional Partnership Councils and Board of First Things First will include proposed renewal information, 
submission of data related to performance measures and target service units, prior program 
implementation performance information, program narrative information, and financial information.  
Regional Councils utilize this information as part of the elements necessary to continue strategic 
planning that is demonstrated in priorities for annual Funding Plans, renewal decisions, development of 
new or modified strategies, review of the impact that program implementation has had in the region 
and state as well as achievement of system building. 
 
Renewal Package Due Date:  Renewal Package must be received by March 25, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. and 
submitted via mail, fax or email to:  

Jeanne Weeks 
Grants and Contracts Procurement Specialist 
jweeks@azftf.gov 
(602) 771-5084 
(602) 265-0009 (Fax) 

 
Please contact your assigned Finance Division staff member if you have any questions about your 
Renewal Package.   

 



  5 

Attachment A 
Program Implementation Questions 

 
Please provide a narrative response to the questions below.  To ensure that you are not changing the 
scope of work of your original grant, you must use the same programs and/or strategies as described in 
your original proposal, unless you have obtained prior approval.  
 

1. Because the Gila Regional Partnership Council has been funding this Strategy since October 2009 

and is concerned about the limited children that have been screened by this grant, please 

provide a narrative response for the following: 

a. Submit a comprehensive plan addressing specific outreach to recruit more families to 

conduct screenings and educate parents about the importance of routine screening as part 

of well child medical care.  

  Screenings are now being included as part of the Well Baby Clinic provided by the 

Health Department. We are planning and executing health fairs in the rural communities. We are 

meeting with doctors that serve the local hospitals and encouraging referrals for screenings. 

Screening clinics will be provided in each of the rural communities on a more consistent basis. 

The screening process will be offered in a mail-out format for individuals who can not attend a 

clinic or keep a screening appointment. We will be attempting to team with libraries to offer 

screens during existing story hour.  The Community Health Assistant is currently working on 

building a Web-page to provide all necessary paperwork to clients electronically.  The media 

campaign will consist of a paid block to entice parents to utilize the program and to educate on 

the importance of screenings.  New and improved signage and handouts for parents and agencies 

will be created for disseminating at Health Fairs and community locations. 
 

b. Discuss the barriers to implementation of the program (including recruitment of children for 

comprehensive screening, referrals and follow-up process) and plans for how these barriers 

can be addressed in FY2012.    

 

The barriers we are currently experiencing are parent and community interest. 

We will be providing additional parent education at health fairs, Web-based programming, and 

in the media in the form of newspaper articles and radio talk shows.   We will be going to staff 

meetings for local physicians, and other social service agencies to educate them on the 

importance of the screening process.  Parents are busy and have a hard time keeping scheduled 

appointments for screenings. The screening program is mobile and can be taken to parents in the 

form of home visits, meeting in other community locations and in combination with other early 

childhood events. We can also provide the developmental screenings through the mail so they 

can be completed when parents have time and returned at their convenience.  
 

c. Discuss efforts to expand recruitment of children for screenings to reach the proposed 

target of 250 children. 

 

To expand the recruitment we will be attempting to team with libraries to offer screens during 

story hour. We will be offering screens through the mail. We will be increasing newspaper 

advertisements, and providing an educational piece in the paper to support the importance of 

screening. We are meeting with Community Agencies to increase the referral process. We are 

increasing the amount of clinics offered.  We are teaming with services currently offered (such as 



  6 

Well Baby) to include screens with these existing programs parents are participating in while 

being careful not to duplicate services.  Our staff will be increasing the amount of hours worked 

to be more available on site to offer screening as needed on a walk in basis.  
 

  
2. Based on data submitted, the number of vision, hearing, and developmental screenings 

completed remains at low in comparison to the target service numbers.  
a. Please provide a brief narrative description of your proposed program changes for 

FY2012 and including a detailed plan, including any necessary changes to service 
delivery, to ensure FY2012 goals are met. 

The Early Childhood Screening program only had a part-time employee at 20 hours per week to 

implement the program we are proposing to increase the employee to 30 hours a week to allow 

more time for development of the program.  The program has been diligent in providing all four 

screening to all parents who participant in the program.  Our plan is to offer the developmental 

screenings by mail and at health fairs and encourage parent to follow up at the local clinic for the 

hearing and vision screenings. 
b. Please include your plans for child referral and follow-up as well as a plan to insure 

children continue to receive screening at the appropriate intervals.  This plan should 
include criteria based for referral (type, to whom, etc.) and follow-up of children based 
on scores and age of the child.   

The program currently only screens children once for developmental delays using the Ages and 

Stages Questionnaire tool the children either score above the cutoff or below the cutoff.  The 

assessments which are below the cutoff are referred to AZEIP, the Developmental Learning 

Center or the pre-school in their school district.  We have had children who have scored in the 

monitoring zone near the cutoff area and are provided with the option of referrals to the early 

intervention programs and are given tools to work with their child on the areas which they scored 

low.  In order to educate the community and parents on the importance of developmental 

screening we are going to re-screen the children who score in the monitoring zone at the next 

appropriate interval.  The anticipated outcome is that parents will have their children screened on 

a regular basis to ensure continued age appropriate development.  When this becomes the norm 

we believe parents will educate other parents on the importance of screening.  We currently re-

screen for hearing on all children who do not pass the hearing test.  Referrals are made to the 

child’s Primary Care Physician.  All screenings are sent to the primary care physicians at the 

request of the parent regardless of the outcome.   
3. Please describe your planned efforts to avoid duplication of services provided by other agencies 

such as DES/AzEIP, school districts, DES/DDD and medical providers.  Include a plan for 
improving coordination and collaboration with Child Find efforts in the community. 

 

We have developed a comprehensive demographic sheet which asks if the child has been 

previously screened by any agencies.  We currently co-facilitate the Early Childhood Network 

monthly meetings in Globe/Miami and Hayden/Winkelman areas.  We are going to re-establish 

the Payson Early Childhood Network monthly meetings.  We have met with most of the agencies 

that provide service to birth to five children.  Initially we sent out letter to all the agencies that 

provide service to the target population and we plan to send a follow-up letter for referral and 

outreach.  There have not been child find events in our County for several years.  In order to 

address the goals of child finds the early Childhood Network teams have planned and 

implemented child health fairs.  The health fairs we are planning are inclusive of all agencies that 

would like to participate and we are hoping to develop positive relationships to improve 

collaborative efforts.  
 
 



  7 

 
4. Please describe current and ongoing plans for data collection and submission, including how 

your program is using data to promote optimal service and ongoing improvement. 
a. Please provide the total unduplicated number of children that received one or more 

screenings by quarter.    
 

July 1, 2010 – September 30, 2010 total number of unduplicated children that received 

screenings-30 

October 1, 2010- December 31, 2010 total number of unduplicated children that received 

screenings-10 

January 1, 2011 to current total number of unduplicated children that received screenings-15 

The Community Health Assistant has been working on the mail-out process and currently has 

mailed 35 interested participants a screening packet to complete and return in a stamped self 

addressed envelope.  She plans to email current Gila County employees (600 employees) to 

encourage participation in program and also use as outreach awareness.  

 

We have created an Exit Interview Summary Sheet which documents all children, their age, zip 

code, screenings completed, results of the screenings,  if insurance assistance is needed,  

verification the file was copied and sent to the primary care physician and if a re-screen is 

needed and the documentation of referrals.  The Program Manager reviews all exit Interview 

Summary Sheets and input all necessary fields in the PGMS system quarterly.   

 

The Division of Health and Emergency Services provides satisfaction surveys to the public for 

all services rendered.  Quarterly the satisfaction surveys are reviewed by the Deputy Director of 

each section.  The Early Childhood Screening program is under the Prevention Section.  The 

program also provides a survey to each participant to complete and return for review.  The 

satisfaction surveys provide insight for program review and changes.  The Program Manager and 

the Community Health Assistant review satisfaction surveys to make necessary and or 

appropriate changes to the program implementation.   

 

On a weekly basis the Program Manager and the Community Health Assistant meet to plan new 

innovative ideas for outreach and promotion of the program and to discuss what ideas are 

working and what needs improvement.     
 

5. All First Thing First grantees implementing a Developmental Screening must meet the 
requirements outlined in the Developmental Screening Administration Standards of Practice and 
the Sensory Screening Standards of Practice. Please describe plans, including any necessary 
changes to service delivery, to ensure that these requirements will be met for SFY2012 
implementation. 

No changes will be made to the existing program.  We are currently in compliance with the SOP 

for Sensory and the SOP for Developmental Screening. 
 

6. Because staffing/hiring staff was a barrier to full implementation of the program, what plans do 
you have in place to overcome that/those barriers in SFY2012 implementation?  Include how 
you plan to meet staffing requirements to insure that you reach your target service numbers.  
 

 
In December 2010 a new staff member Nancy Mach was hired. She plans to stay with the 

program indefinitely and is excited to expand the program. We have increased her hours from 20 

to 30 so she is more readily available to complete screens on a walk in basis, and complete more 

clinics.  



 

  8 

Attachment B 
2011 – 2012 Implementation Plan 

 
A c t iv i t ie s  T a s k  P e r s o n  R e s p o n s ib le  D a t e  T a s k  W i l l  B e  

Co m p le t e d / T im e l i n e  
S u p p o r t  D o c u m e n t a t io n  

 

 
 
P rep a ra t io n  
 
 
 

M a i n t a i n  e q u ip m e n t  a n d  s u p p l ie s  fo r  
v i s i o n ,  h ea r in g  a n d  d e v e l o p m en ta l  
a s s es s m en ts  
 

P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  On g o in g  P u rc h a s e  Or d e rs  
I n v o i ce s  

I n v e n t o ry  a n d  p u r ch a s e  I n ce n t iv es  
 

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er  

On g o in g  I n v o i ce s  

P u rc h a s e  o f f i c e  s u p p l ie s  to  m a in t a i n  
m ed ia  c a m p a ig n  

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er  
P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  

On g o in g  I n v o i ce s  
 

Training C o n t in u i n g  e d u ca t i o n  o n  e a r l y  
ch i l d h o o d  d ev e l o p m en t  
 

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er  
P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  

On g o in g  A g en d a s  
C o n f e ren ce  B ro ch u r es  
C la s s  o b j ec t i v e s  

 
 

   

 
 

   

C o o r d i n a t i o n  C o n t a c t  s c h o o l s  to  s ch e d u le  d a t es  t o  
p ro v id e  s c r ee n i n g s  
 

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er   

O n g o in g   S ch e d u le  o f  c l in i cs  

 
C o n t a c t  l ib r a r ie s  to  s ch ed u l e  d a te s  to  
p ro v id e  s c r ee n i n g s  

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er  

O n g o in g  S ch e d u le  o f  c l in i cs  

 
E a r l y  C h i ld h o o d  N e tw o r k  M e et in g s  

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er  
P ro g ra m  M a n a g e r  

On g o in g  S ig n  in  s h ee ts  
A g en d a  
 

Outreach D is t r i b u te  f l y er s ,  m e d i a  
a n n o u n cem e n t s  a n d  em a i l s  
 

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er  
P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  

O n g o in g  F ly er s  
C o p y  o f  n ew s p a p e r  a r t i c l es  
C o p y  o f  em a i l  b l a s ts  

C l i n i c  F ly er  p o s t i n g s ,  m e d ia  
a n n o u n cem e n t s  in  l o c a l  p a p e r s ,  ra d i o  
a n d  em a i l s  to  o th e r  a g en c i es   
 

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
W o rk er  

F i f te en  d a ys  p r i o r  t o  
ev e n t  

F ly er s  
C o p y  o f  n ew s p a p e r  a r t i c l es  
C o p y  o f  em a i l  b l a s ts   

 
 

   

I m p lem e n t a t io n  P ro v id e  s c re en in g s :   c l in i cs ,  w a l k - in s ,  
H o m e v i s i t s ,  m a i l  o u ts ,  co m m u n i ty  
ev e n t s  
 

S c r een e rs  O n g o in g  S ig n  in  s h ee ts  
F ly er s   
E x i t  s u m m a ry  s h ee ts  



 

  9 

E n s u re  p a p e rw o rk  i s  co m p le t e  a n d  
a cc u r a t e  
 

P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  On g o in g  P a p erw o rk  f i led  I n  c a s e  f i le  

 
 

   

 
Follow-up 
 
 
 
 

I f  s e co n d  s c re en  i s  n ee d e d  t h ey  w i l l  
b e  s c h ed u l ed  
 

S c r een e rs  
P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  

W ith in  f i f t ee n  d a y s  o f  
th e  s c r ee n i n g  

S cr een in g  r es u l t  fo rm  
C a s e  r ec o r d  h i s to r y  

 
A p p r o p r i a t e  re fe r ra l s   

S c r een e rs  
P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  

W ith in  o n e  m o n th  o f  
o r ig in a l  s c r ee n  

Re fe r r a l  p a p e rw o rk   
C a s e  r ec o r d  h i s to r y  
 

F o rw a rd  c a s e  f i le  t o  P r im a r y  C a re  
P h ys ic ia n   

C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
A s s i s t a n t  

W ith in  o n e  m o n th  E x i t  S u m m a r y  S h ee t  
C a s e  r ec o r d  h i s to r y  

 
 
E v a l u a t i o n  

Rev i ew  ev a lu a t io n s  P ro g ra m  M a n a g er  
C o m m u n i ty  H ea l t h  
A s s i s t a n t  

Q u a r t er ly  S a t i s fa c t io n  s u r v e y s  
 

Rep o r t in g  P ro v id e  re p o rt  t o  S ta te  F T F ,  G i la  
R eg i o n a l  P a r tn er s h ip  C o u n c i l  a n d  G i l a  
C o u n ty  
 
 

P ro g ra m  M a n g er  Q u a r t er ly  E x i t  S u m m a r y  S h ee t s  
S a t i s fa c t io n  S u rv ey s  
C o p i es  o f  a l l  o u t r ea ch ,  m e e t i n g s ,  
p re s e n t a t io n s  o f  p r o g ra m   

 

 



 

  10 

 

Attachment C 
 

STANDARD LINE ITEM BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS 
 
While you must use this format, you may reproduce it with Word Processing or Spreadsheet 
software.  Limit your budget line items to the following categories: Personnel, Fringe Benefits, 
Professional Services, Travel, Pass-Through (i.e., Sub grants), Other Operating Expenses and 
Administrative/Indirect Costs and to the budget subcategories listed. 

 
As shown, a line item budget justification for each component must be included and describe 
the procedure for determining the cost of budget categories in the budget narrative.  Detail in 
the line item budget narrative strengthens the items requested in the line item budget by 
describing how the cost was determined, the benefit of the item to the program and the how 
the item is essential for the program’s success.   
 
Please keep in mind that requested funds must follow the original scope of work and must 
follow the basic guidelines for grantees related to allowability of costs that demonstrate 
reasonableness for the project and are necessary for the successful implementation of the 
program.  Items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative 
should describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related to 
the project’s implementation.  Please assure that all requested funds follow these guidelines: 
 

 Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of 
First Things First funds. 

 Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations. 

 Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs 
charged and expended by the agency – consistent treatment of costs. 

o For example – a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect 
cost if any other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has 
been allocated to the First Things First award as a direct cost. 

o For example – a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another 
source of funding and a different rate to First Things First. 

 Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 Be adequately documented. 



 

  11 

Attachment C – Line Item Budget 
 

Budget Period:  July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012 
 

Budget Category Line Item Description  Requested Funds Total Cost 

PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total  $30,949.61 

Salaries Program Manager 25% 
Community Health Assistant 75% 
Accounting Clerk 10% 

 $11,336.00 
$16,613.61 
$   3,000.00 

 

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $13019.15 

Fringe Benefits or Other ERE 
 

Program Manager 25% 
Community Health Assistant 75% 
Accounting Clerk 10% 

 $2,011.57 
$10,107.22 
$  900.36 

 

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES  Professional and Outside Services Sub 
Total 

$0 

Contracted Services 
 

N/A    

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $1,112.00 

In-State Travel  
Out of State Travel 

Mileage/per diem/Hotel  $1,112.00  

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total $0 

Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities 

    
 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $6419.24 

 Telephones/Communications Services 

 Internet Access 

 General Office Supplies 

 Food 

 Rent/Occupancy 

 Evaluation (non-contracted and non-personnel 
expenses) 

 Utilities 

 Furniture 

 Postage 

 Software (including IT supplies) 

 Dues/Subscriptions 

 Advertising 

 Printing/Copying 

 Equipment Maintenance 

 Professional Development/Staff Training 

 Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff 

 Insurance 

 Program Materials 

 Program Supplies 

 Scholarships 

 Program Incentives 

Staff Cell Phone 
 
File Folders, paper, ink, ect. 
Health Snacks 8 x $50.00 
 
 
 
 
 
Postage 
 
 
Advertising-Printed Outreach 
Printing 
Calibrate Machine 
College courses 
1 Staff x 4 trainings 
 
 
Brochures and handouts 
Ear plugs and alcohol wipes 
 
Educational incentives 

 $   840.00 
 
$1,000.00 
$    400.00 
 
 
 
 
 
$   229.24 
 
 
$  250.00 
$  200.00 
$   300.00 
$   600.00 
$    400.00 
 
 
$     200.00 
$      300.00 
 
$1,700.00 

 

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total $0 

Equipment $4,999 or less in value     

Subtotal Direct Program Costs:   $ 

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect $5150.00 

Indirect/Admin Costs   $5150.00  

Total  $ $56650.00 
 

  



 

  12 

Attachment C (Continued) 
 

BUDGET NARRATIVE EXPLANATION 
 

Gila County Early Childhood Screening Program 

2010-2011 

Solicitation #:  FTFRC004-10-0129-01 

Personnel 

Paula Horn is the Program Manager.  She oversees all the Maternal and Child Health Programs 

and will be spending 25% of her time on the proposed program for the 12-month grant cycle to 

include attending program related meetings and training.  She will provide assistance with 

purchasing, coordination and outreach of the program.  The program manager will also be 

responsible for the quality assurance, and staff supervision of the program.  The manager’s salary 

will total $11,336.00.   The position of Community Health Assistant is a part-time position 

(75%) filled by Nancy Mach.   She is responsible for daily oversight of program implementation 

for the twelve month grant cycle.  She will provide screenings and follow-up for participants.  

She will be responsible for outreach, media campaign and coordination with other agencies. The 

community health assistant’s salary will total $16,613.61.  Renee Omstead is the accounting 

clerk.  She will provide all the billing and fiscal management for the program.  Each program 

who utilizes the clerk is responsible to pay $3,000.00 to cover her salary. 

Four staff nurses and an administrative clerk senior will be providing screenings with no charge 

to the program.  We will have Carolyn Haro, BSW on staff for any consultation as needed with 

no charge to the program. 

  

Fringe Benefits 

The approved fringe benefits for all Gila County employees include: Arizona Retirement, 

Medicare, Social Security, Arizona Unemployment, Worker’s Compensation, and health 

insurance.  The program manager’s portion will total $2,011.57.  The community health 

assistant’s portion will total $10,107.22. The Accounting Clerk position will total $900.36. 

 

Travel Expenses 

  The Community Health Assistant is required to attend a Gila Regional Partnership Council 

meeting every three months.  Program travel for the manager and community health assistant is 

necessary in the successful implementation of the program including outreach, recruiting 

participants, coordination with local agencies and program implementation.  We have estimated 

mileage to be 100 miles per month at .51 per mile total $612.00.  Per Diem per County 

Guidelines includes hotel ($100/day) and food ($25.00/day) for four overnight trips to screening 

sites and workshops.  This totals $500. Total travel expense will be 1,112.00. 

 

Other Operating Expenses 

One staff cell smart phone to enable access to e-mails and appointments is $840.00.  General 

office supplies include client file folders, paper, ink, and use of copier to duplicate standard 

forms and letters for a total of $1,000.  $400.00 is budgeted to provide healthy snacks for the 

children while they wait to be screened.  Postage was estimated based on the past year to be 

$229.24.  Advertising will include newspaper articles and radio announcements and actual 

purchased advertising in newspapers for a total of $250.00.  Outside printing covers business 

 



 

  13 

cards, tear-offs, and a banner for $200.00.  Equipment maintenance covers calibration of current 

equipment for a total of $300.00.  Community Health Assistant will be taking college courses in 

early childhood development to enhance current education. Conference and workshops covers a 

staff member to attend a conference related to early childhood development for a total of 

$400.00.  Educational brochures and materials to parents on developmental growth will be 

purchased in the amount of $200.00   Program supplies consist of various size probe covers, 

label tape, ink jets, disinfecting wipes and all items needed to perform screenings for a total of 

$300.00.  Program incentives include books and educational prizes to be used as incentives to 

draw individuals to come to the screenings for $1,700.00.  This brings other operating expenses 

to a grand total of $6,419.24. 

 

 

Indirect costs 

As a Gila County employee there are indirect costs for personnel paperwork, finance, mail 

routing, and support staff which will be budgeted in the amount of $5,150.00 per year.  This 

reflects 10% of direct expenses. 
 



 

  14 

Attachment D 
 

KEY PERSONNEL OVERVIEW 
 

*In addition to this overview, please attach a resume (for current personnel if not previously 
submitted to First Things First) or a job description (for positions to be hired and not 
previously submitted to First Things First) for the key individuals involved in the project.

STAFF MEMBER BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL 

Name:  Paula Horn 
Title:  Program Manager 
FTE on this project: 25% 

Supervisor for over seventeen years 
Trained in ASQ 3, ASQ SE, OAE hearing certification 
College CDA classes; Ages/Stages:  Prenatal-Toddler, Support Growth/EDU 
of Parents, Enhance Family Involvement. 
Program Manager of Health programs for over seven years 
Several trainings in Maternal and Child Health such as infant brain 
development, domestic violence, nutrition, breastfeeding counselor, shaken 
baby syndrome, Safe Home Safe Child, pregnancy testing/counseling, 
preconception/interconception care, car seat technician, CPR/First Aid/AED 
instructor. 

Name:  Nancy Mach 
Title:  Community Health 
Asst. 
FTE on this project:75% 

Trained in ASQ 3, ASQ SE, OAE hearing certification 

Name:  Renee Omstead 
Title:  Accounting Clerk 
FTE on this project: 10% 

Employed with Fiscal for over six months. 
Core fiscal training. 
Provide billing for all grants in the Health Department 

Name: Lorraine Dalrymple 
Title: Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project: 2% 

Registered Nurse 
OAE hearing certification 
Child Care Health Consultant Certification 
Staff RN-Pediatrics 

Name: Michelle Craft 
Title:: Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project:2% 

Registered Nurse 
OAE hearing certification 
Child Care Health Consultant Certification 
 

Name: Lucinda Campbell 
Title:  Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project:2% 

Registered Nurse 
OAE hearing certification 
Child Care Health Consultant Certification 
 

Name: Virginia Scales 
Title:: Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project:2% 

Registered Nurse 
OAE hearing certification 
Child Care Health Consultant Certification 
Associate in Child Development 
Early Childhood education Certificate 



 

  15 

Attachment E 
DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES 

 
Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public 
Agencies, Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for 
the funded program*.  Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state 
funds by First Things First expenditures, meaning that no First Things First monies expended are 
to be used to take the place of any existing state or federal funding for early childhood 
development and health programs.   
 
Use a continuation sheet if necessary.  The following form may be reproduced with word 
processing software or another form may be created that contains all the information 
requested.   
 
 

Type of Funding 
(Federal, State, local, other) 

Received From Amount  If used 
for match 

on this 
grant 

N/A 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

TOTAL: 
 

   

*Should include only those funds that will support the program detailed the awarded First Things First grant award 
 
           



 

  16 

Attachment F 
 

FIRST THINGS FIRST STANDARD INFORMATION FORM AND AUTHORIZED 
RENEWAL SUBMISSION SIGNATURE  

 
A.  Agency Information: 
 
Program Name (if applicable) ________Gila County Early Childhood Screening Program_______________________________ 
 

  Agency __Gila County_________________________________             Contact Person ______Paula Horn_________________________ 
 
Address _5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 100___________________              Position ____Health Program Manager___________________ 
 
Address ____________________________________________              Email _____phorn@co.gila.az.us_________________________ 
 
City, State, Zip ____Globe, AZ 85501________________________             Phone ___928-402-8813x______ Fax___928-425-0794_____   
 
County _____Gila________________________________________ Employer Identification Number: _____86-6000444________________  

 
 
Agency Classification:     _____State Agency _x_____County Government _____ Local Government   ______Schools   _____ Tribal      
 
                                            _____ Faith Based   _______ Other 
 
If any of your agency’s vendor information has changed, an updated Substitute W-9 Form is necessary to change payment information.  
http://www.gao.az.gov/onlineforms/forms/AZ_subw-9_010410.pdf 
 
 
In which Congressional (Federal) District is your agency?    Enter District # __1____ 
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps)  
 
In which Legislative (State) District is your agency?   Enter District # ___5___ 
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps)  
 
 
Approximately how much FEDERAL funding (from a Federal Source) will your organization expend in your current fiscal year?   
 
$____7,101,400.00____________________ 
 
 
What is your organization’s fiscal year-end date?  ____6/30/2012_______________ 
 
Accounting Method:        _____ Cash            ___x__Accrual  
 
 
Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?  Y    N 
 
Please provide contact information of the audit firm conducting your audit:  
 

Agency _____Miller, Allen & Co., P.C.______________________________________________________ 
 

Address _____5333 North 7
th

 Street, Suite 100, Phoenix, Arizona 85014__________________________ 
 
Phone Number __(602)264-3888___________________________________________________ 
 
 

http://www.gao.az.gov/onlineforms/forms/AZ_subw-9_010410.pdf
http://www.azredistricting.org/
http://www.azredistricting.org/


 

  17 

 
 

B. Proposed Program Information / Description: 
 
Amount requested: $56,650.00  
 
Service area of proposed program: Gila County  
 
Target population of proposed program: 250   
 

Target Service Unit(s) – Lead First Things First Strategy - Developmental  & Health Screening 
These are the assigned Target Services Units for your primary strategy award from First Things First.  
Please indicate the Target Number for each Target Service Unit(s) for the 2011 – 2012 implementation 
period.  If you are not providing services for a particular Target Service Unit within the assigned 
Strategy please indicate with “NA”.  Indicating with a “0” indicates that you are providing services but 
anticipate serving “0” services for that Target Service Unit(s), NA indicates you are not providing services 
for that Target Service Unit(s). 
 
IMPORTANT:  Please find the full listing of First Things First Target Service Unit descriptions loaded in 
PGMS under Grantee Resources within a folder called Target Service Units.   
 

Total number of children screened for developmental delays to be served:  250______ 
 
Total number of children receiving vision screening to be served:  75  
 
Total number of children receiving hearing screening to be served: 50  
 

C.  Contact Information  
 

We strive to make sure our Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS) is always updated with the 
correct program contact information.  Please provide us with updated contact names, addresses, phone 
numbers, fax numbers, email addresses, etc .for the four (4) designated contact areas in PGMS and we’ll 
confirm the information to be correct in PGMS.  Thank You! 

 

Main Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the Main 
contact for this grant award.     
 
Contact Person __Paula Horn____________________________________________________________ 
 
Position _Health Program Manager________________________________________________________  
 
Address __5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 100__________________________________________________ 
 
City, State, Zip _Globe, AZ  85501________________________________________________________ 
 
Email__phorn@co.gila.az.us_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone ___928-402-8813_________________x_________Fax__928-425-0794_____________________ 
 



 

  18 

Program Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the 
Program contact for this grant award.     
 
Contact Person __Same as above______________________________________________________ 
 
Position __________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City, State, Zip _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Email_______ _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone ________________________________x_________Fax_______________________________ 

 

Financial Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the 
Financial contact for this grant award.     
 
Contact Person ___Renee Omstead_______________________________________________________ 
 
Position ___Accounting Clerk___________________________________________________________  
 
Address ___5515 S. Apache Ave., Ste. 200_______________________________________________ 
 
City, State, Zip __Globe, AZ 85501____________________________________________________ 
 
Email____romstead@co.gila.az.us______________________________________________________ 
 
Phone __928-______________________________x_________Fax__92842501794_________________ 

 

Evaluation Contact Information –   This should be information for the evaluation contact 
person within the grant awarded.   
 
Contact Person __Paula Horn____________________________________________________________ 
 
Position _Health Program Manager________________________________________________________  
 
Address __5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 100__________________________________________________ 
 
City, State, Zip _Globe, AZ  85501________________________________________________________ 
 
Email__phorn@co.gila.az.us_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone ___928-402-8813_________________x_________Fax__928-425-0794_____________________ 
 

 



 

  19 

D.  Proposed Program Information / Description:  
 
Please make sure the description provided is current and accurate.  This program information and description is 
the public summary First Things First uses to describe your program. 

 
Please provide a brief description of the proposed program in one or two paragraphs. 

 

The Gila County Office of Health provides developmental screening to children birth through five years 

of age. We provide a developmental assessment and social-emotional assessment using the Ages and 

Stages Questionnaire screening tool. Vision screenings are provided using a questionnaire, LEA Symbol 

Chart for near and far sightedness, and the Lang Stereopsis test. Hearing screenings are provided using 

the AuDx OAE Hearing Screening System. Parents are informed of the results of the screenings and 

referrals are completed as necessary. Parents are provided with age appropriate activities for their child, 

and given ideas to encourage developmental growth. Copies of the screens and results are forwarded to 

the child’s Primary Care Physician with the authorization of the parents.  

 

The goal of the program is to reach the rural populations which have limited services available to them. 

The screenings are provided in multiple settings including but not limited to: community health fairs, 

schools, pre-schools, daycares, community or social service agencies and clinics throughout Gila 

County. We are currently offering developmental and social-emotional screenings through the mail in 

order to make ease of services for all participants. The screening services are mobile and the screenings 

can be taken directly to the participants/agencies requesting the services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
E.  Authorized Approval and Signature for Renewal Package 

 
Authorized Signature for submission of renewal package including all Attachments and Response to Renewal 
Questions.  This signed submission of renewal package continues the terms, conditions, amendments, 
standards of practice, target service units, and data, narrative and financial reporting requirements provided 
by First Things First for this grant award within this document, the original RFGA/agreement and all 
clarifications.   

 
Authorized Signature:                           Date   

            
Job Title        ______________________________ 



ARF-474     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- L     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health Services Program Manager
Submitted By: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No. GRA-STATE-10-0070-02-Y2

Background Information
This is the second renewal of a contract between the Gila County Office of Health and "First Things First" to have RNs provide
consultation services to regulated child care providers.

Evaluation
This program assists child care providers in Gila County to meet all of the requirements enforced by the State.  It also provides the
child care providers with guidance regarding health and safety issues.  

This program enables current child care providers a resource to improve the quality of their services.

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would be unable to continue providing Childhood Health Consultant Program services to child
care centers in Gila County.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services to approve the First Things First Notice of
Renewal Consideration between First Things First and Gila County in the amount of $25,101 for the period of July 1, 2011,
through June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No. GRA-STATE-10-0070-01-Y2 between Gila County and First
Things First in the amount of $25,101 to extend the Childhood Health Consultation Program for the period of July 1, 2011,
through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: FTF Renewal



  1 

FIRST THINGS FIRST NOTICE OF RENEWAL CONSIDERATION 
 
 
TO:  First Things First Grantees 
 
FROM:  Russell Spencer 

Grants and Contracts Specialist  
 
RE:  Renewal Information 
 
DATE:  March 2, 2011 
 
Your current grant program is approaching renewal consideration from First Things First.   
 
Receipt of this packet does not guarantee renewal of your agreement; it indicates that you are eligible 
for renewal consideration.  First Things First may award programs based on a number of factors 
including past performance and response to this renewal package.   
 
Should you be renewed, you will continue to be responsible for adherence to the terms and conditions 
as set forth in the original Request for Grant Application (RFGA) or grant agreement.  This includes 
adherence to the appropriate standards of practice, program and financial requirements, and timely 
submission of data, narrative, and financial reports.  
 
Attached please find the format for the Renewal Package for First Things First Grant Programs.  The 
Renewal Package Cover Page includes information on the following Attachments: 
• Attachment A – Narrative response to First Things First questions related to implementation and 

data collection 
• Attachment B – Implementation Plan 
• Attachment C – Budget and Budget Narrative 
• Attachment D – Key Personnel 
• Attachment E – Disclosure of Other Funding 
• Attachment F – Standard First Things First Information Form and Authorized Renewal Submission 

Signature 
 

Once renewal applications are submitted and reviewed, recommendations for funding will be made to 
the Board of First Things First.  First Things First staff may contact you for clarifications prior to making 
recommendations to the Regional Partnership Council and/or Board of First Things First.  Contracts will 
be in effect from the date of award through June 30, 2012.  All other rules and regulations, and special 
terms and conditions from awarding RFGA or grant agreement will remain in effect for the contract 
period.   
 
Renewal applications must be received no later than March 25, 2011 by 3:00 pm and can be submitted 
via email, mail or by fax at 602-265-0009.  Please address any questions to me by email at 
rspencer@azftf.gov or by phone at 602-771-5043.  
 
Thank you and I look forward to reviewing your renewal package. 

mailto:rspencer@azftf.gov�


  2 

First Things First  
Grant Renewal Package Instructions 

July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012 
 
Renewal Instructions 
Your First Things First grant is eligible for a program renewal by extending the current grant award from 
July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012.  Programs proposed for 2011-2012 cannot be different in scope than 
the current grant award.   
 
Grantee Name: Gila County Health Department 
First Things First Award 
Number: 

GRA-STATE-10-0070-01-Y2 

Strategy Name: Childhood Health Consultation 
Renewal Funding Eligible 
Amount: 

$25,101 
• $13,101 State Quality First Centers and Homes 
• $12,000 Region Quality First Expansion Centers and Homes 

 
Standards of Practice Assigned: • Child Care Health Consultation 
 

The renewal package does include narrative information as well as required forms as outlined in the 
following attachment sections: 
 
Program Implementation Narrative:  (Attachment A) Please provide a narrative response to the 
questions found in this Attachment. 
 
 
Program Implementation Plan:  (Attachment Form B) Please provide an updated implementation plan 
for your program for 2011 - 2012.  The implementation plan should be related to the originally approved 
program activities, tasks, data collection, data submission, and process.  Please use any necessary 
narrative to further describe your program implementation (Question 2). 
 
2011-2012 Budget Forms (Attachment C – must include line item budget and narrative): 

• Line Item Budget Form 
• Budget Narrative Explanation 

 
Key Personnel/Staff Overview:  (Attachment Form D) Please list all staff that will be paid from this grant 
program during the 2011-2012 grant cycle.  This should match your line item budget and budget 
narrative.  Submit resumes and/or staff change notification forms for new staff or those that have not 
yet been submitted to First Things First previously. The staff change notification form is located under 
the Grantee Resources folder on the PGMS home page. 
 
 
Disclosure of Other Funding Sources (Attachment E) – List any other funding utilized for this program 
administered by your agency. 
 
FTF Standard Information and Authorized Signature  (Attachment Form F):  Please complete all three 
sections detailing: 

• The legal applicant 
• The main, program, financial and evaluation contact information – these contacts should be 

what you want identified for this grant award in First Things First’s Partner Grant 



  3 

Management System (PGMS) 
• The program Target Service Unit(s) assigned for the strategy assigned by First Things First 

and your implementation Target Service Number(s) to be served/completed in 2011-2012 
and any additional Target Service Units(s) and Number(s) needed for your program 
implementation for 2011 – 2012. 

• The program description – brief summary to be used for public descriptions of First Things 
First funded programs 

• Authorized Renewal Submission Signature 

 
Standards of Practice Updates:  Any updates to the Standards of Practice related to the scope of work 
for your award can be found when you log into Partners Grant Management System (PGMS) under 
Grantee Resources.  Updated Standards of Practice are part of the requirements for the award and 
implementation of your grant program.  Please take a moment to make sure you have reviewed the 
latest Standards of Practice. 
 
Model Programs that Require Certification and Accreditation:  It is the grantee’s responsibility to 
maintain accreditation/certification with national program models.  Grantees are to include staff 
training, program model accreditation/certification and quality assurance and evaluation costs in 
budgets, as needed.  Programs will need to refer to their National office and/or administrative home for 
cost information, if applicable. 
 
Compliance with State and Federal Law:  As a reminder, all other state rules, regulations, and special 
terms and conditions will remain in effect for the contract period.  This renewal application information 
becomes part of the agreement and expectations for program implementation and performance.  A 
complete listing of the state uniform terms and conditions can be found via the State Procurement 
Office website at:  http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp.    Additionally, First Things 
First will post any important grantee requirement and updated Communications Protocol information 
under the Grantee Resources section of PGMS. 
 
Grantees must maintain compliance with the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all 
other federal immigration laws and regulations related to the immigration status of its employees.  
These warranties shall remain in effect through the term of the agreement.  Grantees will also maintain 
Employment Eligibility Verification forms (I-9) as required by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Immigration 
and Control Act for all employees performing work under the agreement.  I-9 forms are available for 
download at USCIS.GOV.   
 
FTF may request verification for any Contractor or subcontractor performing work under the 
agreement.  Should FTF suspect or find that a grantee is not in compliance with state or federal laws, 
FTF may pursue any and all remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to:  suspension of work, 
termination of the agreement for default and suspension and/or debarment of the grantee.  All costs 
necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility of the grantee.   
 
Data Security:

 

  All grantees must have a data security policy in force which identifies how the 
organization ensures that data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from 
inappropriate access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction.  

All grantees subject to HIPPPA, FERPA, GITA, or other data regulation, are required to submit and 
maintain those approvals for all data.  If HIPPPA, FERPA or other data regulation requires that 
participating individuals give consent to data collection on their person and if in the course of regular 
data submissions to FTF such data will be provided to FTF, submission of personal data to FTF must be 
reflected in all data regulation documents.  

http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp�


  4 

 
Program Performance:  First Things First provides program information to the public, Regional 
Partnership Councils, and the Board of First Things First.  The information regularly provided to the 
Regional Partnership Councils and Board of First Things First will include proposed renewal information, 
submission of data related to performance measures and target service units, prior program 
implementation performance information, program narrative information, and financial information.   
Regional Councils utilize this information as part of the elements necessary to continue strategic 
planning that is demonstrated in priorities for annual Funding Plans, renewal decisions, development of 
new or modified strategies, review of the impact that program implementation has had in the region 
and state as well as achievement of system building. 
 
Renewal Package Due Date:  Renewal Package must be received by March 25, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. and 
submitted via mail, fax or email to:  

Russell Spencer, Grants and Contracts Specialist 
4000 North Central Avenue, Suite 800 
Phoenix, AZ  85012 
rspencer@azftf.gov 
602-265-0009 fax 

mailto:rspencer@azftf.gov�


  5 

Attachment A 
Program Implementation Questions 

 
Please provide a narrative response to the questions below.  To ensure that you are not 
changing the scope of work of your original grant, you must use the same programs and/or 
strategies as described in your original proposal, unless you have obtained prior approval.  
 
Question 1 (Complete A, B, and/or C as appropriate) 
A) If your program received approved modifications, please describe those modifications and 
how they will continue to be implemented in 2011-2012.   
 
B) If you have proposed modifications moving forward, please describe how they will enhance 
program implementation and/or why they are necessary for the program to be successful in 
2011-2012.   
 
C) If there are no modifications or no planned modifications, please indicate no modifications 
necessary and provide a brief description of the existing program implementation as proposed 
in Question 2.   
 
No modifications have been made. 
 
Question 2  
Please provide a brief narrative description of your proposed program that will be implemented 
in 2011-2012.  This description should match information provided in your Implementation Plan 
(Attachment B) and explain anything from the Implementation Plan needing additional 
description. 
 
This program will continue to provide health consultation services by Child Care Health 
Consultants (CCHC) to regulated child care providers enrolled in Quality First.  The CCHC’s will 
provide guidance regarding health and safety issues as described in the “First Things First” 
contract to participating providers. 
 
Question 3  
Please describe current and ongoing plans for data collection and submission, including how 
your program is using data to promote optimal service and ongoing improvement. 
 
Monthly reports will be submitted to “First Things First” using the required form.  The CCHC’s 
have access to the First Things First Intranet and have received training for the software on 
7/22/10 (Omaha and Carefacts) for data documentation.  The CCHC’s performed joint visits 
with the FTF Coach at all facilities (Payson and Globe).    
 



 

  6 

Attachment Form B 
2011 – 2012 Implementation Plan 

 
A c t iv i t ie s  T a s k  P e r s o n  R e s p o n s ib le  D a t e  T a s k  W i l l  B e  

Co m p le t e d / T im e l i n e  
S u p p o r t  D o c u m e n t a t io n  

 
 
Preparation 
 
 
 
 

 
C o n t i n u e  t o  p u r c h a s e  e q u i p m e n t  a n d  
S u p p l i e s  f o r  C C H C ’ s  

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  

 
O c t o b e r  1 ,  2 0 1 1  

 
P u r c h a s e  o r d e r s / i n v o i c e s  

 
P u r c h a s e  i n c e n t i v e s  f o r  C h i l d  C a r e  
C e n t e r  

 
C C H C ’ s  

 
S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 1 1  

 
P u r c h a s e  o r d e r s / i n v o i c e s  

 
P u r c h a s e  s u p p l i e s   t o  p r o m o t e  C C H C  
p r o g r a m  

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  

 
O c t o b e r  1 ,  2 0 1 1  

 
P u r c h a s e  o r d e r s / i n v o i c e s  

 
 
Training 

 
A d d i t i o n a l  T r a i n i n g  o f  C C H C  
 

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  

 
O n g o i n g  

 
C e r t i f i c a t e  o f  A t te n d a n c e  
I n v o i c e s  fo r  t r a v e l  e x p e n s e s .  

P r o v i d e  r e v i e w  
 

P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  O c t o b e r  3 1 ,  2 0 1 1  M e e t  w i th  C C H C  t o  d i s c u s s  a n y  
c o n c e r n s  

 
C o o r d i n a t i o n  

S e t  u p  n e c e s s a r y  p a p e r w o r k  a n d  
t r a v e l  n e e d s  fo r  C C H C  i n s p e c t i o n s  
 

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  a n d  
C C H C ’ s  

 
S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 1 1  

 
M o n th l y  r e p o r t  

C o n t a c t  Q u a l i t y  F i r s t  D a y c a r e  C e n t e r s  
T o  p r o v i d e  a s s e s s m e n t s  &  a s s i s t a n c e  

C C H C ’ s  o n g o i n g  C a r e fa c t s  d o c u m e n ta t i o n  

 
C o n f i r m  d a te s  o f  c o m m u n i t y  H e a l t h  
fa i r s  
 

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  

 
O n g o i n g  

 
A t t e n d a n c e  t o  e v e n ts  

 
Outreach 

 
P r e s e n ta t i o n  B o a r d  u s e d  f o r  
p r o m o t i n g  th e  C C H C  P r o g r a m  a n d  
“ F i r s t  T h i n g s  F i r s t ”  t o  b e  d i s p l a y e d  a t  
H e a l th  F a i r s .  

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r   a n d  
C C H C ’ s  

 
O n g o i n g  

 
 
I n v o i c e s  a n d  a t te n d a n c e  to  e v e n ts  

 
I m p l e m e n t a t i o n  

S c h e d u l e  D a y c a r e  v i s i t s  t o  p r o v i d e  
a s s e s s m e n ts  a n d  a s s i s t a n c e  
 

 
C C H C ’ s  

 
S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 1 1  

 
R e p o r t s  to  “ F i r s t  T h i n g s  F i r s t ”  

E n s u r e  r e p o r ts  a r e  c o m p l e t e  a n d  
a c c u r a t e  
 

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  

 
O c t o b e r  1 ,  2 0 1 1  

 
R e p o r t s  to  “ F i r s t  T h i n g s  F i r s t ”  

 
 
 
F o l l o w - u p  
 
 

 
S c h e d u l e  r e v i s i t s  a s  n e e d e d  

C C H C ’ s  O n g o i n g  R e p o r t s  to  “ F i r s t  T h i n g s  F i r s t ”  
C a r e fa c t s  s o f tw a r e  

P r o v i d e  a s s i s ta n c e  t o  D a y  C a r e s  a s  
n e e d e d  
 

 
C C H ’ s  

 
O n g o i n g  

 
R e p o r t s  to  “ F i r s t  T h i n g s  F i r s t ”  
C a r e fa c t s  s o f tw a r e  



 

  7 

 
 

 
Evaluation 
 
 
 

 
R e c e i v e ,  r e v i e w  a n d  r e s o l v e  q u a l i t y  
p e r f o r m a n c e  i s s u e s .  

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  

 
O n g o i n g  

 
R e p o r t s  to  “ F i r s t  T h i n g s  F i r s t ”  

 
C o l l e c t/ r e p o r t  d a t a ,  s u r v e y s ,  
e v a l u a t i o n  r e p o r t s  a s  r e q u e s t e d  b y  
F T F  o r  q u a l i ty  a s s u r a n c e  p e r s o n n e l  

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r  

 
O n g o i n g  

 
M o n th l y  r e p o r ts  t o  “ F i r s t  T h i n g s  
F i r s t”  

 
 

   

 
Reporting 
 
 
 

 
E n s u r e  a l l  r e p o r ts  a r e  p r o v i d e d  t o  F T F  
i n  a  t i m e l y  m a n n e r  a s  s p e c i f i e d  i n  t h e  
c o n t r a c t  

 
P r o g r a m  M a n a g e r   

 
O n g o i n g  

 
M o n th l y  r e p o r ts  a n d  c o m p u t e r i z e d  
d o c u m e n ta t i o n  b y  Q u a l i ty  F i r s t .   
C a r e fa c t s  u p d a t e s  a t  l e a s t  e v e r y  5  
d a y s .  

 



 

  8 

 

Attachment Form C 
 

STANDARD LINE ITEM BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS 
 
While you must use this format, you may reproduce it with Word Processing or Spreadsheet 
software.  Limit your budget line items to the following categories: Personnel, Fringe Benefits, 
Professional Services, Travel, Pass-Through (i.e., Sub grants), Other Operating Expenses and 
Administrative/Indirect Costs and to the budget subcategories listed. 

 
As shown, a line item budget justification for each component must be included and describe 
the procedure for determining the cost of budget categories in the budget narrative.  Detail in 
the line item budget narrative strengthens the items requested in the line item budget by 
describing how the cost was determined, the benefit of the item to the program and the how 
the item is essential for the program’s success.   
 
Please keep in mind that requested funds must follow the original scope of work and must 
follow the basic guidelines for grantees related to allowability of costs that demonstrate 
reasonableness for the project and are necessary for the successful implementation of the 
program.  Items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative 
should describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related to 
the project’s implementation.  Please assure that all requested funds follow these guidelines: 
 

• Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of 
First Things First funds. 

• Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations. 
• Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs 

charged and expended by the agency – consistent treatment of costs. 
o For example – a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect 

cost if any other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has 
been allocated to the First Things First award as a direct cost. 

o For example – a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another 
source of funding and a different rate to First Things First. 

• Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
• Be adequately documented. 



 

  9 

Attachment C – Line Item Budget 
 

Budget Period:  July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012 
 

Budget Category Line Item Description  Requested Funds Total Cost 

PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total  $3,500.00 

Salaries Accounting Services  $3,500.00 $3,500.00 
 

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $ 
Fringe Benefits or Other ERE 
 

    

  Professional and Outside Services Sub 
Total 

$ 

Contracted Services 
 

    

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $4,000.00 

In-State Travel  
Out of State Travel 

Hotels and per diem /  4 trainings  $4,000 $4,000.00 
 

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total $ 
Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities 

    
 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $9,627.90 
• Telephones/Communications Services 
• Internet Access 
• General Office Supplies 
• Food 
• Rent/Occupancy 
• Evaluation (non-contracted and non-personnel 

expenses) 
• Utilities 
• Furniture 
• Postage 
• Software (including IT supplies) 
• Dues/Subscriptions 
• Advertising 
• Printing/Copying 
• Equipment Maintenance 
• Professional Development/Staff Training 
• Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff 
• Insurance 
• Program Materials 
• Program Supplies 
• Scholarships 
• Program Incentives 

 
 
Pens, paper, etc 
Trainings, Daycare Personnel 
 
 
 
 
Work Station 
Correspondence 
 
Natl Assoc. of Ed of Young Child. 
 
Ink Jets 
Calibration of Equipment 
Training Workshops 
CCHC Training Supplies 
 
 
Educational Materials/Pamphlets 
Handwashing Supplies 
 
Possters/coloring books, etc. 

  
 
$517.90 
$200.00 
 
 
 
 
3,800.00 
$100.00 
 
$90.00 x 3 
 
$596.00 
$350.00 
$200.00 
    40.00 
 
 
$1,00.000 
     554.00 
 
$2,000.00 

 
 
  $517.90 
  $200.00 
 
 
 
 
 3,800.00  
  $100.00 
 
  $270.00 
 
   $596.00 
     350.00 
     200.00 
       40.00 
 
 
 1,000.00 
     554.00 
 
  2,000.00 

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total $5,463.00 
Equipment $4,999 or less in value See Narrative   

 
$5,463.00 

Subtotal Direct Program Costs:   $ 

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect $2,510.10 

Indirect/Admin Costs   $2,510.10 $ 

Total  $ $25,101.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  10 

The budget should be adequate to ensure that the appropriate number of Centers and Homes designated for 
services through the award can be achieved.  The following chart represents the distribution of funding 
available for the award and the number of anticipated centers and homes that can be served through this 
award. 
 

Regional Partnership Council Participation $25,101 
Gila Regional Partnership Council  
• $13,101 for State Quality First Participation 

o 1 Centers 
o 3 Homes 

• $12,000 for State Quality First Regional Expansion Participation 
o 3 Centers 
o 0 Homes 

 



 

  11 

 

Attachment Form C (Continued) 
 

BUDGET NARRATIVE EXPLANATION 
 

The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget line 
items.  The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures on the 
budget form (Attachment C Line Item Budget).  Please verify that the narrative and budget form 
correspond and the calculations and totals are accurate.  Please include one narrative for your Line 
Item Budget of 12 months.  Limit your budget categories and subcategories to those listed. 
 
NOTE:  Briefly highlight any changes to your budget from the previous Fiscal Year, particularly those 
line items where your budget has increased.  If the total funds available under this contract have 
increased from the previous year, only one description of the sum of budget increases is needed.  
 
Personnel Services:  The accounting clerk will continue to be the only position paid for by this grant.  
The set amount per grant has been reduced to $3,500.00 
 
Employee Related Expenses:  None 
 
Professional and Outside Services:  None 
 
Travel:  Hotels 4 nights for three CCHC’s for training at $100.00 totals $1,200 
 Per Diem at $25.00/day per CCHC times 12 days totals $300.00 
 Vehicle lease from county pool: $2,500.00 
 Grand Total is a reduction of $375.00 to total $4,000.00      
 
Aid to Organizations or Individuals: N/A 
 
 Other Operating Expenses:   Categorized in the following categories: 
 Telephones / Communications Services: 
 Internet Access:  N/A 
 General Office Supplies:  Note pads, pencils, pens, staplers for 2 locations, supplies to set up new work 
area.  $517.90 (An increase of $317.90) 
 Food:  8 classes (4 at each site for providers/parents @ $50.00) - $200.00   
 Rent/Occupancy: N/A 
 Evaluation (non-contracted and non-personnel expenses):  N/A 
 Utilities: N/A 
 Furniture: $3,500.00 work station for CCHC (Program expansion requires CCHC to have own desk 
instead of sharing with other workers) 
 Postage:  For correspondence with day care providers $100.00  
Software (including IT supplies):  None 
 Dues/Subscriptions:   Dues for 3 CCHC – Nat’l Assoc. of Education of Young Children  $270.00 
Advertising: 
Printing/Copying: 
 Ink Jets for Printers:  3 black @ $137 each and 1 color @$185.00 - $596.00 

 Equipment Maintenance:  Calibration of equipment (2) $350.00 
 Professional Development/Staff Training:  Registrations for training $200.00 
 Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff:  Materials for CCHC training in Phoenix - $40.00 
 Insurance: None 



 

  12 

 Program Materials:  Educational Materials – Pamphlets - $1,000.00 
 Program Supplies:  Glitterbug Potion and Glitterbug Powder $554.00 

 GlitterBug Potion Pump Bottle case of 24 - $361 and case of Powder - $193 to be used for 
handwashing training. 

Scholarships:  N/A 
 Program Incentives:  Posters for Day Cares, Educational coloring books, literature, etc. for parents and 
children. - $2,000.00 
The total amount is $9,627.90, an increase of $4,077.90 
 
 
Non-Capital Equipment:  
 
2 Multimedia Projectors (Globe/Payson Offices) @ $650.00  Total    $1,300.00 
2 Projector Screens @ $200.00           400.00 
2 GlitterBug MaxiCam Kits with Carry Bag  @ $700.00    1,400.00 
2 GlitterBug Buddy Kits @ $160.00                       320.00 
Vision Equipment 
 2 color keys @ $85.00                170.00 
 1 color key @ $80.00                    80.00 
 1 lang stereopsis @ 130.00              130.00 
 1 Good lite LED Instra Line Quantum $1,663.00                 1,663.00 
 
           Grand Total:  $5,463.00 
 
This is an increase of $585.00.  
 
Administrative/Indirect Costs:  $2,510.10 
 
Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses 
included: 
 
Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project.  The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs 
that are usually treated as indirect. 
 

� Option A - Administrative Costs:  with proper justification and description explaining how these 
costs are consistent with the agency’s cost allocation for how these costs are consistently treated 
for funds received by the agency.  Sub grantees may include an allocation for administrative 
costs for up to 10% of the total direct funds requested of the grant request.  Administrative costs 
may include allocable direct charges for:  costs of financial, accounting, auditing, contracting or 
general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including overall organization’s management 
improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance that protects the organization(s) 
responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs solely attributable to the project.  
Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries and benefits of the project’s 
director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time spent in support of a specific 
project. 

Or 
 

� Option B - Federally Approved Indirect Costs:  If your organization has a federally approved 
indirect cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up 



 

  13 

to 10% of the grant request.  Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved 
indirect cost rate agreement. 

 
Our current county rate is 10% option A



 

  14 

Attachment Form D 
 

KEY PERSONNEL OVERVIEW 
 

 
*In addition to this overview, please attach a resume (for current personnel if not previously 
submitted to First Things First) or a job description (for positions to be hired and not 
previously submitted to First Things First) for the key individuals involved in the project. 

 

STAFF MEMBER BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL 
Name: Lorraine Dalrymple 
Title: Health Services Program 
Manager 
FTE on this project: 2% 

• Registered Nurse 
• Staff RN – Pediatrics 
• RN Pediatric Home Care 
• CCHC Certification 

 
Name:  Michelle Craft 
(Graney) 
Title:  Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project:  10% 

• Registered Nurse 
• CCHC Certification 
 

Name: Lucinda Campbell 
Title: Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project: 10% 

• Registered Nurse 
• CCHC Certification 

Name: Ramona (Ginnie) 
Scales 
Title:  Public Health Nurse 
FTE on this project: 5% 

• Registered Nurse 
• Associate in Child Development 
• Early Childhood Education Certificate (2002) 
• CCHC Certified 



 

  15 

Attachment E 
DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES 

 
Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public 
Agencies, Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for 
the funded program*.  Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state 
funds by First Things First expenditures, meaning that no First Things First monies expended are 
to be used to take the place of any existing state or federal funding for early childhood 
development and health programs.   
 
Use a continuation sheet if necessary.  The following form may be reproduced with word 
processing software or another form may be created that contains all the information 
requested.   
 
 

Type of Funding 
(Federal, State, local, other) 

Received From Amount  If used 
for match 

on this 
grant 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

TOTAL: 
 

  0 

*Should include only those funds that will support the program detailed the awarded First Things First grant award 
 
           



 

  16 

Attachment Form F 
 

FIRST THINGS FIRST STANDARD INFORMATION FORM AND AUTHORIZED 
RENEWAL SUBMISSION SIGNATURE  

 
A.  Agency Information: 
 
Program Name (if applicable) ___Gila County Child Care Health Consultant Program 

  Agency _Gila County Division Of Health and Community Services             Contact Person _Lorraine Dalrymple__________ 
 
Address __5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100____________                  Position __Health Services Program Manager____________ 
 
Address ____________________________________________              Email __ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us______________ 
 
City, State, Zip _Globe, AZ_85501______________             Phone __(928) 402-8807_____ Fax_ (928) 425-0794________   
 
County ___Gila______________________________________ Employer Identification Number: __86-6000444_________  
 
 
Agency Classification:     _____State Agency ____X__County Government _____ Local Government   ______Schools   _____ Tribal      
 
                                            _____ Faith Based   _______ Other 

 
If any of your agency’s vendor information has changed, an updated Substitute W-9 Form is necessary to change payment information.   
http://www.gao.az.gov/onlineforms/forms/AZ_subw-9_010410.pdf 

 
 
In which Congressional (Federal) District is your agency?    Enter District # __1___ 
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps)  
 
In which Legislative (State) District is your agency?   Enter District # __5___ 
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps)  
 
 
Approximately how much FEDERAL funding (from a Federal Source) will your organization expend in your current fiscal year? 
$______$7,101,400.00__ 
 
 
What is your organization’s fiscal year-end date? ____6/30/____________ 
 
Accounting Method:        _____ Cash            ___X__Accrual  
 
 
 
Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?    Y    N 
 
Please provide contact information of the audit firm conducting your audit:  
 

Agency __Miller, Allen & Co., P.C.___________________________________ 
 

Address __5333 North 7th Street, Suite 100, Phoenix, AZ 85014_________________ 
 
Phone Number __(602) 264-3888__________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.gao.az.gov/onlineforms/forms/AZ_subw-9_010410.pdf�
http://www.azredistricting.org/�
http://www.azredistricting.org/�


 

  17 

B. Proposed Program Information / Description: 
 
 
Amount requested:   $25,101.00  
 
 
Service area of proposed program:  Gila County  
 
 
Target population of proposed program: State and Regional “Quality First” Child Care providers  
 
 

Target Service Unit(s) – Lead First Things First Strategy 
These are the assigned Target Services Units for your primary strategy award from First Things First.  
Please indicate the Target Number for each Target Service Unit(s) for the 2011 – 2012 implementation 
period.  If you are not providing services for a particular Target Service Unit within the assigned 
Strategy please indicate with “NA”. Indicating with a “0” indicates that you are providing services but 
anticipate serving “0” services for that Target Service Unit(s), NA indicates you are not providing services 
for that Target Service Unit(s). 
 
IMPORTANT:  Please find the full listing of First Things First Target Service Unit descriptions loaded in 
PGMS under Grantee Resources within a folder called Target Service Units.   
 
Target Services Numbers should match the Target Numbers identified in Attachment C.  If you note 
differences in expected Targets, please describe why there is a difference in the program narrative. 
 
 

State Quality First CCHC 
 
Number of home based providers to be served: 3  
 
 
Number of center based providers to be served: 1  
 
 

 

Regional Quality First Expansion CCHC 
 
 
Number of home based providers to be served: 0  
 
 
Number of center based providers to be served: 3  
 
 



 

  18 

 
C.  Contact Information  
 

We strive to make sure our Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS) is always updated with the 
correct program contact information.  Please provide us with updated contact names, addresses, phone 
numbers, fax numbers, email addresses, etc .for the four (4) designated contact areas in PGMS and we’ll 
confirm the information to be correct in PGMS.  Thank You! 

 
 

Main Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the Main 
contact for this grant award.     
 
Contact Person __Lorraine Dalrymple_______________________________________ 
 
 
Position ___Health Services Program Manager____________________________________________  
 
 
Address ___5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_________________________________________ 
 
 
City, State, Zip   Globe, AZ 85501_____________________________________ 
 
 
Email   ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Phone __(928) 402-8807_________Fax_____(928) 425-0794__________________________ 
 
 
 
 

Program Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the 
Program contact for this grant award.     
 
Contact Person __Lorraine Dalrymple_______________________________________ 
 
 
Position ___Health Services Program Manager____________________________________________  
 
 
Address ___5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_________________________________________ 
 
 
City, State, Zip   Globe, AZ 85501_____________________________________ 
 
 
Email   ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Phone __(928) 402-8807_________Fax_____(928) 425-0794__________________________ 



 

  19 

 
Financial Contact Information – This should be information for the person designated as the 
Financial contact for this grant award.     
 
Contact Person:  Renee Omstead______________________________ 
 
 
Position _Accounting Clerk____________________________________________  
 
 
Address _5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200______________________________ 
 
 
City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501_______________________________________ 
 
 
Email___romstead@co.gila.az.us_____________________________________ 
 
 
Phone __(928) 402-4332________________x_________Fax_(928) 425-0794_______ 
 
 
 
 
Evaluation Contact Information –   This should be information for the evaluation contact 
person within the grant awarded.   
Contact Person __Lorraine Dalrymple_______________________________________ 
 
 
Position ___Health Services Program Manager____________________________________________  
 
 
Address ___5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100_________________________________________ 
 
 
City, State, Zip   Globe, AZ 85501_____________________________________ 
 
 
Email   ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Phone __(928) 402-8807_________Fax_____(928) 425-0794__________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  20 

D.  Proposed Program Information / Description:  
 
Please make sure the description provided is current and accurate.  This program information and description is 
the public summary First Things First uses to describe your program. 
 
Please provide a brief description of the proposed program in one or two paragraphs. 
 
Program Description: 
 
 

This program will provide health consultation services by Certified Child Care Health Consultants 
(CCHC’s) to regulated child care providers enrolled in Quality First.  The CCHC’s provide guidance 
regarding health and safety issues to participating providers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
E.  Authorized Approval and Signature for Renewal Package 

 
Authorized Signature for submission of renewal package including all Attachments and Response to Renewal 
Questions.  This signed submission of renewal package continues the terms, conditions, amendments, 
standards of practice, target service units, and data, narrative and financial reporting requirements provided 
by First Things First for this grant award within this document, the original RFGA/agreement and all 
clarifications.   

 
 

Authorized Signature:                           Date   
            

 
Job Title:  Chairman, Board of Supervisors        ______ 



ARF-409     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- M     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager

Department: County Manager

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

3/15/11 to 12/31/2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
IGA-Economic Development Grant to City of Globe for Old Dominion Historic Mine Park

Background Information
On January 18, 2011, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved a Gila County
Economic Development Grant to the City of Globe in the amount of not to exceed $65,000 for
the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park project, subject to the drafting and approval by the
Board of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the City of Globe.

Evaluation
The IGA-Economic Development Grant between Gila County and the City of Globe for use in
construction of the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park project was approved by the Globe City
Council on March 14, 2011.

Conclusion
This IGA is particularly important as it will help the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of
Commerce and the City of Globe in their efforts to further the economic development within
Gila County.

Recommendation
The staff recommends that the County approve the IGA-Economic Development Grant
between Gila County and the City of Globe in an amount not to exceed $65,000 for use in
construction of the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park of which said funds must be used by
December 31, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement-Economic Development Grant between Gila
County and the City of Globe whereby the County will disburse up to $65,000 to the City of
Globe for use in construction of the the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park.

Attachments
Link: IGA Economic Development Grant -City of Globe









ARF-478     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- N     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Proclamation No. 11-05 - April as Fair Housing Month in Gila County

Background Information
April 11, 2011, marks the 43rd anniversary of the passage of the U.S. Fair Housing Law, title VIII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, as amended,  which enunciates a national policy of Fair Housing without regard to race, color, creed,
national origin, sex, familial status, and handicap, and encourages fair housing opportunities for all citizens.  Gila
County Community Services CAP/Housing Services is committed to highlight the Fair Housing Law, Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1968, by continuing to address discrimination in our community, to support programs that will
educate the public about the right to equal housing opportunities, and to plan partnership efforts with other
organizations to help assure every American of their right to fair housing.

April has been named Fair Housing month by the Gila County Board of Supervisors for over 10 years. 

Evaluation
Because Gila County Community Services CAP/Housing Services receives CDBG (Community Development Block
Grant) funding, it is required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and Arizona
Department of Housing to proclaim April as Fair Housing Month.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors proclaiming April as Fair Housing Month, Gila County Community Services
CAP/Housing Services will be in compliance with requirements under HUD and the Arizona Department of Housing.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services CAP/Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Proclamation No. 11-05.

Suggested Motion
Approval to adopt Proclamation No. 11-05 proclaiming April as Fair Housing Month in Gila County.

Attachments
Link: Proclamation No. 11-05





ARF-447     Item #:  4- O     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  

Reporting Period: Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for February
2011

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Superior Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for February 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the February 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace.

Attachments
Link: Globe Regional Justice Court Report for 02/11
Link: Globe Regional Justice Court Report for 02/11







ARF-463     Item #:  4- P     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  
Reporting Period: Payson Constable Monthly Report for February 2011
Submitted For: Colt White, Payson

Regional Constable
Submitted By: Cheryle Wood,

Constable - Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Constable Monthly Report for February 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the February 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable

Attachments
Link: Payson Constable Report for 02/11

























































ARF-467     Item #:  4- Q     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  

Reporting Period: Board of Supervisors meeting minutes for August 10, 2010,
August 16, 2010, August 31, 2010, & September 7, 2010

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer,
Deputy Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer,
Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
Board of Supervisors meeting minutes for August 10, 2010, August 16, 2010, August
31, 2010, & September 7, 2010

Suggested Motion
Approval of the August 10, 2010, August 16, 2010, August 31, 2010, and September
7, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments
Link: BOS Meeting Minutes for 08/10/10
Link: BOS Meeting Minutes for 08/16/10
Link: BOS Meeting Minutes for 08/31/10
Link: BOS Meeting Minutes for 09/07/10



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 10, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, County Manager; John Nelson, 
Deputy County Manager/Clerk; Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and 
Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in Regular Session and a Work 
Session at 10:00 a.m. this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  
Bryan Chambers led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-08-03 
authorizing the Board of Supervisors to submit a letter to the Governor of 
the State of Arizona and a letter to the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) in opposition to the EPA’s recent proposal to 
designate the area of Hayden, Arizona, as being in nonattainment of the 
National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) for lead. 
  
Supervisor Dawson stated that the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has 
acted like it is doing ASARCO, a copper mining company, a favor by labeling 
the area of Hayden, Arizona, as a non-attainment area.   Supervisor Dawson 
noted that she has met with members of ASARCO, which is owned by Grupo 
Mexico, a company that has made every effort to meet the EPA requirements.  
Grupo has the ability to close ASARCO down and it could very easily happen if 
the company decides it can spend its money wiser some place where it is 
wanted.  She recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt a resolution 
authorizing the Board to submit a letter to the Governor of the State of Arizona 
and to the EPA in opposition to the EPA’s recent proposal.  Supervisor Dawson 
then read aloud the Resolution.  If approved, a letter to the Governor of Arizona 
and the San Francisco EPA will follow.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 



2 

Resolution No. 10-08-03 authorizing the Board of Supervisors to submit a 
letter to the Governor of the State of Arizona and a letter to the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in opposition to the EPA’s recent 
proposal to designate the area of Hayden, Arizona, as being in nonattainment 
of the National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) for lead.  (A copy of the 
Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
Item 3 - Information/Discussion with members of the Gila County 
Planning and Zoning Commission regarding the Gila County Land Use 
Resource Policy Plan (LURPP).   
 
Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director, stated that members 
of the Gila County Planning and Zoning (P & Z) Commission have completely 
reviewed the Gila County Land Use Resource Policy Plan (LURPP) and the 
major change has been in its “tone”.  In 1997 when the Board adopted the 
LURPP, it contained language stating that Gila County would work 
cooperatively, putting the onus on the County.  In this revision, the wording 
has been changed to state that the federal and state agencies must 
“coordinate” with Gila County.  Another change is that all of the policies now 
contain a statement that Gila County may request peer review from 
professional, scientific or academic agencies where disputes are involved in 
regard to working with the federal government.   Also added were 3 policy 
areas--Scenic Sites, Historic Sites and Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILT).  Mr. 
Gould stated that 4 public meetings have been held—the first meeting was held 
in Tonto Basin in conjunction with Chairman Pastor’s regular monthly meeting 
and there were about 25-30 people in attendance; the second meeting was held 
at the City of Globe in which only 1 person attended; the third meeting was 
held at the Town of Payson with no one in attendance; and the final meeting 
was held in Young on a rainy Saturday and again no one showed up.  The lack 
of attendance was baffling to the members because in Young there was actually 
a billboard sign out in front advertising the meeting.  He stated, “We just don’t 
believe people were concerned about it.”  At the Tonto Basin meeting, the 
residents there were very supportive of the LURPP with no negative comments 
being given.  Prior to the 4 public meetings, a comment was submitted by Terry 
Wheeler and Tom Hale requesting a review of the wording and advising that a 
strong emphasis should be included regarding “coordination.”  When the 
members of the P & Z Commission reviewed and researched this issue, it was 
agreed that the suggestion given was appropriate so that change was made in 
the draft document that the Board was reviewing.   He stated that 2 more 
meetings are scheduled—one with the entire Planning & Zoning Commission is 
scheduled on August 19th with the original intent of approving a 
recommendation to the Board on how to proceed with the final draft; however, 
very few changes have been made.  The final meeting is scheduled for the end 
of September with the Board.  The new draft with all the additional changes of 



3 

the LURPP will be mailed to all public agencies after this meeting so that 
everyone has it prior to the next hearings.  Mr. Gould then called on Jay 
Spehar, a member of the P & Z Commission.  Mr. Spehar stated that the first 
LURPP was written in 1997, which was led by Ron Christensen, former County 
Supervisor, to get the County a “badly needed document.”  Then, 
approximately 1-1/2 years ago, the Board of Supervisors asked the P & Z 
Commission to take a look at the original LURPP because it was in need of 
revision and, in fact, revision was required and hadn’t been done over a long 
period of time.  A committee comprised of members of the P & Z Commission 
reviewed the LURPP.  The original LURPP was based on the word “cooperation,” 
which is a technical term under NEPA (National Environmental Protection Act), 
and the way federal agencies are expected to cooperate with local communities 
through administrative procedures acts and other federal statutes.  He stated 
that the revised plan, the 2010 draft the Board has for review today, is based 
on “coordination.”  It’s altogether a similar process and is embedded in 
numerous statutes that the federal government is required to “coordinate” with 
the local entities.  Also, Senate Bill 1398 was passed in the last session of the 
Arizona State Legislature and it requires “coordination” between local 
communities and municipalities as well as counties and the federal government 
in certain instances.  So the P & Z Commission believes it is following the law.  
Mr. Spehar stated, “We understand and are not so naïve as to think that this 
puts us in the driver’s seat regarding the federal management of the vast 
majority of the land in Gila County.  We know it does not do that, but we 
believe it’s an important tool in the tool box that we, as a community, have to 
work with the federal agencies to at least have our voice heard during the 
planning process and decision-making, not thereafter.”  Mr. Spehar again 
briefly reviewed the elements that had been added to the LURPP draft.  In the 
Multiple Use and Sustained Yield Act, the members parroted categorically 
those things that are identified in that Act as multiple use activities on federal 
land.  Also added was “water rights” because it was a glaring omission from the 
original LURPP and land can’t be managed in Gila County if the water sheds 
can’t be managed; it’s an integral part.  Also reviewed was the “Payments in 
Lieu of Taxes” (PILT) and the short story is there’s a huge disparity.  In bringing 
the Board up to date, Mr. Spehar advised that the 10-year average that an acre 
of private land produces in revenue to the County through fiscal years 2009-
2010 is $133.91 per acre of tax revenue accruing to the County tax base.  PILT, 
on the other hand, looking back 10 years, is $1.10 per acre.  So there’s this 
huge disparity and in reviewing the detail of this, Mr. Spehar stated that the P 
& Z committee have humbly offered a suggestion as to how that might be 
addressed going forward.  He concluded by stating that the committee 
members from the P & Z Commission, including himself; Don Ascoli, P & Z 
Commission Chairman; Mickie Nye, Commissioner; and Ron Christensen, 
Commissioner, under Mr. Gould’s careful leadership put a lot of work into this 
including working during evenings and weekends  and they appreciate 
everything the Board has done to support this effort.  Supervisor Dawson 
thanked the committee for its diligent work on this project.   She stated, “I 



4 

remember when one of my political opponents came into the office and was 
telling me how useless the study was and that actually the only place we could 
get a good study done was by the Cattlemen’s Association.  I think you’ve done 
an excellent job.”  She stated that the federal government certainly has not 
figured out for counties like Gila County, which has so much federal land, that 
the tax burden ends up on a very small percentage of the land and the County 
has to end up having to fight to try to get even get a $1.10 per acre.  She 
believes that will probably be reduced and will continue to be reduced instead 
of going to what it’s really valued at.  That’s the reason she looks forward to 
government agencies and non-profits looking to the state and federal 
government for land to put a college or job corps on or at least make productive 
use of it, along with “coordination” of the U.S. Forest Service and the federal 
agencies with the Board of Supervisors.  She agreed that there’s no forcing a 
federal agency to work with the County Board of Supervisors, but at least the 
wording is included in the LURPP and the Board can try to get their 
cooperation in “coordinating” with the County, but that will be an exercise to 
be watched as things develop.  Mr. Ascoli stated, “The Commission itself took 
this very much as a serious task to look at what is going on in our County in 
our relationship to facing the federal government.   In Arizona 42.2% of the 
state is owned by the federal government and in our County it’s well over 80%.  
It is important that we, as a community, as a body of people, can use the 
resources within the County.  Our County, and it is just absolutely beautiful, 
needs to be opened and be allowed to be shared more with the citizens of the 
County and the state and beyond.  This is one way to make our statement, 
which I believe we have a legal right to do, to those that manage the land today 
that we are a part of the team.  We belong in having a seat at the table.  I 
enthusiastically support this proposal and hope that the Board will allow us to 
move forward with it.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that from the beginning 
her main concern has been whether “coordination” is enforceable and a long 
time ago she also had the same conversation with Terry Wheeler, City of Globe 
Councilman.  She stated that if it is enforceable, then she wants the County to 
enforce it; if it isn’t then it seems like “we are participating in a political 
theater.”  Vice-Chairman Martin advised that she has been talking to every 
western county possible and inquiring where they stood in this process.  She 
also talked to Howard Hutchinson, Executive Director of the Coalition of 
Arizona/New Mexico Counties, and found that we might be able to drag the 
Bureau of Land Management to the table with this language, but we probably 
will never drag the U.S. Forest Service to the table with this language.  She has 
also talked to legal people who double that it is enforceable.  She talked to the 
U.S. Forest Service legal counsel out of the Washington, D.C. office and they 
have said that what we have is “cooperating agency status.” She stated, “You 
can ask for anything, but if you’re not asking for ‘cooperating agency status’ 
then there is no legal teeth to what you are doing in regard to the U.S. Forest 
Service.  If the County wants to ask for ‘coordination’ it can, but if ‘cooperating 
agency status’ is not included then the County has no legal standing; there is 
no legal precedence; there’s no legal teeth.”  She didn’t know how far as a 



5 

county the Board would want to push dropping the rest of it and asking only 
for “coordination.”  She stated that Howard Hutchinson’s and Karen Bud 
Fallen’s recommendation to other counties is to use the words “coordinating,” 
“cooperating” and they now add the word “collaborating” and they put all of 
those words into the other county plans so that they are covering all bases.  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “I’ve also told the Forest Service that we are now, 
by state law, required to demand ‘coordination’ and they said basically, 
‘demand and be damned—demand away.’”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that 
in regard to PILT, the federal government should keep its PILT funds and let 
the counties put that land to use, which she prefers, but until they do, the 
Board needs to push all it can on the PILT funds.  She stated that also from 
legal advice at the state level, the new Arizona law probably allows the County 
to bring the Arizona Department of Water Resources and the Arizona Game & 
Fish and other state agencies to the table in a way that we haven’t been able to 
do before.  It is unknown where counties stand with the federal agencies, but 
the U.S. Forest Service has said that these Plans are showing up in various 
counties, but from a legal standing they don’t look at it as any legal standing 
and they also recommend that the County not drop ‘cooperating agency status’ 
out of the LURPP because one does not dilute the other in their mind, but in 
fact it covers all the bases.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that her 
recommendation would be that until someone actually has the money and the 
tenacity to go to court and see if in fact “coordinating” is enforceable, that we in 
fact don’t drop our other tools such as “cooperative agency status.” Vice-
Chairman Martin stated that she is also the chairman for the Natural Resource 
Conservation District (NRCD), which also has “cooperating agency status” with 
the U.S. Forest Service.  The U.S. Forest Service requested “cooperating agency 
status” in this case because through the Board of Supervisors, the Board for 
the NRCD and the University of Arizona Cooperative Extension office, there is 
now monitoring data across this County that was never available before and 
the Forest Service doesn’t have it and never had it before, so we are able to 
insert that data into their planning process.  She has also asked the U.S. 
Forest Service exactly what “cooperating agency status” means and what it 
brings to us.  They replied that it lets the U.S. Forest Service incorporate 
information that we may have.  Also, to the counties in particular, the U.S. 
Forest Service looks for socio-economic information.  They are not so much 
looking at the monitoring that NRCD brings to them because they realize that 
we don’t have that kind of data necessarily in our hands, but they do and are 
more and more looking to us for socio-economic information, which is why the 
LURPP position was so interesting to them.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that 
she would caution the Board not to drop that other language.  Mr. Spehar 
thanked everyone for the comments and noted that the original LURRP 
contained a paragraph that stated “cooperating, consulting and coordinating,” 
however, the decision was made to remove the former two words because the 
theory was that it’s possibly diluting the latter term.  Mr. Spehar stated that is 
a business decision that the County will have to make and if the County is 
more comfortable with the document stating “coordinating and cooperating,” as 



6 

the Chairman of this subgroup, he would recommend same.  Mr. Spehar stated 
that regarding the conversations with the U.S. Forest Service today, he would 
respectively submit that they are a little quiet sometimes and that’s the reason 
the County lost the whole north face of the Pinal Mountains to habitat for the 
Mexican Spotted Owl without any opportunity to comment because this was 
decided at midnight by some federal agency and it wasn’t the U.S. Forest 
Service.  He thanked Vice-Chairman Martin for her comments and for doing 
her homework.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she has been watching Fred 
Kelly Grant, President of American Stewards of Liberty, since the mid-1990s 
and that’s where this language is coming from, but again she questions, “is it 
enforceable?”  She would like to know, at some time in the future, if in fact it is 
enforceable.  Mr. Spehar stated that Vice-Chairman Martin was raising an 
extremely good point; however, “We don’t expect to go litigate this to find out 
the answer to that question, but I do expect some county or some coalition of 
counties somewhere will do that some day.  Meantime, the next step that we 
see in this process would be to get the County to sit down with the agencies 
and negotiate a Memorandum of Understanding, whereby a process such as 
this can be put into place and have regular meetings between those agency 
leaders and the elected officials of Gila County.  That would be a matter of 
getting the right language and enlisting their cooperation because without it, it 
goes nowhere and we understand.”  Vice-Chairman Martin also briefed the 
Board on the Four Forest Restoration Initiative (4FRI), which is a collaborative 
effort to restore forest ecosystems on portions of four National Forests—
Coconino, Kaibab, Apache-Sitgreaves and Tonto—along the Mogollon Rim in 
northern Arizona.  It is about cleaning off 2.5 million acres in 30,000 acre lots 
in those 4 forests using a chipboard plant in Winslow, Arizona.  It is being 
asked of the U.S. Forest Service in 4FRI that the contract be for 20-30 years to 
ensure fuel for the plant because currently the U.S. Forest Service will only 
provide a 1-year supply, which does not allow business to grow.  Also being 
requested in 4FRI is a way to sidestep the Federal Advisory Committee Act 
(FACA).  She advised that the County needs to be careful in agreements with 
the U.S. Forest Service because “we run straight into this FACA, which the 
environmental community has put in place so that industry cannot get too 
close to the agencies.”  She will provide more information to the Board at a 
later date.  Because of all these other things that are going on, Vice-Chairman 
Martin stated that is the reason she is being cautious in the wording in LURPP.  
Supervisor Dawson stated that she understands “cooperating agencies;” 
however, when the U.S. Forest Service wants to do something, they go ahead 
and do it.  The County gets the U.S. Forest Service form letter stating the right 
to comment; however, by then they’ve already closed a road or a facility, etc.  
She stated, “One of the frustrations when we came into office was that we were 
being criticized because the Board hadn’t hired someone to respond to all those 
letters, when, in fact, it doesn’t matter if we respond.  We do send responses, 
but they’ve pretty much studied what they are going to do and they go right 
ahead and do it.  I would like language that reflects ‘required coordination’ 
because ‘cooperation’ is just something they say like ‘we mailed you a form 



7 

letter,’ but if they are ‘required,’ the County could say, ‘Wait a minute, you were 
required to coordinate with us…’”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “I don’t mind 
using ‘required;’ however, the U.S. Forest Service is telling me that we can 
require all we want to and it doesn’t mean flip.  But the ‘cooperative agency 
status’ is not that they would cooperate with the County; it’s a legal 
designation that we can apply for and be on a different plane with them.  
Whether we get what we want out of this is a little more control over this land; 
you know we can stand and demand from now on.  I believe that until we run 
out of money as a country, we are going to put up with nonsense until then…I 
just don’t want to cut off our nose to spite our face in some of the language.”  
Mickie Nye, P & Z Commission member, stated that he believes the County is 
just asking to be at the table because the County is not going to demand 
anything from anybody because they (U.S. Forest Service) will do what it 
chooses.  He stated, “But if we politely ask to be at the table as we would like 
some input as to what the U.S. Forest Service is going to end up deciding, I 
think that’s what we’ve tried to do in this document with the exception of PILT.  
I think this is a great model for what we want for PILT.  We would love to 
change land for what we think they owe us, but the reality is we get nowhere if 
we’re not at the table.  Now we are asking in this document, that they would 
have to accept, that there is somebody on record, there is somebody on notice 
that you need to notify in Gila County that needs to come to the table and have 
input and I think that’s where this really makes sense.”  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated, “But you know that by doing this, that doesn’t put us at the table.  But 
asking for ‘collaborative cooperating agency” status puts us at the table…I just 
again would like to have those other words in the LURPP, too.”  Supervisor 
Pastor stated that the times he has dealt with the U.S. Forest Service and the 
Bureau of Land Management concerning Supervisorial District 2 emergencies, 
he has heard the words “cooperating agency status” in many discussions.  
However, he also believes that using “coordination” will give the County “more 
teeth” and more tools to use.  He stated, “I don’t think we are really stepping 
away from ‘cooperating agency status’ or ‘collaboration’ or any types of those 
terminologies when we meet with these federal agencies.”  Don McDaniel, 
County Manager, inquired whether the P & Z Commission or committee has 
thought about the steps it would take to actually present this at its public 
meetings.  Mr. Gould stated that a process was discussed by the group because 
it will be mandatory to get this implemented and somebody has to be appointed 
in the form of a liaison.  Mr. Spehar also added that the process needs to be 
detailed and will wind up in a negotiated agreement between the County and 
those other agencies.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing for 
comments from the public and called on Terry Wheeler.  Mr. Wheeler, a 
resident of Globe, stated that the first time he heard about “coordination” was 
about 9 months ago at the annual NRCD meeting in Flagstaff.  Margaret 
Byfield, Executive Director of the American Stewards of Liberty, which used to 
be Stewards of the Range, and Fred Kelly Grant, President, made a 
presentation about “coordination” and they provided workbooks and 
information that they had prepared going back to the beginning legislation that 



8 

talked about coordination.  Mr. Wheeler stated that the framers of the 
Constitution of this country set it up so that the power is in the people at the 
bottom rung of government and at the local level and they intended for it to 
work up, but over the years that’s turned around the other way.  However, the 
legislation doesn’t say that; it still says that the power is in the people.   Mr. 
Wheeler then gave a summary of some congressional mandates stating that the 
first land use statute on the federal level that required “coordination” with local 
governments was the Federal Land Policy and Management Act (FLPMA) passed 
in 1976.  Congress defined the term “coordination” by specifying exactly how 
the federal agency should negotiate with the local government.   The United 
States Code, Title 43, Chapter 35, Subchapter II, §1712, orders that the 
Bureau of Land Management coordinate its land use inventory planning 
management actions with any local government.  In the U.S. Forest Service 
National Forest Management Act of 1976, the primary statute that governs the 
administration of national forests, in Section 1604--National Forest System 
land and resource management plans--it states, “…the Secretary of Agriculture 
shall develop, maintain, and, as appropriate, revise land and resource 
management plans for units of the National Forest System, coordinated with 
the land and resource management planning processes of State and local 
governments and other Federal agencies.”  Mr. Wheeler cited an example in 
Texas where the Texas Legislature failed to stop the Trans Texas Corridor, 
which was a quarter of a mile wide NAFTA (North American Free Trade 
Agreement) superhighway from the Mexican border through Texas and into 
Kansas and financed by billions of dollars from Spain.  This road was to go 
through 5 small Texas farm towns splitting these towns in half with no border 
posts and no port of entry until reaching Kansas.  Five small towns and their 
school districts implemented “coordination” with the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TXDOT), the largest state agency in the nation, and the latest 
result is that in October 2009, TXDOT announced they would not be building 
the I-35 Trans Texas Corridor.  Although the fight is not over, it is a 
phenomenal victory for “coordination.”  Mr. Wheeler stated, “If that can be done 
in that kind of situation, I think that maybe we can sit down and talk to these 
guys and tell them that we have a set of plans and this is what we would like to 
see done through ‘coordination.’”  He also cited the example of the Winkelman 
NRCD, the first conservation district in Arizona to assert “coordination” with 
the federal agencies.  They have been working on a couple of projects, one of 
which is the potential routing of the SunZia Electrical Transmission line 
through the District’s jurisdiction requiring coordination with the Bureau of 
Land Management (BLM) as well as the SunZia Corporation, responsible for the 
building of the line.  This SunZia Southwest Transmission Project, comprised 
of a deal between Tucson Electric Power, Salt River Project, Shell WindEnergy, 
Southwestern Power Group II, etc. is proposed to be approximately 460 miles 
of 500 kV transmission lines and associated substations, one a solar field and 
one a coal-fired plant, that will connect and deliver renewable energy resources 
in Arizona and New Mexico to population centers in the Desert Southwest.   



9 

These transmission lines were going to come in from New Mexico through 
Arizona across the mountains and between San Manuel and Winkelman in an 
area where there are no lines, and the mountains are not all chewed up, there 
are no roads and it’s a wilderness-type area to create a mile-wide path through 
there to put in this power corridor.  The line would pass through the 
Winkelman District with no opportunity to tie into the electricity and benefit 
from the resource.  The Winkelman NRCD group called several coordination 
meetings, which were very well organized with limitations on who could speak 
so they didn’t get out of control and, as a result, additional route selections are 
being considered.  The Winkelman NRCD is also working in coordination with 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on the potential endangered species 
listing of the Sonoran Desert Tortoise.  Under the Endangered Species Act, the 
USFWS is obligated to take into account the best scientific information, which 
Winkelman has now submitted through their “coordination” process.  This 
issue will be ongoing for several years; however, Winkelman is now in a 
position to ensure the best information is taken into account and that the 
agency “coordinates” each step of their listing process with the Winkelman 
NRCD.  Mr. Wheeler also noted his experience lately in the Apache-Sitgreaves 
Forest where people are really beginning to work together up there because 
they are now able to take the plan of the ranch or the community to the U.S. 
Forest Service.  In regard to the NEPA in that area, the U.S. Forest Service is 
advised of the Plan, whereby it becomes a preferred alternative and it’s working 
really well.  He stated, “I think that we’re starting to be able to talk with the 
U.S. Forest Service…”  Mr. Wheeler concluded by recommending that the P & Z 
Commission set up a workshop with Ms. Byfield and Mr. Grant of the American 
Stewards of Liberty.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that the Eastern Arizona 
Counties Organization has been trying to get in contact with them for about 7 
months and they won’t return a phone call.  Mr. Wheeler stated that he would 
contact Ms. Byfield for them.  Mr. Spehar added an additional comment 
stating, “You have coordinating rights as a county; you have consulting rights 
as a county; you have cooperating rights as a county; because you said so in 
some document.  I think not.  I think you have them anyway regardless of what 
the work says.  That’s why we’re here to get this input and it’s very 
constructive.  I just wanted to make the point that the important thing about 
this work is not so much to me whether it says ‘coordinating, consulting, 
cooperating,’ it’s that this County leadership has stood up and said ‘these are 
our policy statements.   These are the things we think about historic sites and 
federal land acts and water shed management and all the things that drive our 
ecosystem and therefore our economy.’  That’s the major issue about having a 
document like this so when you follow the process and you are down to the 
MOU and you have the agreement in place, and you’re sitting down talking 
about what should happen on the watershed of the Pinals, you can say, ‘Well 
you know gentlemen, ladies, this is our policy statement as a county.  The 
nearest and dearest form of elected representation in America, this is what they 
think about.’   That, I believe, is the value of this document.”  Vice-Chairman 
Martin stated that her other concern was that the Board has not sat down 



10 

together and had a discussion on the revised LURPP.  She stated, “I felt like we 
are getting the cart before the horse.  I have no problems with what we’re 
saying here, but I felt like we needed to have the opportunity to have that 
heart-to-heart discussion before we launched it on the public.”  Chairman 
Pastor stated that he was a little disappointed that the public participation 
wasn’t as strong as it should have been.  He thanked the P & Z Committee and 
Mr. Gould for the work done on the LURPP.  Vice-Chairman Martin also 
thanked the members and appreciates the time and effort and thought put into 
the LURPP.  No action was taken by the Board. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:02 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 16, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, County 
Manager; John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk; Marian Sheppard, 
Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in Special Session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  David Rogers led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Reverend Marc Cadwell of Calvary Shadows Assembly of God 
Church in Globe delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - Information/Discussion (no action required):  Presentation of the 
new Election Night Reporting (ENR) System which is a new statewide 
database for reporting election night results by county and by precinct 
within county.  Results will be available to the public on-line as they are 
reported.  The system includes precinct “shape” maps.   
 
Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, stated that she wanted to take this time to 
introduce the new election night reporting system, which will for the first time 
be used for the 2010 Primary Election.  This system has been provided to all 
counties free of charge.  The system will be live on election night as the voting 
results come in about an hour after the polls close.  She explained that there 
are graphs as well as percentages and numbers of votes so anyone will be able 
to see by candidate how the vote is progressing and the numbers for voter 
turnout.  She provided packets of information to the Board that included a 
quick-start guide, a media guide and a press release.  She stated that the 2 
guides were presented last week at a media presentation held at the Secretary 
of State’s Office and then the Gila County Elections Department published a 
press release for Gila County, which should be available on the local media this 
week.  Ms. Eastlick stated that the press release includes an invitation to the 



2 

public to come to the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room in Globe or the 
Payson conference room to review the voting results on this new rolling screen 
on election night.  Also available for use by the public will be laptop computers 
to review individual results.  These election results will also be available 
through this system on the County’s website for review by the public from any 
location as well as a reporting capability that will allow people to print reports 
at their home.  Ms. Eastlick then called on David Rogers, Elections Specialist, 
to show the Board the highlights of the new system.  Mr. Rogers presented the 
Board with a complete introduction and review of the new elections system.  He 
accessed the Gila County website and clicked on the Elections link, which will 
provide access to the quick-start guide and the main election night reporting 
screens showing the actual election results for all 39 precincts in the state of 
Arizona as well as national election results for all party candidates.  He 
explained how all reports will be available for download and will include 
information for polling place turnout, early ballot voting results, provisional 
voting, etc.  He advised that the first actual results will be available at 8:00 
p.m. on election night.  Mr. Rogers answered all questions of the Board 
regarding the system. Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she was delighted that 
this new system is now in place and her office in Payson will be available for 
the public to come and watch the election results as they come in.  Supervisor 
Dawson stated, “I think this is wonderful that we will have this system 
available here if people want to come in and see it.  It’s also great that they can 
see it at home as well…”  Mr. Rogers stated that he would be available to print 
reports for anyone requesting them.  Chairman Pastor stated that he was 
looking forward to seeing how this new system will work on election night and 
thanked Ms. Eastlick, Mr. Rogers and staff.  No action was taken by the Board. 
 
Item 3 - Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary 
property tax rates for 2010 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County 
and convey tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer.  Adopt 
Resolution No. 10-08-04 providing for the collection of taxes for all 
jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for fiscal year 2010-2011.   
 
John Nelson, Deputy County Manager, explained the reason for today’s 
Monday meeting by quoting from Arizona Revised Statutes §42-17151 and §42-
17254, that require that on or before the third Monday in August each year the 
County is required to certify the tax rates of the cities, towns and all special 
districts.  However, the County is basically certifying before the fact because 
many of the cities and towns are holding their final meetings tonight.  Mr. 
Nelson clarified that the County is not setting the tax rate; the County certifies 
the tax rates.  Each one of the tax levies has been set by an elected board, each 
of which has published properly, has held public meetings and then set the tax 
levy.  So today, the County is just calculating the property tax rate.  Mr. Nelson 
then gave a PowerPoint presentation beginning with “How Property Taxes are 
Calculated.”  He gave the example of the tax levy on a home in Gila County that 
has an assessed value of $100,000.  Each type of property has an assessment 



3 

ratio and for owner-occupied homes it is 10%, so the taxable assessment is 
10% of $100,000, divided by 100 to equal $100, which is then multiplied by 
the tax rate for this year of $4.19/per $100 of assessed valuation for a total tax 
levy of $419.00.  He then explained the Main Assessment Ratios for the tax 
year 2010, which included the following:  Class 1—Mines, Utilities, Industrial is 
21%; Class 2—Agricultural is 16%; Class 3—Owner-Occupied Residential is 
10%; Class 4—Leased or Rented Residential is 10%; and Class 5—
Railroad/Airline Flight Property is 17%.  He brought to the attention of the 
Board the fact that 5 years ago the Arizona State Legislature passed a measure 
to reduce the assessment ratio for Class 1—Mines, Utilities and Industrial—by 
1% per year.  It used to be 25% and through 1% yearly reductions it will be at 
20% next year.  He stated, “The Legislature will tell you that isn’t much when 
in fact it’s a 20% reduction in the amount of taxes these mines, utilities and 
industrial companies will pay and that loss of tax revenue will be paid for by 
the homeowners.”  He stated that when this tax cut for Class 1 was initially put 
in place, it was for economic development for the businesses that were already 
here, not for businesses that were coming later, which includes all commercial 
property.  Next Mr. Nelson reviewed a chart of Gila County’s Primary Assessed 
Value, which showed a comparison for fiscal years (FY) 2006-2011.  The 
current value of Gila County property, which is the amount assessed in the 
previous year, is added to the new construction for the current year to get the 
total primary assessed value.  For FY 2011 the current value is $539,669,923, 
which was added to the new construction in the amount of $28,791,650 for a 
total primary assessed value of $568,461,573, an 8.6% decrease.  Although the 
assessed value went down, the tax rate increased and compensated by taking 
the taxes higher.  He explained that some homeowners assume that if their 
assessed valuation goes up they will have to pay more taxes or if it goes down 
they will pay lesser taxes; however, it’s a combination of both the assessed 
valuation and the tax rate that determines the amount of taxes assessed on a 
home.  This was further explained by an example given for the property tax on 
a $100,000 home for the FY 2006-2011 using the assessed values and different 
tax rates for each year, which showed a $44.87 total 5-year increase or an 
average of $8.97 increase per year over that 5-year period.  He also provided 
information on the costs shifted to the County from the State of Arizona.  In 
2010 the costs shifted to the County or revenue taken from the County by the 
State resulted in an additional tax rate of $13.81; in 2011 it was $18.67, which 
resulted in a total implied tax rate of $32.48 for those 2 years.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that 58% of those cost shifts were passed on to the homeowner and 42% 
were absorbed by Gila County.  During this same period Gila County has also 
been dealing with the same economic problems as the State including 
decreased sales tax income and the costs for increased programs that are seen 
during a time of economic downturn.  Mr. Nelson also explained that to put 
property taxes in perspective, Gila County has 43 taxing jurisdictions this year 
that levy property tax rates, which includes 32 from cities, towns, schools 
districts, fire districts, water districts, sanitary districts, etc.; 2 statutory 
levies—school equalization set by the State and the fire district assistance tax; 



4 

and 7 street lighting districts.  The Board of Supervisors only directly controls 
the other 2 of those taxing jurisdictions—the Gila County property tax and the 
library tax.  Most of the other taxing jurisdictions’ tax rates are set by the 
elected board of directors for each district so the majority of the tax levies that 
Mr. Nelson was requesting the Board to certify today have been set by those 
other elected boards.  Mr. Nelson concluded by reviewing with the Board a 
graph reflecting the 2011 tax levies in Gila County--Gila County at 37%; 
schools/libraries at 48%; special districts at 12% and cities and towns at 3%.  
He noted that special districts were increasing yearly and were up to 14%, but 
this year they have decreased to 12%.  The Northern Gila County Sanitary 
District cut its property tax rate for the first time from $.70 to $.60/per $100 of 
assessed valuation.  He stated that 40% of the assessed valuation in Gila 
County is within the Northern Gila County Sanitary District.  So the 
compounding factor of assessed valuations decreasing and the property tax 
going down has significantly affected special districts.  Also, for the first time 
ever, this year a legislative cap was placed on fire districts.  The only limitation 
in the past on fire districts was that the tax rate could not exceed $3.25; 
however, this year the fire districts could not increase their property tax levy 
more than 8%.  Some of the fire districts hit that cap and a few exceeded it and 
had to have their budgets reduced.  With that cap, hopefully it will be some 
type of relief for property owners; however, what it means to services provided 
by the sanitary district or by the fire district remains to be seen.  Supervisor 
Dawson complimented Mr. Nelson on the final graph shown and requested that 
he use this graph at his Leadership Academy presentation.  She stated that it’s 
amazing that Gila County has been able to weather through this difficult time 
and not put extreme burdens on homeowners.  Vice-Chairman Martin agreed 
and added that it’s also due to good financial management.  Chairman Pastor 
also thanked Mr. Nelson for his presentation.   Upon motion by Supervisor 
Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board set the primary and 
secondary property tax rates for 2010 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila 
County, conveyed the tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer and 
adopted Resolution No. 10-08-04 providing for the collection of taxes for all 
jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for fiscal year 2010-2011.  The tax rate 
will be $4.19/$100 of assessed valuation.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 4 – Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement 
of Request for Sealed Bids No. 062910-1 – Used 3 Cubic Yard Wheel Loader 
for the Recycling and Landfill Management Department, Buckhead Mesa 
Landfill. 
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that the County has a 
loader that is over 14 years old with over 14,000 hours on it and normally an 
older loader is taken from the Roads Department and sold to the Landfill 
Management Department and a new one is purchased for the Roads 
Department.  However, in today’s economy, he would like to be more frugal and 



5 

advertise for a used loader for the Landfill.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously authorized 
the advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids No. 062910-1 – used 3 cubic yard 
wheel loader for the Recycling and Landfill Management Department, 
Buckhead Mesa Landfill. 
 
Item 5 – Information/Discussion/Action regarding landscaping and access 
at the Gila County Courthouse and to decide upon 1 of 3 options that will 
be presented.  
 
Mr. Stratton stated that on the first floor of the Courthouse building, there is a 
problem with moisture in the County Attorney’s Office that has caused 
expensive repairs.  There are also moisture problems in other areas on the first 
floor, however, they are not causing mold, but those problems need to be 
alleviated along with the problem of tiles popping on the Board of Supervisors’ 
side entrance.  Unfortunately, when the Courthouse was built in the 1970s, a 
lot of landscaping was placed right next to the exterior walls and although the 
contractors used a water-proofing type sealant, it is no longer effective.  In 
consultations between the Public Works Engineering Department, the Facilities 
Department and consultants, several options were reviewed, which includes 
the need to remove the landscaping and concrete those areas.  In the past, one 
of the Supervisors has also requested that a ramp be added to the side 
entrance.  Included in the options is a plan to remodel the entire front of the 
Courthouse, not only removing the landscaping, but also redoing the ramps to 
make them compliant with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).   
However, the area from the stairs in the east can’t be addressed due to the foot 
traffic generated during the upcoming Primary Election and the early vote for 
the General Election.  The project will be split into 2 separate jobs—from the 
stairway west will be dealt with now and then from the stairway east to the 
Recorder’s Office will be addressed after the General Election.  The specific 
start date will also depend on the weather.  Upon inquiry by Chairman Pastor 
as to the funding for this project, Mr. Stratton advised that there are 2 sources 
of funding—funds in the Capital Improvement Program, which is money set 
aside in the budget each year for capital improvements, and this project is also 
eligible for bond funds.  Mr. Stratton then began a PowerPoint presentation 
providing the Board with information for 3 concept alternatives and cost 
estimates.  Concept alternative A is estimated to cost $57,000; alternative B--
$51,000; and alternative C--$70,000, which is higher because of the additional 
hand rails and retaining wall costs.  Chairman Pastor mentioned the cost of 
liability for skateboarders.  Mr. Stratton stated that the County has been 
careful in signing where it can to limit that liability and the Sheriff’s Office does 
patrol the area.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired about the side entry remaining 
as an employee entrance.  Mr. Stratton recommended that it remain only as an 
employee entrance.  The Board discussed with Mr. Stratton the Board side 
entrance ramp and/or stairway, district library usage, the garden memorial, a 
possible design to hide the long ramp and Board parking areas.  Mr. Stratton 



6 

recommended that Alternative C include both a ramp and stairs to which the 
Board agreed.  Mr. Stratton stated that the purpose of this discussion today 
was two-fold:  one was to get direction from the Board about the landscaped 
areas and moisture issues and second was what the Board desired for access 
to the courthouse.  Plans will then be designed accordingly.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Concept Alternative C regarding landscaping and the 
access improvements for the Gila County Courthouse with the modifications as 
noted.   
 
Item 6 - Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Public Works 
Division to submit a grant application to the U.S. Department of 
Transportation in the amount of $20,000,000 with a County match of 
5.7% in order to obtain TIGER II (Transportation Investment Generating 
Economic Recovery) discretionary grant funds which will be used to 
construct the Tonto Creek Bridge with roadway approaches, and to 
authorize the Chairman’s signature on an Assurance of Compliance of 
Federal Wage Rate Requirements as part of the TIGER II grant 
application.   
 
Mr. Stratton stated that the County submitted an application for the first 
round of TIGER grants, but was not successful in obtaining any funds.  A pre-
application was done this time, which was required.  A notice was received last 
Tuesday that the County could apply for the grant.  At no cost to the County, 
consultants Kimley-Horn & Associates and C.L. Williams agreed to review the 
application and compare it to the grant applications that were previously 
funded to assure a better opportunity for the County to receive funds this time.  
He requested that the Board authorize the submission of this grant application 
with a County match of 5.7% that would come from Highway User Revenue 
Funds and/or half-cent tax funds.  The deadline for submitting the grant is 
August 23, 2010, and it has already been approved by the County Attorney’s 
Office as to form.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she believes the County 
needs to pursue every avenue for funding.  Supervisor Dawson stated that her  
only concern is that when the Tonto Creek Bridge is built, people are going to 
demand that the County build miles of roads for their access on the east side of 
the creek.  She also noted that the current accesses through the natural 
crossings will be made inaccessible once the bridge is built, which will make 
long distances for people to travel to get across the creek and they will be angry 
because they can no long cross the Tonto Creek where they’ve always crossed.  
Mr. Stratton apologized to Supervisor Dawson for not advising that the location 
of the bridge had been moved.  It is now called the “modified Store Crossing” 
(Forest Service Road 71), which would come across where the current Store 
Crossing is on the east side, where the Hilltop Café used to be or where the 
U.S. Forest Service land is located and then fork both ways—one way going to 
downtown Tonto Basin and the other way going to Highway 188.  Mr. Stratton 
stated that he would provide the Board with information and a sketch.  This 



7 

new crossing has been approved by the community and the NEPA (National 
Environmental Policy Act) document should be complete and reviewed by the 
end of November.  Supervisor Dawson inquired about the creek constantly 
changing and washing out and whether it would be a problem for the new 
access.  Mr. Stratton stated, “We don’t believe it is and that’s why we opted for 
the modified Store Crossing.  It stays higher and wider than any of the other 
choices and the clearance of the bridge on both sides both vertically and 
horizontally should be substantially good for the next 50-100 years.”  
Chairman Pastor also apologized to Supervisor Dawson as he thought he had 
provided her with the drawings from the engineers that are in his office.  He 
stated that the original crossing was going to be at Sheeps Crossing and then 
during the initial engineering studies of the various crossings, some of the folks 
at Tonto Basin suggested the Store Crossing.  Upon a review by the engineers, 
it turned out to be the easiest site to develop.  Mr. Stratton added that this 
modified Store Crossing also happens to be environmentally friendly, which is 
difficult in that area.  There are some willow flycatchers about .4 miles away, 
but it appears that the County can comply, but will have to build during 
certain times.  Supervisor Dawson stated that was certainly a change because 
at one point the County was assured it couldn’t be built in that area.  Mr. 
Stratton commended consultants Kimley-Horn & Associates and C.L. Williams 
for remediating the problems that would allow the bridge to be built at Store 
Crossing.  He stated, “It ended up being a very good option and the County 
won’t have to build the 4.5 miles of road to get to the bridge and will be more 
user friendly to the community on the east side of Tonto Creek.”  He also noted 
that the U.S. Forest Service is working with the County to provide an easement 
on the 463 Road, which is the main road on the east side, so that in the future 
it can be 100% paved.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that the County needs to 
thank the Tonto Fire District for being willing to move to another site and 
letting the County proceed with its plans at that location.  Chairman Pastor 
stated that there has been a lot of negotiating and communication with both 
the Tonto Basin Fire District personnel as well as the residents.  He stated, 
“The project is moving as fast it can, but realistically it’s still a long way off for 
completion.  Also Kimley-Horn & Associates will be giving a presentation to the 
Tonto Basin residents in November to update them on the project.”  Mr. 
Stratton advised the Board that the County is now negotiating the second 
phase of the process, which would be a 100% design of the bridge.  Initially it 
was thought that the earmark funds through the Federal Transportation Safety 
Lieu Bill would only provide for 30% of the design and then lobbying would 
begin in late spring next year for the next transportation bill; however, if the 
County were to receive the TIGER grant, that will be eliminated and the County 
could meet the criteria of having started the job by September 2011.  Mr. 
Stratton advised that he met with the Arizona Department of Transportation 
last week and has been assured that the environmental portion of this 
document will be reviewed no later than the end of November, which meets 
with the County’s timeline.  Vice-Chairman Martin addressed Supervisor 
Dawson’s concern in that this new modified Store Crossing comes out across 



8 

the historical route on the east side where people have historically been 
dropped off by crossing where the store is located.  Other crossings have been 
developed through the years, but those were not necessarily the historical 
crossing.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson, the Board unanimously authorized the Public Works Division to 
submit a grant application to the U.S. Department of Transportation in the 
amount of $20,000,000 with a County match of 5.7% in order to obtain TIGER 
II (Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery) discretionary 
grant funds, which will be used to construct the Tonto Creek Bridge with 
roadway approaches, and to authorize the Chairman’s signature on an 
Assurance of Compliance of Federal Wage Rate Requirements as part of the 
TIGER II grant application.   
 
Item 7 - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Gila County Order No. 
LL 10-03, an application submitted by Scott A. Tompkins to transfer a 
Series 6 Bar License for the Antler’s Café and Bar in Young, Arizona.   
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, stated that this is an application for a 
Series 6 Bar License.  She advised that the County has an internal review 
process whereby the Health Division and Community Development Division 
review the application and location to ensure that all health permits and 
building safety permits have been obtained from the County.  She stated that 
even though the Antlers Bar & Café burned down some time ago, this is just 
simply the applicant, Mr. Tompkins, wanting to purchase the license from the 
current owner, Connie Sue Hendrick.  Ms. Sheppard recommended approval of 
the application and advised that the Board is just making a recommendation to 
the Arizona State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control, which will make 
the final decision.  Supervisor Dawson inquired whether there is a drawing to 
view or whether a new bar is being built at the old location.  Ms. Sheppard 
advised that the intent is to rebuild, but the timing is unknown.  When that 
time arrives, the assurance the County has is that the applicant will go 
through the County Building Safety Department for the required permits.  
Supervisor Pastor stated that he understands the applicant has a target date of 
March 2011 for completion; however, there is some concern about the septic 
system and he believes the Planning and Zoning Department is aware of the 
situation and has talked to Mr. Tompkins about it.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated that was her understanding also.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Gila 
County Order No. LL 10-03, an application submitted by Scott A. Tompkins to 
transfer a Series 6 Bar License for the Antler’s Café and Bar in Young, Arizona.   
 
Item 8 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 
A. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 

(Contract No. DE101045001) between the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security and Gila County for additional incentive dollars 



9 

awarded to the Workforce Investment Act Program for PY2008–FY 
2009 in the amount of $35,820. 
 

B. Approval of Independent Contractor Agreement (Contract No. 0010-
0444) Amendment No. 1 (07/01) between Pinal/Gila Council for Senior 
Citizens and Gila County Community Action/Housing Services in the 
amount of $6,537 for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, 
to continue providing services to elderly, income-eligible clients. 
 

C. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Weatherization Low-Income 
Assistance Contractual Agreement (Commerce Contract No. C051-09-
02) between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy 
Office and Gila County (Community Action/Housing Services) in the 
amount of $112,316 for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 
2011, to continue providing services to income-eligible clients. 
 

D. Approval of an Independent Contractor Agreement (Contract No.              
ACAA07012010) between the Arizona Community Action Association 
and the Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Program in 
the amount of $104,450 for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 
2011, to continue providing utility services for income-eligible clients. 
 

E. Act Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement 
(Commerce Contract No. C037-09-02) between the State of Arizona,  
Department of Commerce Energy Office and Gila County (Community 
Action/Housing Services) to amend the Special Terms and Conditions 
section of the contract.  
 

F. Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement       
(Contract No. HG861159) between the Arizona Department of Health  
Services and Gila County Health Department to add a new price sheet 
for the Commodity Supplemental Food Program for the period  
October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011. 
 

G. Approval to accept FY 2011 Victim Rights Program Award Agreement      
206-210 (A.G. # 2011-004) to the County Attorney’s Office by the State 
of Arizona Attorney General in the amount of $32,900 to cover the 
existing salary and ERE for a full-time Victim Advocate, with no cash 
match funds required. 
 

H. Approval of the July 2010 monthly departmental activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable. (A copy of this report is 
on file in the Clerk of the Board Department.) 
 

I. Approval of personnel reports/actions for the weeks of August 10, 
2010, and August 16, 2010.   



10 

 
August 10, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Tyler Savage – Public Works Engineering – Surveyor Assistant – 

08/05/10 – Public Works Fund – Temporary  
Hires to County Service: 
2. Jeremy Friestad – Public Works/Automotive Equipment Maintenance – 

Automotive Service Worker – 08/16/2010 – Public Works Fund – 
Replaces Kevin Moran 

3. Gary Lopez - Health and Community Services – Part Time Community 
Services Worker – 08/16/10 – GEST Fund – Replaces Frances Ramirez  

Position Review: 
4. Chris Phillips - Health and Community Services – From Accounting Clerk 

– To Community Health Assistant Senior – 08/02/10 – Change in fund 
code percentages 

Request Permission to Post: 
5. Public Works Consolidated Roads – Road Maintenance/Equipment 

Operator – Vacated by Raymond Luckie 
6. Public Works Consolidated Roads – Road Maintenance Worker – Vacated 

by Jo Ann Minchew 
7. Public Works Facilities Management – Building Maintenance Supervisor 

– Vacated by Clifford Horn 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hire to County Service: 
8. Linda Allinson - Sheriff's Office – Administrative Clerk – 08/16/10 - 

General Fund – Replacing Sarah Haynie 
Position Review: 
9. Violetta Johnson - Sheriff's Office – From Detention Lieutenant – To 

Detention Officer – 08/02/10 - General Fund 
10. Anjanette Bolinger - Sheriff's Office – RN Women’s Dorm – 07/19/10   

 General Fund – Will accrue vacation and sick time 
 
August 16, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Patty R. Nolan – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice of the Peace – 

07/30/10 – General Fund – DOH 01/01/91 – Retirement 
2. Branden Trobaugh – Public Works Facilities Management – Building 

Maintenance Technician – 08/05/10 –  Facilities Management Fund – 
DOH 05/14/07 – Terminated for Cause 

3. James Weeks – Globe Regional Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 
07/30/10 – General Fund – DOH 07/01/07 – Retirement 

4. Christopher Powell – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 
08/06/10 – General Fund – DOH 06/28/10 – Resignation 

Temporary Hires to County Service: 
5. John Roten – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/16/10 – 

General Fund – Replaces Joshua Cota 



11 

6. Curtis L. Johnson – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 
08/16/10 – General Fund – Replaces Christopher Siegel  

Position Review: 
7. Jeremiah Johnson – Rural Addressing – Rural Addressing Analyst – 

08/16/10 – General Fund – Change in number of hours worked per week 
from 40 to 30 

8. Renee Omstead – Health and Community Services – Accounting Clerk – 
08/02/10 – Various Funds – Change in the number of hours worked per 
week from 20 to 40 

Request Permission to Post: 
9. Public Works Facilities Management – Building Maintenance Technician 

– Vacated by William McDaniel 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Position Review: 
10. Rodney Cronk – Sheriff’s Office/Payson – Deputy Sheriff – 05/06/10 –

 General Fund – Return from Military Leave 
11. Employees vary – Sheriff’s Office/Globe and Payson – Deputy Sheriff – 

07/01/10 – Grant Fund – This grant funded program is work time 
scheduled outside of Deputy’s normal work week or on their off time 
and generally consists of overtime pay 

 
J. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of August 

10, 2010, and August 16, 2010.  (separate handout) 
 

August 10, 2010 
$3,413,260.63 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 
229160 through 229161 and 229317 through 229505. 

 
August 16, 2010 
$726,226.19 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 229506 
through 229677.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

 
In regard to several of the Consent Agenda items submitted by Malissa Buzan, 
CAP/Housing Program Manager, Chairman Pastor inquired about the new 
language contained in the documents regarding required documentation for 
legal residents and wondered if that was a result of Arizona Senate Bill 1070 
that was adopted by the Arizona Legislature.  Ms. Buzan advised that it was 
the result of SB 1070 and is being added into ongoing contracts.  Upon motion 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board 
unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 8A-8J.   
 
Item 9 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 



12 

Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 10 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
31.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented.   
 
Each Board member and Mr. McDaniel presented information on current 
events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:37 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 

GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 
Date:  August 31, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman             Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; John  Nelson, Deputy County Manager; Marian Sheppard, 
Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Jacque Griffin led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Bill Norton of the First Presbyterian Church 
in Globe delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results 
for the August 24, 2010, Primary Election and declare the results official.  
 
Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, provided the Board and other staff members 
with a copy of the Primary Election results. She thanked the 350+ people who 
put forth efforts on this election to include poll workers, trouble shooters, 
behind-the-scene workers, and certain staff members of the Public Works 
Division.  She proceeded to review the various spreadsheets.  Some highlights 
are as follows:  the number of registered voters in Gila County is 29,610; there 
were 10,849 tabulated with an overall voter turnout at 36.64%.  The voter 
turnout for the State of Arizona as of the evening of August 30th was 30.08%; 
however, that percentage will continue to change.  Ms. Eastlick advised that 
overall the voter turnout for this election was low, which is typical of a Primary 
Election, but she expects a higher number for the General Election.  Of the 
6,774 early ballots received, a total of 23 ballots were rejected.  A total of 593 
provisional ballots were cast in Gila County with 80 of those being rejected for 
a total of 513 ballots that were verified for tabulation.  Ms. Eastlick answered 
some questions from the Board and then each Supervisor thanked her and her 



2 

staff for their efforts and for the many extra hours they must work during 
election time.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously canvassed the election results and 
declared the results official.  
 
Item 3 - Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 080310-1 – General Ledger Treasurer’s 
Banking Software and Support.   
 
Debi Savage, Treasurer, explained that it has taken awhile to get this request 
for sealed bids prepared and she thanked Valrie Bejarano of the Public Works 
Division for her assistance.  Supervisor Dawson inquired whether this 
advertisement would “do away with the old system?” and Ms. Savage replied, 
“Yes, Data Systems of Arizona.”  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously authorized the 
advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids No. 080310-1 – General Ledger 
Treasurer’s Banking Software and Support.   
 
Item 4 - Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Reimbursement 
Services Agreement between Gila County and American Family Life 
Assurance Company (Aflac) whereby Aflac will administer the County’s 
Flexible Spending Account.   
 
Berthan DeNero, Personnel Director, advised that Colonial Life, the current 
administrator of the County’s Flexible Spending Account, recently advised that 
the company would initiate charging employees with a monthly administration 
fee of $4.25 and a renewal fee of $80.  The Benefits Committee compared 
services provided by Colonial to services provided by Aflac as Aflac has waived 
all fees.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously approved a Reimbursement Services 
Agreement between Gila County and American Family Life Assurance Company 
(Aflac) whereby Aflac will administer the County’s Flexible Spending Account.   
 
Item 5 - Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between Gila County and Tonto Basin Unified School District 
whereby the School District shall be allowed to park its bus at the Tonto 
Basin County facility and also purchase fuel from the County for the bus 
for a period of five years, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the 
Disclosure of Dual Representation form.  
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, advised that since 2004, the 
County has entered into this arrangement with the Tonto Basin Unified School 
District without any problems and he recommended the Board’s approval of the 
Intergovernmental Agreement.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously approved an 



3 

Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and Tonto Basin Unified 
School District.   
 
Item 6 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 

 
A.  Authorization of the Chairman’s signature on a Great Western Bank 
Governmental Certificate, Change in Terms of Agreement, and 
Disbursement Request and Authorization forms, one each for the 
Buckhead Mesa Landfill and Russell Gulch Landfill, in order to renew the 
financial assurance for letters of credit required by the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality, all of which pertain to future 
closure costs for these landfills.  
 
B.  Approval to renew the First Things First Child Care Health Consultant 
Grant (Contract No. GRA-STATE-10-0070-10/Renewal Award No. GRA-
STATE-10-0070-01-Y2) between Gila County (Health and Community 
Services Division) and the Early Childhood Development and Health Board 
for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, in the amount of 
$26,666. 

 
C.  Approval of an In-Building Equipment Agreement between Gila County 
(Sheriff’s Office) and the Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless for the 
in-builder repeater located at the Roosevelt Sheriff’s Office Sub-Station 
effective August 31, 2010, at no cost to the County.  
 
D.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License submitted by the Gila 
County Rodeo Committee to serve liquor at the bull riding and ranch 
rodeo events on April 17-18, 2011, at the Gila County Fairgrounds. 

 
E.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an ARRA (American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act) Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. E091206-
001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila 
County (Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area) to extend the contract 
end dates from June 30, 2010, to the following:  Youth Program – 
extended to September 30, 2010; and Adult Program, Dislocated Worker 
Program and Rapid Response Program – extended to December 31, 2010.  

 
F.  Approval of the July 2010 monthly departmental activity reports 
submitted by the Recorder, Globe Regional Constable, Globe Regional 
Justice of the Peace, Clerk of the Superior Court and Payson Regional 
Justice of the Peace.  (Copies of these reports are on file in the Clerk of 
the Board Department.) 

 
G.  Approval of personnel reports/actions for the week of August 31, 
2010. 
 



4 

Note:  A personnel report was not submitted for the week of August 24, 2010. 
 
August 31, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Denise Barajas – BOS – Temporary Laborer – 08/09/10 – Constituent 

Services II Fund – DOH 06/07/10 – Attend College 
2. Stephanie Gibson – Payson Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 

08/09/10 - General Fund – DOH 07/07/08 – Resigned  
3. Vicki Pena – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 08/20/10 – 

General Fund – DOH 08/25/03 – Resigned 
4. Dallyn Rubalcava – Recorder’s Office – Temporary Clerk – 08/13/10 - 

General Fund – DOH 08/24/09 – Resigned 
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
5. Rachel Wright – Superior Courts General – Court Clerk – 07/19/10 – Local 

Probate Assessment Fund 
Departmental Transfers: 
6. Angelina Thompson – Recorder’s Office – From Recorder’s Clerk – To 

Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 08/20/10 - General Fund 
End Probationary Period: 
7. Ramona Scales - Health and Community Services – Public Health Nurse I – 

08/02/10 – Health Service Fund 
8. Kimberly Aguilar – Public Fiduciary’s Office – Fiduciary’s Services Specialist 

1 – 08/16/10 - General Fund 
 
H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
August 24, 2010, and August 31, 2010.  (separate handout) 
 
August 24, 2010 
$2,247,946.33 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 229678 
through 229909.  
   
August 31, 2010 
$469,868.61 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 229910 
through 2230070.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 6A through 6H. 
 
Item 7 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to    allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 



5 

to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 8 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.   
 
Item 9 - WORK SESSION ITEM - Information/Discussion regarding 
proposed amendments to the Gila County Floodplain Management 
Ordinance that was previously presented to the Board of Supervisors 
during a public hearing that was held on July 6, 2010.  
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director, advised that since the 
time a public hearing was held by the Board of Supervisors on this issue, 
Darde deRoulhac, Chief Engineer, Gila County Flood Control District, has 
provided additional detailed information pertaining to the events and reasons 
for the proposed Ordinance changes.  Supervisor Dawson inquired as to the 
extent of involvement by public entities regarding the proposed Ordinance 
changes.  Mr. deRoulhac replied that the changes were initiated and reviewed 
by the Arizona Department of Water Resources which acts as the liaison with 
FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency).  He stated, “They have 
extensively reviewed the proposed Ordinance and we’ve had a lot of discussion 
with them; also, it has been reviewed by FEMA Region 9.”  Supervisor Dawson 
also inquired as to the amount of public input.  Mr. deRoulhac replied that 
prior to the last public hearing, a notice of public hearing was advertised in the 
newspaper asking for public comment for a required time period.  Information 
was also provided on the County’s website and to his knowledge no public 
comment was submitted to the County.  Supervisor Dawson explained the 
reason for asking these questions and stated, “Someone came to my office 
yesterday who was addressing the LURPP (Land Use Resource Policy Plan).  
This man said he was not aware of these meetings and he didn’t feel we were 
doing a good job addressing the public.  The Floodplain Ordinance is 
important.  Mainly I wanted to point out that we have made the effort to inform 
the public.”  Mr. Sanders advised that prior to this Ordinance being presented 
to the Board of Supervisors for approval, there will be a 60-day public comment 
period.  Chairman Pastor expressed his appreciation to Mr. Stratton, Mr. 
deRoulhac and Mr. Sanders on the efforts being made.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated, “It’s my understanding, Steve and Darde, that we do this so our citizens 
in flood areas can afford flood insurance” and Mr. deRoulhac replied, “That is 
correct.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “As we are going through the process, 
how many of those folks know that flood insurance is available to them?  As for 



6 

the ones that do not take advantage (of flood insurance), how much do we 
spend rescuing them when they could be getting this insurance and they 
aren’t?  Do we rescue them if they don’t?”  Mr. deRoulhac replied, “Whether we 
rescue them if they don’t (purchase flood insurance) is beyond a question I can 
personally answer.  The percent that avail themselves of flood insurance is 
relatively low.  A lot don’t get it unless it’s required by their lender.  Then when 
things happen, there is not a lot that can be done.”   Supervisor Dawson 
mentioned that she knows of people who cannot afford floodplain insurance 
and Mr. Stratton replied that the County does not distinguish those with flood 
insurance and those who do not have it when an actual emergency occurs. 
Further discussion was held on the high cost of floodplain insurance and the 
fact that not many people actually purchase it.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
emphasized the need to put forth the effort to inform the public regarding 
floodplain requirements and issues.  She also stated that it’s important for 
people to be informed up-front by realtors/property sellers before a property is 
sold that it’s located in a floodplain.  Mr. Sanders stated that Mr. deRoulhac 
has almost completed a database of all properties in Gila County that will be 
made available on the County’s website which will provide information as to 
whether a property is located in a floodplain.  Vice-Chairman Martin asked 
Chief Deputy County Attorney Bryan Chambers whether there could be a 
requirement to post a notice on all properties with notification stating that 
particular property is located in a floodplain.  Mr. Chambers agreed that would 
benefit potential buyers; however, he was not sure the County could do that.  
He said that real estate disclosure laws most likely require disclosure to a 
potential buyer when a property is located within a flood zone.  Mr. Chambers 
advised that the floodplain changes over time, and in some instances a 
property that was initially purchased and not located in a floodplain is now 
located within a floodplain.  Mr. deRoulhac added that flood maps are not 
updated as often as physical changes occur in the creek beds and he stated 
that the County is still using some of the original maps that were created in 
early 1980.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:01 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  September 7, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor (via ITV conference from Utah); Don McDaniel, 
Jr., County Manager; Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan 
Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Darryl Griffin led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Dan Morton of the First Christian Church in 
Globe delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS: 
 
2A - Recognition of 4 employees for August's "Spotlight on Employees" 
Program.   
 
Juley Bocardo-Homan, Deputy Personnel Director, presented gift cards as 
recognition awards to 4 employees for August’s “Spotlight on Employees” 
program.  They are as follows:  Lisa King of the Probation Department; William 
McDaniel of the Facilities Department; Linda Carnahan of the Sheriff’s Office; 
and Hazel Young of the Sheriff’s Office.  Each Board member thanked the 
employees for their dedicated work.   

 Item 3 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

3A - (Motion to convene as the Gila County Library District Board of 
Directors.)  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of 

 a State-Grants-In-Aid application by the Gila County Library District to 
the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records, Library 
Development Division for the 2010 fiscal year in the amount of $23,000 



2 

designated to Gila County for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 
2011.  (Motion to reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)  

 
 Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 

Board convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.   
 

Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that this State-
funded $23,000 grant is a non-competitive grant that is awarded to all counties 
and a couple of large cities in Maricopa County.  It is used for those items that 
the regular budget does not cover.  Approximately $7,000 will be retained by 
the Library District to be used for the libraries as whole to purchase technology 
items such as data bases and movie licenses for showing movies in the 
libraries.  The remaining $16,000 will be given to the 8 libraries at $2,000 
each, which is often used for summer reading programs or other programming.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously authorized the submission of State-Grants-In-Aid 
application by the Gila County Library District to the Arizona State Library, 
Archives and Public Records, Library Development Division for the 2010 fiscal 
year in the amount of $23,000 designated to Gila County for the period July 1, 
2010, through June 30, 2011.  

 
 Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 

Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

 3B - Information/ Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation 10-07, a  
 proclamation of the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona to 

declare September 27, 2010, as "Family Day-A Day to Eat Dinner with 
your Children" in Gila County.   

 
 Ms. Griffin stated that the Center on Addiction and Substance Abuse (CASA) at 

the Columbia University has been conducting research for more than a decade 
and the research has consistently found that the more often kids eat dinner 
with their families, the less likely they are to drink, smoke or use drugs.  This 
10th year of “Family Day” is a national movement reminding parents of the 
importance of parental engagement in their children’s lives.  “Family Day” is 
celebrated annually on the fourth Monday in September, which will be on 
September 27th this year.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “It’s sad that in our 
country we’ve come to a point of trying to encourage parents to have a sit-down 
meal with their children.  Having dinner together is an important part of family 
life and somehow we need to build families back together.”  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Proclamation No. 10-07, declaring September 27, 2010, 
as "Family Day--A Day to Eat Dinner with Your Children" in Gila County.   (A 
copy of the Proclamation is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.)  

 



3 

 3C - Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract #DE111093-001) between Arizona Department of 
Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration, and Gila 
County Division of Health and Community Services dba Gila Employment 
and Special Training (GEST) to provide Work Exploration and Supported 
Education services to Vocational Rehabilitation clients through 
September 30, 2015, unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties in 
writing.  
 
Dave Caddell, GEST Program Manager, stated that this contract will replace 
the current contract that began in 1988 to provide vocational rehabilitation 
services through GEST.  Supervisor Dawson inquired whether this grant 
covered a past employee that worked in the mail room.  Mr. Caddell explained 
that when the State made its budget cuts, some of the services under the 
Division of Developmental Disabilities were no longer funded through the 
Arizona Long Term Care System, which was a different contract.  Upon motion 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board 
unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract 
#DE111093-001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security, 
Rehabilitation Services Administration, and Gila County Division of Health and 
Community Services dba as GEST to provide Work Exploration and Supported 
Education services to Vocational Rehabilitation clients through September 30, 
2015, unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties in writing. 
 
3D - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 10-09-02 to 
designate Yavapai County Restoration to Competency as Gila County’s 
primary competency restoration program and authorize the Chairman to 
sign the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai County and 
Gila County for restoration to competency services at a cost of $350/day 
per client for the first day and $250/day for each subsequent client day; 
the term of the IGA is for the period July 1, 2010, to June 30, 2011, 
renewable annually for up to three one-year terms by mutual agreement of 
the parties.   
 

 Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that the adoption of this Resolution 
and IGA will provide Gila County an opportunity to save approximately 50% of 
what it now costs for the Restoration to Competency Program.  Gila County 
currently contracts with the State at a cost of $660,000 per year.  This program 
used to cost Gila County $330,000, but last year the State shifted its 50% of 
the cost back to the counties.  This IGA will change the cost for Gila County 
back to $330,000 per year.  The contract will be with Yavapai County, which 
has initiated a program whereby other counties may contract with them for 
this program and the other counties seem pleased with the level and quality of 
service.  He stated that Gila County will not abandon its contract with the State 
if needed in the future.  Chairman Pastor inquired whether the State could 
boost the County’s cost because it has switched to another provider.  Mr. 



4 

McDaniel replied that he believes there would be some legal issues involved 
that would prevent the State from increasing the County’s rate.  Supervisor 
Dawson inquired as to the length of time Yavapai County has been handling 
this program for other counties.  Mr. McDaniel stated that he understood they 
have been doing this for over 2 years and have contracted with other counties 
for a year.  Supervisor Dawson stated that she doesn’t have a problem in 
contracting with Yavapai County, but she believes that the judges and courts 
need to be aware of same.  She would also like to visit the facility and see how 
the program is operated.  She stated that Gila County used to provide this 
service that was discontinued when the County’s hospital was closed.  She 
would like some background information on what happens to someone from 
Gila County who is sent there for restoration services.  She will look into the 
matter when she returns as she believes this service is critical.  Mr. McDaniel 
stated that through staff research, talks were held with Sheriff Armer, County 
Attorney Flores and Judge Cahill, and all are on board with this approach.  He 
stated that program details can be provided at a later date.  Bryan Chambers, 
Chief Deputy County Attorney, explained that this program is for restoration to 
competency, so these are criminal residents who have been found to be 
mentally incompetent to stand trial.  This program would actually attempt to 
restore the individual to competency in order for that person to be tried in 
court.  He clarified that the Restoration to Competency Program is not the 
same as the County’s Title 36, Civil Mental Health Services Program.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution No. 10-09-02 designating Yavapai County 
Restoration to Competency as Gila County’s primary competency restoration 
program and authorize the Chairman to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement 
between Yavapai County and Gila County for restoration to competency 
services at a cost of $350/day per client for the first day and $250/day for each 
subsequent client day; the term of the IGA is for the period July 1, 2010, to 
June 30, 2011, renewable annually for up to three one-year terms by mutual 
agreement of the parties.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
3E - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-09-03 
authorizing the Board of Supervisors to sign an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) with the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, 
(ADOT) for Arizona Department of Transportation File No. IGA/JPA 10-
1611 for the paving of a portion of Forest Road 512 (Young Road) from SR 
260 to Forest Road 291.   
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that recently the Public 
Works Division sent the State $1.45 million to front the money for this project 
in order to compete in the bidding cycle.  By signing this IGA, it will allow the 
County to recover approximately $674,000 in federal Public Lands Highway 
Discretionary Funds of that $1.45 million.  This is money that Congressional 
Representative Rick Renzi had earmarked for the County many years ago.  It 



5 

started at $750,000.  He stated that by also signing this IGA, it will allow the 
ADOT board to award the project next Thursday in Eager, Arizona, to the low 
bidder, which was Intermountain West Contractors of Payson, thereby 
providing the small window for the nesting of the owl and the first snow storm 
in which to complete this project.  Upon inquiry from Chairman Pastor, Mr. 
Stratton stated that he believes there will be enough time to complete the 3.2 
mile project; however, it will be dependent upon whether the nesting cycle is 
right and if the first snow storm holds off.  He also noted that this project is in 
the Apache-Sitgreaves National Forest, not the Tonto National Forest and is 
located in Coconino County, but the County does have an IGA whereby Gila 
County maintains that portion of the road and it is claimed on the County’s 
Highway User Revenues Fund mileage.  Supervisor Dawson inquired as to the 
agency that will be monitoring the birds.  Mr. Stratton stated that he believes it 
is being monitored by a combination of the U.S. Forest Service, Apache-
Sitgreaves Forest and ADOT.  ADOT will be administering the project.  Upon 
inquiry by Vice-Chairman Martin as to the project start date, Mr. Stratton 
replied that the County would like to start within a week or two after the 
project is awarded next week.  He stated that the low bid was a little under 
$1.2 million and with the RAC (Resource Advisory Committee) grant received, 
the County should be able to recover all of its $1.45 million in funds that were 
put up front.  Supervisor Dawson stated that she is grateful for finally getting 
at least a portion of this project done.  She stated, “I know there will be a 
question and people will wonder why the Renzi money isn’t going on the road.  
Maybe you can answer that one.”  Mr. Stratton stated, “That money is going on 
the road.  We simply fronted the money for federal highways because they did 
not have an agreement in place to put that money up.  That’s why we put it up 
front and we’re just recovering our money.”  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I 
appreciate you making that an official comment because I’ve answered this 
about 5 times already and I’m sure you will get a call or 2 from people.  I have 
received calls from people who are not interested in having that road paved; 
however, the majority of the people are very interested in having it paved…This 
is certainly an important step in getting emergency assistance to that area.”  
For the Board’s information, Mr. Stratton advised that last week there were 
several conversations and e-mails that took place concerning drainage on this 
particular portion of the road.  Some of the ADOT staff in the Prescott District 
and the Tonto Forest District wanted to do some upgrades and put in new 
culvert, turnouts, etc.  Mr. Stratton stated, “We did bring to their attention that 
this would cause problems because the NEPA (National Environmental 
Protection Act) was only a surface NEPA and it would delay the project at least 
one year and put it in jeopardy so we did ask ADOT and the U.S. Forest Service 
to back away from those things so we could get this project done.  The turnouts 
and culverts can be done later and some internal work on the culverts is being 
done this week to ensure they are open for improving the drainage without 
interfering with NEPA.”  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 10-09-03 
authorizing the Board of Supervisors to sign an Intergovernmental Agreement 



6 

with the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for Arizona 
Department of Transportation File No. IGA/JPA 10-1611 for the paving of a 
portion of Forest Road 512 (Young Road) from SR 260 to Forest Road 291.  
Vice-Chairman Martin thanked Mr. Stratton and his staff for “making this 
happen this year.”  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
3F - Information/Discussion/Action to award Contract No. 051910 VHF 
Repeater System Implementation to Canyon State Wireless, 
Inc. in the amount of $49,826.81 to provide for VHF Repeater System 
implementation at Aztec Peak for the Gila County Sheriff's Office.   
 
Adam Shepherd, Undersheriff, stated that the selection committee met last 
month after receiving 4 Statements of Qualification after this project was 
published—2 from within the County and 2 outside of the County.  He thanked 
all of the staff who worked to get this project going.  He stated that the 
recommendation from the committee was that Canyon State Wireless, Inc., the 
new local vendor that replaced Shores Communication, be awarded the 
contract.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously awarded Contract No. 051910 VHF Repeater 
System Implementation to Canyon State Wireless, Inc. in the amount 
of $49,826.81 to provide for VHF Repeater System implementation at Aztec 
Peak for the Gila County Sheriff's Office.   
 
Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 

 
 4A. Adoption of an Order designating polling places for the purpose of 

conducting the General Election on Tuesday, November 2, 2010. 
 
 4B. Adoption of an Order appointing poll workers for the purpose of 

conducting the General Election on Tuesday, November 2, 2010.  
 

 4C. Adoption of an Order appointing election board workers for the 
purpose of conducting the General Election on Tuesday, November 2, 
2010.  
 

 4D. Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit 
submitted by Tamara L. Morken to temporarily extend the patio area of 
the Rimside Grill in order to serve liquor in that extended area for the 
following events/dates:  9/19/10 - Strawberry's Elite Blues and BBQ 
charity function; 9/25/10 through 9/26/10 - Rimside Grill's Oktoberfest 
Celebration; and 10/9/10 – Justice McNeely Foundation Quad Run and 
Auction.  

 
 4E. Approval of an Application for Special Event License submitted by the 

Lions Club of Globe, AZ, Inc. to serve liquor at the Gila County Fair on  



7 

 September 16, 2010, and September 18, 2010. 
 

4F. Approval of personnel reports/actions for the week of September 7, 
2010. 
 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Clifford Horn – Public Works Facility Management – Building Maintenance 

Supervisor – 09/02/10 - Facilities Management Fund – DOH 05/09/94 – 
Separated without prejudice 

2. Concepcion Ajagbe - Health and Community Services – Career and 
Employment Specialist – 08/20/10 – WIA Fund – DOH 03/22/10 - 
Resigned 

Hires to County Service: 
3. Christina Ortiz – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 

Associate – 09/06/10 - General Fund – Replacing Angela Ramirez 
4. Robert Gamboa – County Attorney – Administration Clerk Part Time – 

08/30/10 - General Fund – Replacing Janice McGann 
Position Review: 
5. Samuel Leverance – From 100% Public Works Engineering – To 50% Public 

Works Engineering 50% Public Works Survey – Surveyor Assistant – 
08/23/10 – Public Works Fund  

6. Jesse McGill – Public Works-Flood Management – Engineering Technician 
Senior – 07/05/10 - General Fund – Correction to a step 9 

7. Mike Lemon - Health and Community Services – Environmental Health 
Specialist Senior – 08/16/10 – Health Services Fund – From 19.5 hours – 
To 30 hours 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hires to County Service: 
8. Beth Ann Davies - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 09/27/10 - General 

Fund – Replacing Dan Evans 
9. John Earl Rittenbach - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 08/30/10 - 

General Fund – Replacing Guy Jones 
End Probationary Period: 
10. Marcus Teague - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 09/13/10 – General  

 Fund 
 

4G. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the week of 
September 7, 2010.  (separate handout) 

$1,892,297.72 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 230071 
through 230490.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A-4G.   

 



8 

Item 5 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and Mr. McDaniel presented information on current 
events.  Each Board member thanked Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, 
and Marilyn Brewer, Deputy Clerk, for their efforts over the past several 
months in getting the new paperless agenda system, known as AgendaQuick, 
on line for the Board’s agendas and the training that was provided for all staff.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:53 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



ARF-442     Item #:  4- R     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 04/05/2011  

Reporting Period: Human Resources Reports for the weeks of 03/22/2011, 03/29/11 and
04/05/2011

Submitted For: Berthan DeNero, Human Resources Director
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources Reports for the weeks of March 22, 2011, March 29, 2011, and April 05,
2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Human Resources Reports for the weeks of March 22, 2011, March 29, 2011, and
April 5, 2011.

Attachments
Link: 03/22/11 Human Resources Agenda
Link: 03/29/11 Human Resources Agenda
Link: 04/05/11 Human Resources Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
MARCH 22, 2011 

 
 

HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Joseph G. Williams – Assessor – Property Appraiser – 04/11/11 – General Fund – 
Replaces Annamaria Schutter 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

2. Bryan Kinder – Probation – Probation Officer Supervisor – 04/04/11 – State Aid 
Enhancement and Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Funds 

3. Charlotte Williams – Recorder – Recorder’s Clerk – 03/14/11 – General Fund 
4. Cate DeLaTorre – Recorder – Recorder’s Clerk – 03/14/11 – General Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

5. Pete Ortega – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Supervisor – 03/14/11 – 
Change to non-exempt status 

6. Shannon Boyer – Public Works – Executive Administrative Assistant – 03/14/11 
– Change to non-exempt status 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

7. Human Resources/Library Services – Human Resources and Library Services 
Assistant – vacated by Erica Raymond 

8. Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – vacated by Mark Warden 
 

 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

9. Earlene Ingram – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 03/03/11 – General Fund – 
DOH 11/08/10 – unsuccessful completion of probationary period 

10. George Fishel – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/30/11 – General Fund – 
DOH 05/09/94 – Retirement 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

11. David Berry – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 04/11/11 – General Fund – 
Replacing Linda Kruse 

12. Prestina Preston-Lynch – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 04/11/11 – General 
Fund – Replacing Charlene Gable 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
MARCH 29, 2011 

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Manuel C. Medrano – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 02/25/11 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 11/22/10 – Temporary employment 

2. Manuel V. Rocha – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 02/25/11 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 11/22/10 – Temporary employment 

3. Darryl D. McDaniel – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 11/22/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 11/22/10 – Temporary employment 

4. Zachary Salcido – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 08/01/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 06/28/10 – Temporary employment 

5. Jacob Reynoso – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 08/01/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 06/21/10 – Temporary employment 

6. Courtney Canez – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 01/14/11 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 12/27/10 – Temporary employment 

7. Denise Barajas – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 01/14/11 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 06/07/10 – Temporary employment 

8. Lois Jacott – County Attorney – Temporary Transcriptionist – 03/28/11 – County 
Attorney Cost of Prosecution Fund – DOH 02/20/06 – Temporary employment 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Mark Gann – Public Works – From Solid Waste Operations Worker – To Solid 
Waste Operations Worker Sr.  – 03/14/11 - Solid Waste Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

10. Jolene Myers – Clerk of the Superior Court – Court Clerk – 03/28/11 – Change in 
fund code 

11. Carolyn Borcherding – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Sr. – 
03/28/11 – Change in number of hours worked 

12. Karen Wartick – School Superintendent – Administrative Assistant – 02/01/11 – 
Change in number of hours worked 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

13. Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Sr. – vacated by Vicki DeAnda 
 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

14. Gabriel Lagunas – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/11/11 – General 
Fund – Replacing Monique Perez 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

15. Christopher Lisenbee – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/14/11 – General 
Fund 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 5, 2011 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Sharon Heller – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Sr. – 
04/04/11 – Immunization Fund – DOH 09/25/06 – Resignation 

2. Rebekah Perez – Treasurer – Treasurer Services Assistant – 03/30/11 – General 
Fund – DOH 07/30/07 – Resignation 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Doris Root – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 04/11/11 – 
GEST Fund – Replacing Patricia Rocha 

4. Charles Turney – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Assistant 
Sr. – 04/11/11 – Community Health Grants Fund – New position 

5. Kevin Kenney – Health and Emergency Services – Rural Addressing Analyst – 
04/11/11 – General Fund – Replacing Jeremiah Johnson 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

6. Carol Tanner – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 04/11/11 – 
GEST Fund 

7. Helene Lopez – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 04/11/11 
– GEST Fund 

8. Michelle Duarte – Payson Justice Court – Temporary Clerk – 03/28/11 – General 
Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Robert Whittle – Public Works – From Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
To Solid Waste Operations Worker – 03/28/11 – From Public Works Fund – To 
Solid Waste Fund 

 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 

HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

10. Sarah Bread – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 04/11/11 – General Fund – 
Replacing Earlene Ingram 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Gila County Order LL-11-03 - Pleasant Valley Winery Liquor License Application
	Item2.A._Att1_Pleasant Valley Winery Liquor License Application
	Item2.A._Att2_Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery License Information
	Item2.A._Att3_Pleasant Valley Winery Internal Memos
	Item2.A._Att4_Gila County Order No. LL-11-03
	Item3.A.  Resolution No. 11-04-01 - Support for Cobre Valley Community Transit Program
	Item3.A._Att1_Resolution
	Item3.A._Att2_Cover Page
	Item3.B.  Arizona Department of Transporatation IGA & Resolution No. 11-04-03 Six Shooter Canyon Road Sidewalks
	Item3.B._Att1_Six Shooter Agreement
	Item3.B._Att2_Resolution 11-04-03
	Item3.C.  Arizona Department of Transportation IGA & Resolution No. 11-04-04 - Main Street, Globe Sidewalks
	Item3.C._Att1_ADOT Agreement Main St
	Item3.C._Att2_Resolution 
	Item3.C._Att3_Resolution No. 09-08-01
	Resolution No. 09-08-01

	Item3.D.  Proclamation No. 11-03 to proclaim April 2011 as National County Government Month in Gila County
	Item3.D._Att1_Proclamation No. 11-03
	Item3.D._Att2_National County Government Week Gila Co. Flyer
	Item3.E.  Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 1005.103_1-2011 with Elections Operations Services (EOS) 
	Item3.E._Att1_EOS Contract No. 1005-103_1-2011
	Item3.E._Att2_EOS Executive Summary Form
	Item3.E._Att3_EOS Ltr of Recommendation
	Item3.F.  Professional Services Contract No. 1005.120_2-2011 for Microfilm Storage Services with US Imaging, Inc.
	Item3.F._Att1_Contract 1005.120_2-2011
	Item3.F._Att2_Executive Summary
	Item3.G.  Resolution 11-04-02 - Renewal of Gila County's membership in the AZLGEBT and Appointing Trustees
	Item3.G._Att1_Resolution No. 11-04-02
	Item3.H.  Professional Agreement No. 6557.102_12-2010 Technical Energy Audit
	Item3.H._Att1_Executive Summary 
	Item3.H._Att2_Contract 6557.102_12-2010
	Item3.I.  Forest Service Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-014 
	Item3.I._Att1_Agreement
	Item3.J.  Resolution No. 11-04-05 School Crossing at U.S. 60
	Item3.J._Att1_Resolution No. 11-04-05
	Item3.K.  Resolution No. 11-04-06 U.S. 60 Silver King Widening
	Item3.K._Att1_Resolution No. 11-04-06
	Item3.L.  Proclamation No. 11-04, National Library Week, April 10-16, 2011
	Item3.L._Att1_National Library Week 2011
	Item3.M.  First Things First Grant Renewal Community -based Literacy _ July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012
	Item3.M._Att1_email verification of deadline extension
	Item3.M._Att2_Grant Renewal FTF Community-based Literacy 2011- 2012
	Item4.A.  Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Renewal Byrne Drug, Gang and Violent Control Grant Permission to Apply
	Item4.A._Att1_Byrne Prosecution Application
	Item4.A._Att2_FY09 Single Audit Report Byrne Prosecution Application Attachment 
	Item4.A._Att3_Byrne Prosecution Grant Announcement
	Item4.B.  Lease with Alhambra Mini Storage for storage unit
	Item4.B._Att1_Alhambra Mini Storage Lease with Addendum
	Item4.C.  Amendment No.1 to Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement (Commerce G044-10-02)                          
	Item4.C._Att1_REVISED-Amendment No. 1 Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement Commerce G044-10-02 AZ. Dept. of Energy
	Item4.C._Att2_OLD-Amendment No.1 Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement Commerce G044-10-02 AZ. Dept. of Energy
	Item4.C._Att3_ORIGINAL CONTRACT-Weatherization Low-income Assistance Contractual Agreement Commerce G044-10-02 AZ. Dept. of Energy
	Item4.D.  Amendment No.3 to Memorandum of Understanding_Contract for Help America Vote Act
	Item4.D._Att1_Original MOU
	Item4.D._Att2_HAVA MOU No.3
	Item4.E.  Amendment No. 1 to Electric Dr. Lease Agreement with Arizona Public Service Company
	Item4.E._Att1_Amendment No. 1 Lease Agreement
	Item4.E._Att2_Lease Agreement
	Item4.F.  Canyon Fire District Governing Board Vacancy Appointment
	Item4.F._Att1_ARS 48-804
	Item4.F._Att2_Canyon Fire District Mtg Minutes and Oath
	Item4.G.  2 Intergovernmental Agreements for Election Services for Cobre Valley Sanitary District & Pinal Sanitary District
	Item4.G._Att1_IGA - Pinal Sanitary District 
	Item4.G._Att2_IGA - Cobre Valley Sanitary District
	Item4.H.  Professional Services Contract No,1005.274_2-2011-Medical Director Services-McClaren Ruesch, M.D.
	Item4.H._Att1_Executive Summary Form-McClaren Ruesch, M.D.
	Item4.H._Att2_Professional Services Contract-McClaren Ruesch, M.D.
	Item4.I.  Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002 with the Bureau of Indian Affairs
	Item4.I._Att1_Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. CMK0L090002
	Item4.I._Att2_Original Contract No. CMK0L090002
	Item4.J.  2011 Re-Appointment of Superior Court Judges Pro Tempore
	Item4.J._Att1_MEMOS TO BOS RE_ JUDGE SCALES & JUDGE DE NINNO
	Page 1
	Page 2

	Item4.J._Att2_BOS APPROVAL JUDGE SCALES
	Item4.J._Att3_BOS APPROVAL JUDGE DENINNO
	Item4.K.  First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No. FTF-RC004-10-0129-01-Y2
	Item4.K._Att1_FTF Renewal 2011-2012
	Item4.L.  First Things First Notice of Renewal Consideration No. GRA-STATE-10-0070-02-Y2
	Item4.L._Att1_FTF Renewal
	July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2012
	Renewal Instructions
	2011 – 2012 Implementation Plan
	STANDARD Line Item Budget Instructions



	Attachment Form C (Continued)
	NOTE:  Briefly highlight any changes to your budget from the previous Fiscal Year, particularly those line items where your budget has increased.  If the total funds available under this contract have increased from the previous year, only one descrip...

	Attachment E
	Disclosure of Other Funding Sources

	Item4.M.  IGA-Economic Development Grant to City of Globe for Old Dominion Historic Mine Park
	Item4.M._Att1_IGA Economic Development Grant -City of Globe
	Item4.N.  Proclamation No. 11-05 - April as Fair Housing Month in Gila County
	Item4.N._Att1_Proclamation No. 11-05
	Item4.O.  Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for February 2011
	Item4.O._Att1_Globe Regional Justice Court Report for 02_11
	Item4.O._Att2_Globe Regional Justice Court Report for 02_11
	Item4.P.  Payson Constable Monthly Report for February 2011
	Item4.P._Att1_Payson Constable Report for 02_11
	Item4.Q.  Board of Supervisors meeting minutes for August 10, 2010, August 16, 2010, August 31, 2010, & September 7, 2010
	Item4.Q._Att1_BOS Meeting Minutes for 08_10_10
	Item4.Q._Att2_BOS Meeting Minutes for 08_16_10
	Item4.Q._Att3_BOS Meeting Minutes for 08_31_10
	Item4.Q._Att4_BOS Meeting Minutes for 09_07_10
	Item4.R.  Human Resources Reports for the weeks of 03_22_2011, 03_29_11 and 04_05_2011
	Item4.R._Att1_03_22_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item4.R._Att2_03_29_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item4.R._Att3_04_05_11 Human Resources Agenda

	pride in county: Show Your Pride in Gila County!
	details: Please join Gila County in promoting the theme “Serving Our Veterans, Armed Forces and Their Families” by celebrating National County Government Month. Learn more about how Gila County is delivering essential health care, employment, housing and justice system services, as well as providing other programs in our community.• April 19th…Earth Day Poster/Essay Contest (K-12)• April 26th…Appreciation Luncheon (Globe) for County employees • April 28th…Appreciation Luncheon (Payson) for County employees
	Additional Information: A full listing of NCGW events is available on our website:   www.gilacountyaz.gov


